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Financial Highlights
S S 4

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

. Revenue decreased by approximately 8.1% to RMB296.5 million
(2019: RMB322.6 million).

Gross profit increased by approximately 8.9% to RMB170.7 million
(2019: RMB156.8 million).

Loss for the Year was approximately RMB49.6 million (2019: Loss of
RMB194.7 million).

Loss per share was RMB5.24 cents (2019: Loss per share RMB20.57
cents).

. The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend
(2019: Nil) for the Year or any special dividend (2019: Nil).
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To the Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Nanjing Sinolife United Company Limited* (the “Company’, together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am pleased to present the annual
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Year”).

BB R
RARRERPEBMEROERAR (R2T ] ERENBR IR
BIAEENES(E5 g (ESE ) RARZAEEEE 2020
F12AMBLEFE(XRFE)NEFEE -

*  For identification purpose only



Chairman’s Statement

R R

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

In 2020, the Group continued to implement its established development
strategy and focused on the Good Health brand, vigorously enhanced the
growth of the maternity and child series products under the Good Health
brand in the PRC's market, continued to diversify its various sales channels
including distributors and e-commerce platforms, and strengthened the
marketing of the Good Health series products.

The year of 2020 was meant to be extraordinary. In light of the outbreak of
COVID-19 at the beginning of the Year, the global economy, the living of
the public and ordinary business activities of enterprises have been
adversely affected. Facing the unexpected situations, the Group actively
responded and maintained ongoing operation of its business and
minimised the impact of COVID-19, while the safety and health of the
Group's employees is the top priority of the Group. The Group's strategic
plan has been focusing on Good Health brand and vigorously developing
sales channels for domestic distributors and e-commerce in the recent
years, with preliminary results achieved in early 2020. COVID-19 aroused
public attention to the health of themselves and their family members,
thereby increasing the sales revenue generated from immune products
under Good Health brand and maternity and child products.

It was no doubt that the huge market for dietary supplements in PRC,
people’s pursuit of health and ongoing high-standard supervision over
such industry by the PRC government created a good external
environment for the development of the Group. In 2021, the Group will
continue to focus resources on the development of Good Health brand,
distributors and e-commerce channels. The Group will accelerate the
innovation in the launch and marketing promotion of new products of the
maternity and child series under Good Health brand, optimise its supply
chain management and improve operational efficiency, so as to enhance
its overall profitability.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express that the Group would grip
the opportunity to promote Good Health series products in several sales
channels as well as expand its health products business in the PRC, New
Zealand and Australia in order to improve the health conditions of people.

Mr. Gui Pinghu
Chairman

30 March 2021
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Product Information

FE b EOR

GOOD HEALTH SERIES
Y filt e % 51

Propolis Capsules Oyster Plus Capsules

RREBBE HERFBE

Hi Cal™ Liquid Calcium & Vitamin D Goats’ Milk Powder
REGELERDUBE W F 5%

Grape Seed 55,000 Capsules 1-a-day Glucosamine
HE 155,000 % SEEEERE
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Product Information
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GOOD HEALTH SERIES
Lig 352 P

100% Pure Colostrum Deep Sleep Capsules
100% 4 E % FEERREBE

L @
Omega 3 Fish Oil Capsules Celery 12,000 Capsules
RERHBE FROEGERBE

TRIPLE

Gl ACTION

Mussel 6000 Joint Active with UC-II
2 E85 H6000B % SEE=4A—-B%E
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Product Information
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GOOD HEALTH SERIES
Y- e % 51
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with Lactoferrin
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g
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Goat Milk

Children 3+ Formula

with DA, GO% & FOS

Goat Milk for Children
RERREHRAFIHH (FARIAHD)

Calcium Iron and Zinc Nutrient Sprinkles

FHFEEs

CalciGrow Nutrient Powder
with DHA and Multivitamins
THEE(HEEERRER)
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2020, the Group continued to implement its established development
strategy and focused on the Good Health brand, vigorously enhanced the
growth of the maternity and child series products under the Good Health
brand in the PRC's market, continued to diversify its various sales channels
including distributors and e-commerce platforms, and strengthened the
marketing of the Good Health brand series products. Because of the
decrease of sales in TV shopping platforms, the Group recorded revenue
for the Year of approximately RMB296.5 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 8.1% as compared to approximately RMB322.6 million in
2019. As the Group's strategic adjustments have achieved initial results in
2020, the Group recorded a loss of approximately RMB49.6 million for the
Year, representing a significant decrease of approximately 74.5% as
compared to a loss of approximately RMB194.7 million in 2019.

During the Year, the Group continued to adopt the strategies of focusing
on the Good Health brand and sales promotion through distributors and
e-commerce channels, so as to achieve increasingly higher brand
recognition of Good Health brand in the target markets. The Group carried
out continuous brand building and promotion mainly through
combination of distributors, TV shopping platforms and travel channels,
and at the same time by flagship stores on domestic major e-commerce
platforms.

During the Year, in order to enhance the market competitiveness of its
products and meet the evolving consumer demands, the Group has
adopted a market-oriented strategy for research and product
development to further strengthen the development of new products.
During the Year, the Group has launched a total of 35 new products,
including 3 Zhongsheng series products, 7 Hejian series products, 20
Good Health series products and 5 Living Nature series products. The new
products mainly comprise children’s growth formula goat milk powder,
lactase modified milk powder, calcium iron zinc nutrition package, fish
collagen peptide solid beverage and olive leaf capsules.

For the PRC's market, the Group has made great effort to develop
domestic distribution network and e-commerce platforms during the
Year. In terms of e-commerce platforms, the Group continued to
cooperate with e-commerce platforms such as Tmall International,
JD.com, suning.com, xiaohongshu.com and Health Post.

The Group’s overseas diversified sales platforms mainly include
international distribution network broadly distributed in countries
including the United Kingdom, Germany, Singapore, Vietnam and
Thailand, and local large chain pharmacies, health goods supermarkets
and tourist souvenir shops in New Zealand and Australia.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Results

The revenue of the Group for the Year was approximately RMB296.5
million, representing a decrease of approximately 8.1% from
approximately RMB322.6 million in 2019. The Group recorded a loss of
approximately RMB49.6 million for the Year, as compared to a loss of
approximately RMB194.7 million in 2019, representing a decrease of
approximately 74.5%. The Company’s loss per share was approximately
RMB5.24 cents (2019: loss per share of approximately RMB20.57 cents)
based on the weighted average number of 946,298,370 (2019:
946,298,370) ordinary shares of the Company in issue for the Year.

Revenue

The revenue of the Group decreased by approximately 8.1% from
approximately RMB322.6 million in 2019 to approximately RMB296.5
million for the Year. As of the end of 2020, as a result of the change of sales
strategy and the Group reduced its contributions in package fee for sales
through TV shopping platforms, the sales of TV shopping channel
decreased by 29.4% from approximately RMB95.0 million in 2019 to
approximately RMB67.1 million for the Year; and the revenue of online call
centres decreased by approximately 20.9% from approximately RMB34.0
million in 2019 to approximately RMB26.9 million for the Year as the Group
changed its sales strategy and focused more on distributors and
e-commence platforms.

Gross profit

The Group's gross profit increased by approximately 8.9% from
approximately RMB156.8 million in 2019 to approximately RMB170.7
million for the Year. The Group's average gross profit margin increased
from approximately 48.6% in 2019 to approximately 57.6% for the Year.
Such increase in gross profit margin was mainly due to the increase in
revenue from sale of the maternity and child series products under the
Good Health brand (with relatively higher gross profit margin) through the
domestic distribution channels. Accordingly, the overall gross profit
margin had been improved during the Year.

Other income and gains
The Group’s other income and gains mainly comprised government
grants, rental income and reversal of provision of trade receivables, which
increased from approximately RMB8.7 million in 2019 to approximately
RMB12.7 million for the Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Selling and distribution expenses

The Group's selling and distribution expenses decreased by approximately
28.3% from approximately RMB185.4 million in 2019 to approximately
RMB132.9 million for the Year, representing approximately 57.5% and
44.8% of the Group's revenue in 2019 and for the Year respectively. Such
decrease was mainly due to the decrease in promotion expenses for TV
shopping channel for the Year; as the Group reduced advertising and
promotion expenses for Living Nature brand in response to the
anticipated shadowing effect on advertising caused by COVID-19. In
accordance with the strategic deployment of the Group, the Group closed
down its domestic outlets whose performance was below expectations
and cut down the number of personnel in the online call centres, thus
reduced the staff remuneration expenses.

Administrative expenses

The Group's administrative expenses decreased by approximately 8.9%
from approximately RMB85.2 million in 2019 to approximately RMB77.6
million for the Year, representing approximately 26.4% and 26.2% of the
Group's revenue in 2019 and for the Year respectively. Such decrease was
mainly due to the Group closed down its old domestic offline subsidiaries
and cut down the number of personnel in the online call centres, thus
reduced the administrative staff remuneration expenses.

Other expenses

The Group's other expenses decreased by approximately 78.2% from
approximately RMB72.8 million in 2019 to approximately RMB15.9 million
for the Year, which is mainly due to the impairment of Living Nature's
goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group recognised an impairment of goodwill of approximately
RMB9.0 million for the Year.

Additional information in relation to the basis of the determination of the
impairment is set out below:

Impairment for goodwill of Living Nature

The recoverable amount of each cash-generating unit (“CGU") has been
determined based on a value-in-use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year period
approved by senior management of the Group. Cash flows beyond the
forecast period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated
below.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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The key assumptions, long-term growth rates and discount rates used in HE2020F12A431BFM2019F 12831 BIEFE
the value-in-use calculation for each of the CGUs with significant amount HESERANSHeELAEBNEREBENES
of goodwill for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December FriE AR EREE - REEERMEIRENT ¢
2019 are as follows:

Living Nature

for the year ended

31 December

HZ12H831HILEE

2020 2019

2020 20194F

Sales annual growth rate (%) HEFIER K () 2%-34% 2%-25%
Gross margin (% of revenue) EME(EWE B D) 62%-64% 68%-69%
Long-term growth rate REfIE R R 2% 2%
Pre-tax discount rate (%) B 75 ARG IR K (%) 21.2% 21.6%

The key assumptions on which management of the Group has based its AEEETEEBREBEAERSREN  ETEHERA
cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing of goodwill are as A EREBED T -
follows:

1. Budgeted gross margins 1. HEEFE
The basis used to determine the value assigned to the budgeted AREBEIMFEEENENEEFREA
gross margins is the average gross margins achieved in the year MEEABEBEEFTEN —SNAETIRG
immediately before the budget year, increased for expected FHERMR  FAFEHSHAORERALTEES
efficiency improvements, and expected market development. iR ML -

2. Discount rates 2. HEEE
The discount rates used are before tax and reflect specific risks FTABLIR R ANBHIE R T ABEE
relating to the relevant units. ALY RS

3. Long-term growth rate 3. RAEEBRE
The long-term growth rates used are based on common industry FTRAEEIZEE R\ —RITEEBH AEE -
practice.

The values assigned to the key assumptions on market development of EERSESAEMNTEXEBRGERME R =X
the CGUs, the discount rates and long-term growth rate are consistent RERHEIZERREINIPEERBEE—H -
with external information sources.

1 4 NANJING SINOLIFE UNITED COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020



Management Discussion and Analysis
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During the Year, the Group recognised an impairment loss of
approximately RMB9.0 million in relation to the goodwill of Living Nature
CGU (2019: approximately RMB34.8 million in relation to the goodwill of
the Hejian CGU), arising from the acquisition of Living Nature, the principal
activity of which is the manufacture and sale of Living Nature series
cosmetics and skin care products. Due to the effect of COVID-19, the
operating performances and the growth rate of the Living Nature CGU
were below expectations which resulted in an operating loss.

Accordingly, management of the Group provided for the impairment in
the year ended 31 December 2020.

Income tax expense

The Group recorded an income tax expense of approximately RMB5.4
million for the Year and an income tax expense of approximately RMB13.1
million in 2019, primarily resulting from the derecognition of deferred
income tax assets recognised in previous years in the Year.

The Group's actual tax rates in 2019 and for the Year were approximately
7.2% and 12.3%, respectively.

Loss for the Year

As a result of the foregoing, compared with a loss of approximately
RMB194.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
recorded a loss of approximately RMB49.6 million for the Year,
representing a significant decrease of approximately 74.5%.

The loss for the Year was mainly due to the following factors:

1. The impact of the outbreak of COVID-19 and the Group's reduction
in package fee of TV shopping platforms and the resource input of
online call centres resulted in the decrease in sales revenue from TV
shopping channels and online call centres.

2. Although the selling and distribution expenses and administrative
expenses for the Year decreased by approximately 22.2% to
approximately RMB60.2 million as compared with 2019, expenses as
a percentage of revenue were still relatively high.

3 At the end of the Year, the Group re-assessed the performance of
Living Nature for the Year and in the coming years. As the
performance of Living Nature was below the Group's expectation,
the Group recognised provision for impairment loss of Living Nature
CGU.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Cash flow

During the Year, the Group's cash and cash equivalents decreased by
approximately RMB30.4 million, which mainly comprised the net cash
inflow from operating activities with the amount of RMB16.4 million, net
cash outflow used in investing activities with the amount of approximately
RMB12.5 million, net cash outflow used in financing activities with the
amount of approximately RMB34.1 million and exchange loss of
approximately RMBO0.2 million.

Inventories

The Group's inventories amounted to approximately RMB83.1 million as at
31 December 2020 (as at 31 December 2019: approximately RMB89.8
million). The Group's inventories include raw materials, work-in-progress,
finished goods and goods merchandise. The balance of inventories
decreased by approximately 7.5% compared with that as at 31 December
2019. The inventory turnover period was approximately 251 days for the
Year (2019: 221 days), increasing by 30 days compared with that of 2019,
which was mainly due to the fall of the sales of Living Nature series
products as a result of COVID-19 and thus increase in inventory level.

Trade receivables

The Group's trade receivables amounted to approximately RMB33.0
million as at 31 December 2020 (as at 31 December 2019: approximately
RMB44.4 million), representing a decrease of approximately RMB11.4
million. The decrease of trade receivables was mainly due to (i) the
decrease of sales through TV shopping channel; and (ii) the increase in
collection of trade receivables attributable to the enhance in control over
trade receivables from distributors by Good Health Products Limited.

Trade payables

The Group's trade payables amounted to approximately RMB16.2 million
as at 31 December 2020 (as at 31 December 2019: approximately RMB13.5
million), representing an increase of approximately RMB2.7 million, mainly
because the Group fully utilised the credit terms granted by the suppliers
this year.

Foreign exchange exposure

As the Group conducts in-bound transactions principally in RMB and
outbound transactions principally in New Zealand dollar and Australian
dollar, the Group had not utilised any financial instruments for hedging
purposes as at 31 December 2020.
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Borrowings and pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any outstanding
borrowings or pledge of assets.

Gearing position

The gearing ratio, which represented total net debt (including interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings, lease liabilities, trade payables and
other payables and accruals) divided by total equity attribute to owners of
the parent and net debt multiplied by 100%, was 22.5% and 16.7% as at 31
December 2019 and 2020, respectively.

Capital expenditure

During the Year, the Group invested approximately RMB2.6 million (2019:
approximately RMB25.7 million) for the establishment of research &
development centre, plant and equipment.

Capital commitments and contingent liabilities
As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have material capital
commitments (as at 31 December 2019: Nil).

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

1. An increase in the price of raw materials and packaging materials
could adversely affect our business. The Group's products are
composed of certain raw materials such as nutraceuticals, herb
extracts, vitamins and mineral products as well as packaging
materials. The Group is affected by the increase in the prices of
these raw materials and packaging materials, which are determined
principally by market forces and the Group'’s bargaining power vis-
a-vis the Group's suppliers. If the prices of these raw materials and
packaging materials were to increase significantly, the Group may
not be able to offset all price increases by raising the prices of the
Group's products. Moreover, the Group may lose competitive
advantage if the prices of the Group’s products increase
significantly.
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The Company’s failure to appropriately respond to changing
consumer preferences and introduce new products could
significantly harm customer relationships and product sales of the
Group. The continued success of the Group is particularly subject to
changing consumer trends and preferences and the Company's
ability to anticipate and respond to these changes. If the Company
is not able to respond in a timely or commercially appropriate
manner to these changes, relationships with customers of the
Group and product sales could be harmed significantly.
Furthermore, the nutritional supplements industry is characterised
by rapid and frequent changes in demand for new products. The
Company's failure to accurately predict these trends by introducing
new products could negatively impact consumer opinion of the
Company. This could harm customer relationships and cause losses
to the market share of the Group. The success of new product
offerings of the Group depends on a number of factors, including
the ability to accurately anticipate customer needs, innovate and
develop new products, successfully commercialise new products in
a timely manner, competitively pricing the products of the Group,
manufacture and deliver products in sufficient volumes and in a
timely manner, and differentiate product offerings from
competitors. If the Group do not introduce new products or make
enhancements to meet the changing needs of customers in a
timely manner, some of the products of the Group could become
obsolete, which could have an adverse effect on operating results
of the Group.

Foreign exchange risk and fluctuations in exchange rates could
have an adverse effect on business and investors’ environment. The
Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily for its purchases
in Australian dollars and New Zealand dollars from third-party
manufacturers in Australia and New Zealand. The appreciation or
depreciation of RMB against Australian dollars and New Zealand
dollars may have a significant impact on the Group’s profitability.
For example, a depreciation of RMB could increase costs of
purchasing products from Australia and New Zealand, as such
depreciation would require the Group to convert more RMB to
obtain the equivalent foreign currency necessary to tender
payment. The Group has not used any derivative contracts to hedge
against its exposure to foreign currency risk. The value of RMB
against foreign currencies, including Australian dollars and New
Zealand dollars, fluctuates and is affected by, among other things,
changes in the PRC and international political and economic
conditions and the PRC government's fiscal, monetary and currency
policies. There remains significant international pressure on the PRC
government to adopt a more flexible currency policy. The Group
cannot predict how RMB will fluctuate in the future. As a result, the
fluctuation in the exchange rate between RMB and other currencies
could have an adverse effect on the Group’s business, financial
condition and operating results.
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4. Any future occurrence of force majeure events, natural disasters or
outbreaks of epidemics, including but not limited to those caused
by influenza may restrict business activities in the areas affected and
adversely affect our business and operating results.

HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT

Quality and dedicated staff is indispensable asset to the Group's success in
the competitive market. By providing comprehensive training and
corporate culture education periodically, the employees are able to obtain
on-going training and development in the nutritional supplements
industry. Furthermore, the Group offers competitive remuneration
packages commensurated with industry practice and provides various
fringe benefits to all employees. The Group reviews its human resources
and remuneration policies periodically to ensure they are in line with
market practice and regulatory requirements. As at 31 December 2020,
the Group employed a work force of 449 employees. The total salaries and
related costs for the Year amounted to approximately RMB72.8 million (as
at 31 December 2019: approximately RMB86.0 million).
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Directors, Supervisors, Senior Management and Employees
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DIRECTORS

The Board consists of 6 Directors, including 3 executive Directors and 3

independent non-executive Directors.

The information of the Directors is set out as follows:

L

EXEChoRESMAN  BRE3BHITESNIE

BYIFRITES -

EEWERFEIIT

Date of joining Date of

Name Age the Group Position/Title appointment Roles and responsibilities

HE F MAXEBENBEH B HEE ZERH AERBE

Mr. Gui Pinghu 61 24 May 1999 Chairman and 24 May 1999 Chairman of the Strategy and

Executive Director Development Committee;

being responsible for strategic
development of the Company

ERiibirtad 615% 19995248 EERFWTES 1995240 BRERIEERZESIF AR
RAREEIEER

Ms. Zhang Yuan 51 25May 1999 Chief Executive Officer 17 June 2011 General manager, being responsible

SRR
Ms. Zhu Feifei

KRR
Mr. Zhang Jitong

SRAER Tt

Ms. Cai Tianchen

BERRLL

Mr. Wang Wei

515% 199945 A 25H
39 29 July 2003

395% 200347 A 298
48 23 October 2018

481% 2018410 A 23 H

47 23 October 2018

475% 2018410 A 23 H

38 23 October 2018

385k 2018510 A 23 H

and Executive
Director

HEHITEFRNITES 2011 F6H17H

Chief Production Officer
and Executive Director

25 October 2012

BELEERNITES 202F10A25H

Independent
Non-executive
Director

BAUFMITES

Independent
Non-executive
Director

BUFMITES

Independent
Non-executive
Director

BUFFRTES

23 October 2018

2018% 10 A 23 H

23 October 2018

2018%F 10 A 23 H

23 October 2018

2018%F 10 A 23 H

for the management, organisation,
implementation of Board decisions
and member of the
Nomination Committee

wE - g EEE - A5
EREFGRENEREZEENE

Chief production officer; member of
the Remuneration Committee

EREER  FTMZEENE

Chairman of the Nomination
Committee; member of each of
the Audit Committee and
Strategy and Development
Committee

REZEQIRE  BRLZE®
BRLERZEGKE

Chairman of the Audit Committee;
member of each of the
Remuneration Committee and
Strategy and Development
Committee

ERZESIR  FMWEESEK
BEERERZEENE

Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee; member of each of
the Audit Committee and
Nomination Committee

yMZEeEIR BREEER
REEEENE
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Executive Directors

Mr. Gui Pinghu (¥ 3#), aged 61, the founder of the Group, is the
chairman and was appointed as an executive Director on 24 May 1999. Mr.
Gui is also a director of Australia Cobayer Health Food Co. Pty Ltd.
(“Cobayer”’) and Good Health Products Limited ("GHP”) (Shanghai Weiyi
Investment Management Co., Ltd.'s (“Shanghai Weiyi") wholly-owned
subsidiary). He is primarily responsible for the strategic development of
the Company.

Mr. Gui graduated from Nanjing Xiaozhuang University (formerly known as
Nanjing Institute of Education* (B R#5& £F3)), majoring in Chinese in
July 1989 and was awarded a degree of Executive Master of Business
Administration, which was a part-time programme from Fudan University
in June 2010. As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Gui and his spouse
were interested in approximately 81.18% of the domestic shares of the
Company (the “Domestic Shares”). Mr. Gui was also interested in
approximately 2.37% of the H shares of the Company (‘H Shares”).

Mr. Gui was the general manager of Hainan East & West Advertisement Art
Company* (B R 7 ESE7/2 7)) from November 1992 to October
1994, the general manager of Nanjing Tangshan Garden Hotel* (F 55
ILFEEDE E) between January 1995 and December 1996 and the general
manager of Nanjing Xin Chuang Mould and Die Factory* (FI R #TEITE &
&) from January 1997 to December 1998. In May 1999, he established the
Company and has since then been the Director. Mr. Gui has more than 20
years of experience in the nutritional supplements industry.

Ms. Zhang Yuan (3RJ&), aged 51, was appointed as an executive Director
and the chief executive officer of the Group on 17 June 2011. Ms. Zhang is
also a director of Nanjing Zhongsheng Bio-Tech Co. Limited* (R ;2 HF A4
YIEHE B BR A 7)), Beijing Zhongsheng Wonderful Health Technology Co.
Limited* (3b AR A E LR EREHE B R A7), Guangzhou Zhongyuan
Bio-Tech Co. Limited* (BN AT EMEBR A A, Zhenjiang
Zhongsheng Health Bio-Tech Co. Limited* GE;T AR A i EERIF AR A 7)),
Nanjing Buy-in-house Ecommerce Co. Limited* (I RE S BEE T H5H
fR 2 A]) and Shanghai Weiyi. She is also the director of Shanghai Hejian
Nutritional Food Products Company Limited* (/8 Rf2 & E R RBRE LD
7)) ("Hejian"), Hejian (Nanjing Branch), GHP, Living Nature Natural
Products Limited and Living Nature Limited. Ms. Zhang is primarily
responsible for the management, organisation and implementation of
Board decisions. As at the date of this annual report, Ms. Zhang was
interested in approximately 0.98% of the Domestic Shares and
approximately 0.08% of the H Shares.

Ms. Zhang has more than 20 years of experience in the nutritional
supplements industry. She was appointed as the office supervisor of the
Company in May 1999 and the deputy general manager of the Company
in January 2008.

Ms. Zhang obtained a degree of Executive Master of Business
Administration, which was a part-time programme from Nanjing
University in June 2012.

* For identification purpose only
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Ms. Zhu Feifei (5 ), aged 39, was appointed as an executive Director
on 25 October 2012. Ms. Zhu is also a director of Suzhou Zhongsheng
Health & Biological Products Co. Limited* (&M P A2 AR R AR

A A]), Wuxi Zhongyan Health Products Co. Limited* (&S5 HEE LA
R A 7]), Shenzhen Zhongsheng Chinese Commerce Bio-Tech Co.
Limited* (RJI T EZEEmEMEHEBR A F]). Ms. Zhu is primarily
responsible for the production of the Group. As at the date of this annual
report, Ms. Zhu was interested in approximately 0.10% of the Domestic
Shares.

Ms. Zhu joined the Company as a sales clerk of the sales department in
July 2003. She was promoted to be the chief production officer in January
2008. She was appointed as a Director in October 2012.

Ms. Zhu graduated from a part-time programme of the Open University of
China (formerly known as China Central Radio and Television University*
(Fp R EFEE AR K ) majoring in Business Administration in January
2008.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Jitong (FR#£7), aged 48, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 23 October 2018. Mr. Zhang holds a doctorate
degree in management majoring in agricultural economics management
from Nanjing Agricultural University and has been an associate professor
and a professor of the School of Business of Nanjing Normal University
from September 2005 to April 2011 and from May 2011 onwards,
respectively.

Mr. Zhang obtained a bachelor’s degree in laws majoring in ideological
and political education, and a master's degree in management majoring
in enterprise management, from Nanjing Normal University in July 1994
and June 2000, respectively. After Mr. Zhang had obtained a doctorate
degree in management from Nanjing Agricultural University in June 2005,
he further obtained a postdoctoral certificate in laws from Nanjing Normal
University.

Mr. Zhang was an independent director of Jiangsu Gaoke Petrochemical
Company Limited* (VT &k i BHA L& 10 B IR A &) from February 2014
to February 2017, the shares of which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (stock code: 002778).

* For identification purpose only
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Ms. Cai Tianchen (2 X 8), aged 47, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 23 October 2018. Ms. Cai completed an
accounting programme at Hangzhou Dianzi University (formerly known as
Hangzhou Institute of Electronic Engineering* (f/M &+ T ¥ 267)) in
October 1993, and is a non-practising member of the Institute of Certified
Public Accountants of Singapore since June 2001, a Chartered Financial
Analyst charterholder of the CFA Institute at Charlottesville, Virginia since
September 2004, a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since September 2007 and a fellow of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants since June 2012.

Ms. Cai has extensive experience in initial public offering, merger and
acquisition and restructuring gained at international accounting firms. Ms.
Cai has been a partner of the Shanghai office of Grant Thornton (A&
SHEMSE ST (R B A B)) since October 2013. Prior to joining Grant
Thornton, Ms. Cai has joined the Singapore office of Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as an auditor in February 1998, and was later promoted to a
manager in 2003 and then to a senior manager at the Shanghai office of
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.

Ms. Cai has been an independent non-executive director of China Jishan
Holdings Limited since 28 December 2017, and resigned on 31 December
2020. The shares of which are listed on the Singapore Exchange (stock
code: J18).

Mr. Wang Wei (£3£), aged 38, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 23 October 2018. Mr. Wang holds a doctorate
degree in food science. Mr. Wang has been a lecturer and an associate
professor at the College of Food Science and Technology at Nanjing
Agricultural University from December 2013 to December 2015 and from
December 2015 onwards, respectively. Mr. Wang has also been a council
member of the seventh session of the council of the Jiangsu Association
for Instrumental Analysis* (T & & 7 TRl 15 &) since July 2016,

Mr. Wang obtained a bachelor’s degree in food science and engineering
and a master’s degree in food science from Nanjing Normal University in
July 2006 and June 2009 respectively, and a doctorate degree in food
science from China Agricultural University in June 2012.

* For identification purpose only
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SUPERVISORS

The board of supervisors ("Supervisors”) of the Company (“Board of
Supervisors”) currently consists of four members. The following table
sets out certain information about the Supervisors.

oo
AARESE((BE)® ((BRSR)) B AGNER
BUER - TRESIEEMBHER o

Date of joining Date of Roles and
Name Age the Group Position/title appointment responsibilities
HE Fik MAXEEOES B EE ZEAH AERBE
Ms. Yu Min 42 16 September 2002 Chairman of the Board of 25 October 2012 General manager of the sales
Supervisors department of the Group in
Nanjing
REBLL 425% 2002F9 A 16 H EERXR 2012910 25 B AEERRHERALE
Ms. Wang Ping 34 30 June 2009 Supervisor 5 June 2020 Human resources manager of
the Company
EeLt 34 5% 20094 6 A30H BE=E 20006 A5H  ARFBANERKRE
Ms. Lu Jiachun 42 20 June 2001 Employee representative 25 October 2012 Accounting clerk
Supervisor
PEEM L L 4273% 200156 420 H BIRKRES 20124 10A 258 KRB
Ms. Chen Xiu 36 30 August 2003 Employee representative 16 May 2013 Supervision specialist
Supervisor
BRFB L+ 36 5% 2003F 8 A30H BTRRES 20135160 EHEEHSB

Ms. Yu Min (5£8)), aged 42, was appointed as the chairman of the Board
of Supervisors on 25 October 2012.

Ms. Yu graduated from Jinling Institute of Technology* (& & RH% Epz)
(formerly known as Nanjing Agricultural School* (B R 2 X ERIER))
majoring in Accounting in June 1999. As at the date of this annual report,

Ms Yu was interested in approximately 0.10% of the Domestic Shares.

In 2002, Ms. Yu joined the Company as an accounting clerk and was
promoted to be the sales manager of Nanjing in September 2004 and
customer relations manager in January 2008. Ms. Yu was subsequently
appointed as the chairman of the Board of Supervisors and continued to
be the customer relations manager. In July 2018, Ms. Yu was promoted as
the general manager of the sales department of the Group in Nanjing.

Ms. Wang Ping (E ), aged 34, obtained a bachelor’s degree in Chinese
language and literature, majoring in broadcasting and hosting art, from
Changzhou Institute of Technology* (&M T&B7) in June 2009. Ms.
Wang has joined the Company since June 2009. She first joined the
Company as a conference moderator and was later promoted to a human
resources officer. She is currently the human resources manager of the
Company.

* For identification purpose only
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Ms. Lu Jiachun (BE{E#L), aged 42, was appointed as the employee
representative Supervisor on 25 October 2012. Ms. Lu obtained a bachelor
degree in Business Administration from a part-time programme of the
Open University of China in October 2005.

Ms. Lu has been an accounting clerk of the Group since June 2001. In
October 2012, she was appointed as a member of the Board of
Supervisors.

Ms. Chen Xiu (B %), aged 36, was appointed as the employee
representative Supervisor on 16 May 2013. Ms. Chen graduated from
OLERCE B ZE T ZPT) (formerly
known as Jiangsu Vocational and Technical Institute of Economics and
(LERE 2B % EZ07)) majoring in Accounting in July

Jiangsu Institute of Commerce*

Commerce*
2004,

Ms. Chen joined the Group in August 2003 as a customer service clerk.

BEEMLZ LT 425 R2012F10825BEER T
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Since July 2009, she has been a supervision specialist. 200067 AR F—EETEEES -
SENIOR MANAGEMENT Ve AR P

Date of joining Date of Roles and
Name Age the Group Position/title appointment responsibilities
" Fip MAXEENEE BB ZEBH AERBE
Ms. Zhi Hui (27F) 40 4 June 2002 Secretary of the Board, 25 October 2012 Secretary of the Board,

joint company secretaries

company secretarial

matters

S L 405% 20024 6 A 4 H sEeWE 0129F10A25H EFeE
BRE AR RME NAMWEER
Mr. Li Bin (Z=x) 41 1July2013 Chief financial officer 1 July 2013 Finance management
ESn e 415% 20137 A1 H BRMBE 2013% 78 1H MBER
Mr.WuJun ((218) 37 4 September 2006 Financial controller 1 September 2013 Finance management
RERE 378% 200649 A4 H WS HaEs 20139 A1 H MG ER
* For identification purpose only
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Ms. Zhi Hui (2 #), aged 40, has more than 10 years of experience in the
nutritional supplements industry. She joined the Group in June 2002 as an
office clerk. She was promoted as the human resources manager of the
Company in January 2008. In October 2012, she became the secretary to
the Board and served as the joint company secretaries of the Company
concurrently. As at the date of this annual report, Ms. Zhi was interested in
approximately 0.07% of the Domestic Shares and 0.12% of the H Shares.

Ms. Zhi graduated from Sanjiang University majoring in Modern Company
Secretary in June 2002.

Mr. Li Bin (Z=3E), aged 41, was appointed as the chief financial officer of
the Company in July 2013. Mr. Li has more than 10 years of accounting
experience. He obtained a bachelor degree in Accounting from the
Nanjing University of Finance and Economics in August 2003 and was
admitted as a Certified Management Accountant of the United States in
July 2012.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Li was the financial controller of the finance
department of Nanjing SIXIN Scientific-Technological Application Research
Institute Co., Ltd.* (R R U FTRHZ FE AR ITATE R A &), a company
engaging in the development and production of Silicone and non-Silicone
foam control agents, between October 2003 and March 2007. He worked
in the finance department of CEEG (Nanjing) New Energy Co,, Ltd* (&
BERER)FEERABMR A R]), a company that engages in the research
and development, production, sale and services of solar energy
components, between June 2007 and September 2009 and the finance
department of the solar energy business unit of Jiangsu Sainty
International Group Machinery Import and Export Corporation Limited*
(L& RIS EEMEL ARG AR AR, a company that
engages in import and export trade, between October 2009 and October
2010.

Mr. Wu Jun (R &), aged 37, was appointed as the financial controller of
the Company in September 2013. Mr. Wu has more than 10 years of
experience in the nutritional supplements industry. He joined the Group
in September 2006 as an accounting clerk of the finance department of
Hangzhou Zhongyan Biological Products Co. Limited* (iu/1 &0 fift 4 # &Y
gn/A R A A]) and became an accounting clerk of the finance department
of the company in August 2008. He was promoted as the finance manager
of the Company in January 2011.

Mr. Wu graduated from Nanjing University of Technology (F 52 T # A £
majoring in Project Management in June 2006.

* For identification purpose only

THLL 405 EEEERBRBTERE T
ZEEE - HR2002F 6 BIAAEBRITRHAE
X8 - WK2008F 1 FERABERTANER
I8 o HR20NF10ARTESSWE @ RIRHEK
EARRBBEARWE - RAFHREAS 4L
WERNERFX007% 89z R HI A £0.12% 8]

e

.
fas o

TR EE2002F6 ARER =T 2R AW
g5

EWMELE M1 RN203F7 A-EZEAKRAT
BEVBKE ZTEEBERTFSTER - H#R
2003F 8 AMBBERUKERESHELEN - I
2012967 AKX AEBGMER S o

FEMARER Z AT - Z AR 20034 10 A £ 2007
FIRHEEREUFRERMEMBRAR (—
R ERENEEEHABINAEREEND
7)) GO TS B E - B RIR2007F6 HE
200949 A Hi [ & 2000410 A = 2010410 A A
FMERARFEER(EAR)FERERAR(—XK
WERIGEEAMIE - £FE - HEMRBEHATF)
B B 755 30 T AT Bk o8 K B B & B A AR 1 D IR
ARAF(—FZHEZELOESHAR) B -

REBKE 337m N203F9AEZET AKRAT]
I ME RELEEBRRERBAMTERAR
THLERR - BR2006F9 A IMAKRER - 1T
MAEMEMRRERARMBBLEE WK
2008 F 8 AEMEZ AR M HEIRE - R 2011
F1AESHAERRR ML -

REER2006F6 ARERFERIEAZBIERE
BR-

26 NANJING SINOLIFE UNITED COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020



Directors, Supervisors, Senior Management and Employees

wHE o EH - BREHE N ER

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. Zhi Hui (X 7F), serves as the secretary to the Board and one of the
joint company secretaries of the Company. Please refer to the paragraph
headed "Senior Management” above for her biography.

Ms. Kam Mei Ha Wendy (H 3£ 88), FCG, FCS (PF), aged 53, was appointed
as joint company secretaries of the Company on 7 November 2013. Ms.
Kam is an executive director of Corporate Services Division of Tricor
Services Limited, a global professional services provider specializing in
integrated business, corporate and investor services. Ms. Kam has over 20
years of extensive experience in the corporate secretarial field and has
been providing professional corporate services to Hong Kong listed
companies as well as multinational, private and offshore companies. Ms.
Kam is a Chartered Secretary and a Fellow of both The Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries ("HKICS") and The Chartered Governance
Institute. Ms. Kam is a holder of the Practitioner’s Endorsement from HKICS.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board delegates certain responsibilities to various committees. In
accordance with the relevant PRC laws and regulations and the corporate
governance practice prescribed in the Rules (the “Listing Rules”)
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the "Stock Exchange”), the Company has formed four Board
committees, namely the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee,
the Nomination Committee, and the Strategy and Development
Committee.

Audit Committee

The Board established an Audit Committee with written terms of
reference. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the
Board in reviewing the financial information and reporting process, risk
management and internal control systems, effectiveness of internal audit
function, scope of audit and appointment of external auditors, and
arrangements to enable employees of the Company to raise, in
confidence, concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters of the Company. At present, the Audit
Committee comprises Ms. Cai Tianchen, Mr. Zhang Jitong and Mr. Wang
Wei, the independent non-executive Directors. Ms. Cai Tianchen is the
chairman of the Audit Committee.
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Remuneration Committee

The Board established a Remuneration Committee with written terms of
reference. The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include
reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual Directors and senior management,
the remuneration policy and structure for all Directors and senior
management; and establishing transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any
of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration.
At present, the Remuneration Committee comprises Mr. Wang Wei and
Ms. Cai Tianchen, the independent non-executive Directors, and Ms. Zhu
Feifei, an executive Director. Mr. Wang Wei is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

Nomination Committee

The Board established a Nomination Committee with written terms of
reference. The primary functions of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the Board composition, developing and formulating relevant
procedures for the nomination and appointment of Directors, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and succession
planning of Directors, and assessing the independence of independent
non-executive Directors. At present, the Nomination Committee
comprises Mr. Zhang Jitong and Mr. Wang Wei, the independent non-
executive Directors, and Ms. Zhang Yuan, an executive Director. Mr. Zhang
Jitong is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

Strategy and Development Committee

The Board established a Strategy and Development Committee with
written terms of reference. The primary duties of the Strategy and
Development Committee are to conduct researches and submit proposals
concerning the long-term development strategies and material
investment decisions of the Company. At present, the Strategy and
Development Committee comprises Mr. Gui Pinghu, the Chairman and an
executive Director, and Mr. Zhang Jitong and Ms. Cai Tianchen, the
independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Gui Pinghu is the chairman of
the Strategy and Development Committee.
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EMPLOYEES

The Group maintains good working relations with its staff. It has not
experienced any significant problems with the recruitment and retention
of experienced employees. In addition, it has not suffered from any
material disruption of its normal business operations as a result of labour
disputes or strikes.

In the PRC, in accordance with relevant national and local labour and
social welfare laws and regulations, the Group is required to pay in respect
of its employees in the PRC various social security funds including basic
pension insurance, basic medical insurance, unemployment insurance,
occupational injury insurance, critical illness insurance, insurance for
maternity leave and housing provident fund.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company and is engaged in
the manufacturing and sale of nutritional supplements and the trading of
packaged health food products in the PRC, Australia and New Zealand.
Particulars of the principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out
in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

As far as the Company is aware, for the year ended 31 December 2020, it has
complied in material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the business and operation of the Company.

The Group recognises its responsibility to protect the environment from
its business activities. The Group continually seeks to identify and manages
environmental impacts attributable to its operational activities in order to
minimise these impacts if possible. The Group aims to maximise energy
conversation in its offices by promoting efficient use of resources and
adopting green technologies. For instance, the Group seeks to upgrade
equipment such as lighting and air-conditioning systems in order to
increase overall operating efficiency. To identify energy efficiency
opportunities, the Group measures and records the energy consumption
intensity from time to time.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for 2020 are set out in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 118 of this
annual report.

The Board has resolved not to declare any final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil) or any special dividend (2019: Nil).

As at the date of this annual report, the Board is not aware of any
shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”) who have waived or
agreed to waive any dividends.

Please refer to the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”
in this annual report for a business review of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the Group's property, plant and equipment
during 2020 are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements
of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the issued share capital of the Company
during 2020 are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements
of this annual report.
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RESERVES

The amount of the Company’s accumulated losses as at 31 December
2020 was RMB(277.2) million. Details of the movements in the reserves of
the Group during 2020 are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 121 of this annual report.

BORROWINGS

The Group did not have any outstanding borrowings or pledge of assets
as at 31 December 2020 (2019: RMB27.5 million). Please refer to note 34 to
the financial statements in this annual report for further information in
relation to financial risk management of the Company.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, the total revenue attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers was less than 30% and the revenue attributable to the Group's
largest customer was less than 10%.

For the Year, the total purchases attributable to the Group's five largest
suppliers were less than 30% and the purchases attributable to the
Group's largest supplier was less than 10%.

For the Year, none of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
Shareholders who, to the knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5%
of the number of the Company's issued shares, had any interest in the five
largest suppliers or customers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during 2020 and up to the date of this annual report are as
follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Gui Pinghu (Chairman)

Ms. Zhang Yuan (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Xu Li (Resigned on 15 January 2020)
Ms. Zhu Feifei

Non-executive Director
Ms. Li Fan (Resigned on 15 January 2020)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Zhang Jitong

Ms. Cai Tianchen

Mr. Wang Wei

No Director will be proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company ("AGM").
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SUPERVISORS

During 2020 and up to the date of this annual report, the Supervisors are
as follows:

Ms. Yu Min (Chairman)
Ms. Wang Ping

Ms. Lu Jiachun

Ms. Chen Xiu

The Board of Supervisors has held two meetings during 2020. Details of
the meetings and events conducted by the Board of Supervisors during
2020 are set out in the work report of the Board of Supervisors of this
annual report.

Details of biography of Directors, Supervisors and the senior management
of the Company are set out on pages 20 to 29 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS” AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract/letter of
appointment (for non-executive Directors) with the Company for a term
of three years and shall be elected by Shareholders at the general meeting
of the Company. Directors are eligible for re-election upon expiry of their
terms of office, which the successive terms of office of independent non-
executive Directors shall not exceed six years, in accordance with the
Company's articles of association (the “Articles”).

Each of the Supervisors has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years and may be re-elected. No Director or
Supervisor has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the Group to protect
the Directors and officers of the Group against any potential liability arising
from the Group’s activities which such Directors and officers may be held
liable.
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REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS

The remuneration of each Director is approved at AGM. Other
emoluments will be determined and recommended by the members of
the Remuneration Committee with reference to the duties, responsibilities,
performance of the Directors and the results of the Group.

Details of the emoluments of Directors, Supervisors and the highest paid
employees of the Company are set out in note 8 and note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report respectively.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group's emolument policies are formulated on the performance of
individual employee and on the basis of the salary trends will be reviewed
regularly. Subject to the Group's profitability, the Group may also distribute
discretionary bonus to its employees as an incentive for their contribution
to the Group.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, a confirmation of his or her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all the independent non-
executive Directors are independent in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS” AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company or its subsidiaries were
a party subsisted at the end of 2020 or at any time during the same year in
which any Director or Supervisor or any entity connected with the Director
or Supervisor had a material interest, either directly or indirectly.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

Other than the service contracts of the Directors, the Company has not
entered into any contract with any individual, firm or body corporate to
manage or administer the whole or any substantial part of any business of
the Company during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS” AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the Directors,
Supervisors and chief executives of the Company in the share capital and

R20200F 128318 BEF - EERARA SR
ERABRARRRERBEZER(TEREFSFRL
HEGO ([EHRBEFEG ) E XVED) BRA KA
BRMFPHEEARENBIEESFRBEGE
I IEETF M ERRMAES RAR SR ERE R
Fr LR BIM 8+ s E T AZE B HITE S
RS AETRI([EEFR ) AR ARA B KB
RETHER AR EHII T ¢

underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the "SFO")) as recorded in the register required to be kept under section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to

the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange, are set out below:

Capacity

&t

Nature of interest

BHME

Class of share
of the Company

AR FRGBER

Number
of shares
held as at

31 December
2020
20205
12A31H
FrEsRABE

Approximate
shareholding
percentage

in the relevant
class of shares®
REEER
AR HY R 49
BRESLE®

(%)

Approximate
shareholding
percentage

in the total
share capital®
R

R A
BREA LS

(%)

Mr. Gui Pinghu Director Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 494,053,628 (L) 73.32% 5221%
(‘Mr. Gui")? = BaBAA NER
ERai it Interest of spouse Domestic Shares 52,965,000 (L) 7.86% 5.60%
([EEE]O Al WA R
Beneficial owner H Shares 6,456,000 (L) 2.37% 0.68%
EEEAA H&
Ms. Zhang Yuan Director Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 6,599,550 (L) 0.98% 0.70%
TR T 5% BEEEAA NERR
Beneficial owner H Shares 218,000 (L) 0.08% 0.02%
EEEAA H&
Ms. Zhu Feifei Director Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 659,340 (L) 0.10% 0.07%
RRREL s BEEEAA NERR
Ms. Yu Min Supervisor Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 659,340 (L) 0.10% 0.07%
RERL EE BEEEEAA NERR
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Notes:
(1) The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in such securities.

(2) Mr. Gui is the spouse of Ms. Wu Yanmei. Under the SFO, Mr. Gui was deemed to be

interested in the same number of shares in which Ms. Wu Yanmei was interested.

(3) As at 31 December 2020, the number of total issued shares of the Company was
946,298,370.
) As at 31 December 2020, the number of issued Domestic Shares and H Shares was

673,828,770 and 272,469,600 respectively.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the Directors,
Supervisors and chief executives of the Company, or any of their spouses,
or children under 18 years of age, has any interests or short positions in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company, recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Directors’, Supervisors’ and
Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying
Shares”, at no time in 2020 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements which enable the Directors
and Supervisors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, and none
of the Directors and Supervisors, or any of their spouses or children under
18 years of age was granted any right to subscribe for the equity or debt
securities of the Company or any other body corporate nor had exercised
any such right.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND 5 SO B 5 B W R 5 R 25 %
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING ¥4
SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the persons
who hold 5% or more of the class shares in the issued share capital of the
Company (other than Directors and Supervisors), as recorded in the Franss  MARARFIE BT A BRI 5%
register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO A EAT (B REEERIN) BOREZS AR =5
and so far as it was known to Directors are set out below: mr

BEEME R2020F 128318 IHERAQFIR
BB N E GG 336 16 T EFa &L

Nature of interest

Class of share
of the Company

AR ERGER

Number
of shares
held as at

31 December
2020
#2020
12A31H
FrEReBE

Approximate
shareholding
percentage in
the relevant
class of shares®
RiEER &R

R AR HYBEAT
BEREA LW
(%)

Approximate
shareholding
percentage

in the total
share capital®
i

R R4
BERESRL®
(%)

Ms. Wu Yanmei® Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 52,965,000 (L) 7.86% 5.60%
RGO ERRAA WA R
Interest of spouse Domestic Shares 494,053,628 (L) 73.32% 52.21%
ALiBER WA R
Ms. Zhou Li Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 35,075/453 (1) 5.21% 3.71%
Bl EaBAA WER
Mr. Cheng Xiaowei® Interest of spouse Domestic Shares 35,075453 (L) 5.21% 3.71%
EUNES R FeEiE s WA R
Mr. Gui Ke Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 61,111,000 (L) 9.07% 6.46%
EREE ExBEAA NER
Ms. Li Shi® Interest of spouse Domestic Shares 61,111,000 (L) 9.07% 6.46%
FHRLO feBiEen WER
Mr. Chen Xuelin Beneficial owner H Shares 27,576,000 (L) 10.12% 291%
REMEE EGHAA Hi
Hin Sang Group (Interational) Beneficial owner H Shares 59,121,600 (L) 21.70% 6.25%
Holding Co,, Ltd.
TTHEE(ER)BERERAR ERfEA H iR
Genwealth Group Holding Interest of controlled H Shares 59,121,600 (L) 21.70% 6.25%
Company Limited corporation
MTEEEERARRRR RmEEER H iR
Ms. Kwan Lai Man® Interest of controlled H Shares 59,121,600 ()" 21.70% 6.25%
corporation
BEZLLY R LA R HAR
Interest of spouse H Shares 404,000 (L) 0.15% 0.04%
FdiEs HAR
Mr. Pang Siu Hin Interest of controlled H Shares 59,121,600 ()" 21.70% 6.25%
corporation
gORE R LE RS HiR
Beneficial owner H Shares 404,000 (L) 0.15% 0.04%
ExBEAA Hig
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Notes:
() The letter “L" represents long position in such securities.

(2) Ms. Wu Yanmei is the spouse of Mr. Gui. Under the SFO, Ms. Wu Yanmei was deemed to
be interested in the same number of shares in which Mr. Gui was interested.

(3) As at 31 December 2020, the number of total issued shares of the Company was
946,298,370.

(4) As at 31 December 2020, the number of issued Domestic Shares and H Shares was
673,828,770 and 272,469,600 respectively.

(5) Mr. Cheng Xiaowei is the spouse of Ms. Zhou Li. Under the SFO, Mr. Cheng Xiaowei was
deemed to be interested in the same number of shares in which Ms. Zhou Li was
interested.

6) Ms. Li Shi is the spouse of Mr. Gui Ke. Under the SFO, Ms. Li Shi was deemed to be
interested in the same number of shares in which Mr. Gui Kei was interested.

(7) These 59,121,600 H Shares were held by Hin Sang Group (International) Holding Co.,
Ltd, an exempted company incorporated with limited liability in the Cayman Islands
whose issued shares are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 6893). Hin Sang
Group (International) Holding Co., Ltd. was held as to 50.68% by Genwealth Group
Holding Company Limited, which is beneficially owned as to 90% by Mr. Pang Siu Hin
and 10% by Ms. Kwan Lai Man. Ms. Kwan Lai Man is the spouse of Mr. Pang Siu Hin.
Accordingly, Genwealth Group Holding Company Limited, Mr. Pang Siu Hin and Ms.
Kwan Lai Man were deemed to hold interests in these H Shares under the SFO.

(8) Ms. Kwan Lai Man is the spouse of Mr. Pang Siu Hin. Under the SFO, Ms. Kwan Lai Man
was deemed to be interested in the same number of shares in which Mr. Pang Siu Hin
was interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, the Company had not
been notified by any persons (other than Directors, Supervisors or the
chief executives of the Company) who had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which shall be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO and recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Details of the related party transactions of the Company for the Year and
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undertaken in the usual course of business are set out in note 32 to the FRGHBEHN G RENE o ZERIM
consolidated financial statements. None of these related party transactions FRSGHTER ETREFTRENETIRERE
constitutes a discloseable connected transaction as defined under the PR
Listing Rules.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has adopted a written terms of reference which are
in compliance with the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee currently comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Zhang Jitong, Ms. Cai Tianchen and Mr.
Wang Wei. The Audit Committee is primarily responsible for the review
and supervision of the financial reporting process, and risk management
and internal control system. It has reviewed the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Company and the audited final results of the
Group for the Year.

DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group has made charitable donations. Please refer to
section “5. Sincere dedication and giving back to the community” in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report in this annual report for
details of the donations made by the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or
applicable laws of the PRC where the Company is incorporated.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

No contract of significance has been entered into between the Company
or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling Shareholders or any of its
subsidiaries (as defined under the Listing Rules) during the Year.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

Mr. Gui Pinghu and Ms. Wu Yanmei, both being the controlling
Shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules), have made non-competition
undertakings in favour of the Company. They have confirmed compliance
with the non-competition undertakings. The Board, including the
independent non-executive Directors, is of the opinion that the relevant
controlling Shareholders have been in compliance with the non-
competition undertakings in favour of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with the code
provisions of the CG Code during 2020.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code governing
the Directors in their dealings in the Company's securities. The Company
has made specific enquiry with the Directors and all Directors confirmed
that they have complied with the Model Code during 2020.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

The H Shares were listed on the Stock Exchange. Neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries has purchased, redeemed or sold any of the
Company'’s listed securities during 2020.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

The total net proceeds (the “Net Proceeds”) from the listing of shares of
the Company on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and the issue of
the over-allotment shares amounted to approximately HK$428.7 million
(equivalent to RMB336.4 million).

As at 31 December 2020,

(i)  the Net Proceeds of approximately RMB72.0 million and RMBO0.8
million has been used on the acquisition of GHP, and for Living
Nature's product function enhancement;

(i) the Net Proceeds of approximately RMB95.1 million has been used
to build a R&D testing centre;

(i) the Net Proceeds of approximately RMB19.3 million has been used
to build information technology and logistics centre;

(iv)  the Net Proceeds of approximately RMB90.5 million has been used
on the marketing and promotion activities;

(v)  the Net Proceeds of approximately RMB13.5 million has been used
to expand the sales network and explore new markets; and

(vi)  the Net Proceeds of approximately RMB33.6 million has been used
for working capital and the remaining of the Net Proceeds of
approximately RMB11.6 million has been deposited into banks,
which are intended to be applied in accordance with the proposed
application set out in the circular of the Company dated 22
September 2017.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company's total
issued share capital was held by public as at the date of this annual report.
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AUDITOR

There was no change in auditor of the Company during the past three
years.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2020 were audited by Ernst & Young, who holds office until
the conclusion of the forthcoming AGM. A resolution of the
reappointment of Ernst & Young as the external auditor of the Company
respectively will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

OUTLOOK

The year of 2020 was meant to be extraordinary. In light of the outbreak of
COVID-19 at the beginning of the Year, the global economy, the living of
the public and ordinary business activities of enterprises have been
adversely affected. Facing the unexpected situations, the Group actively
responded and maintained ongoing operation of its business and
minimised the impact of COVID-19, while the safety and health of the
Group's employees is the top priority of the Group. The Group's strategic
plan has been focusing on Good Health brand and vigorously developing
sales channels for domestic distributors and e-commerce in the recent
years, with preliminary results achieved in early 2020. COVID-19 aroused
public attention to the health of themselves and their family members,
thereby increasing the sales revenue generated from immune products
under Good Health brand and maternity and child products.

It was no doubt that the huge market for dietary supplements in PRC,
people’s pursuit of health and ongoing high-standard supervision over
such industry by the PRC government created a good external
environment for the development of the Group. In 2021, the Group will
continue to focus resources on the development of Good Health brand,
distributors and e-commerce channels. The Group will accelerate the
innovation in the launch and marketing promotion of new products of the
maternity and child series under Good Health brand, optimise its supply
chain management and improve operational efficiency, so as to enhance
its overall profitability.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Gui Pinghu
Chairman

Nanjing, the PRC, 30 March 2021
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During the reporting period of 2020, the Board of Supervisors carefully and 2020 F EREHA - EFFEBIZRB(RRE)
thoroughly performed its supervisory functions in favor of the Company CREIER) (EF2 TIEMANMEMERE &
and the Shareholders in a responsible manner according to the Company HWETE  AEHEAD Tﬂ]%ﬂﬁﬁﬁ EMEE
Law, the Articles and the Rules of Procedures for the Board of Supervisors, RETHETTEBRSE  HAQAMKEEES

and the requirements under the relevant law and regulations, while duly

I Eﬂ%’l%ﬁ#%IEJ@ﬁT EEREBE - It

monitoring and examining the operations and financial conditions of the Gp

EEENE  ARFKEUNLREMSRER

Company according to the laws. In addition, the members of the Board, ABHEEENEBE TEBITRE ZHBAE -

the managers and other senior management members of the Company
performed their duties under the supervision of the Supervisors.

I. DAILY WORK OF THE BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS

In 2020, the Board of Supervisors convened two meetings.

On 27 March 2020, it considered the 2019 Work Report of the Board
of Supervisors of the Company, the Resolution on the 2019 Audited
Consolidated Financial Statements, the 2019 Financial Settlement of
the Company and the Resolution regarding the 2020 Financial
Budget of the Company, the Resolution on 2019 Profit Distribution
Plan of the Company, the Resolution regarding the Appointment of
Accountant and the Authorisation Granted at the General Meeting
to the Board to Determine Its Remuneration, the Resolution
regarding the Authorisation Granted at the General Meeting to the
Board to Determine the Remunerations of the Directors and
Supervisors, the Resolution on 2019 Statutory Reserve Withdrawal of
the Company, the Resolution where the Board is granted the
general mandate at the General Meeting to issue, allocate, and deal
with additional Domestic Shares and H Shares, both numbers of
which will be no more than 20% of the total amount of Domestic
Shares and H Shares of the Company in issue respectively, and the
Board is authorised to revise the Articles, as it sees fit, for the
purposes of reflecting the new shareholding structure upon the
allotment or issue of additional shares of the Company under the
relevant mandate, and the Resolution on the nomination of Wang
Ping as a candidate for Supervisors of the third session of the Board
of Supervisors.

On 28 August 2020, it considered the Resolution on Interim Results
for 2020 and Interim Dividend Distributions, the Resolution on
Material Internal Audit Findings for the Period Ended 30 June 2020
and the Resolution on Proposed Measures regarding Employees in
respect of Financial Reporting, Internal Auditing and other
Misbehaviours.
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LAWFUL OPERATION OF THE COMPANY

The Board of Supervisors attended the meetings of the Board
during the reporting period, and duly performed its supervisory
duties of operation activities of the Company. It effectively
discharged its supervisory duties on the project development and
employee incentives on a timely basis, thus fully delivering its duties
in the development of the Company in 2020.

In the opinion of the Board of Supervisors, the Company persisted
in standardised operations with due diligence in strict compliance
with the provisions under the Company Law and the Articles, as
well as conscientiously carrying out all resolutions at the general
meetings of the Company; the internal control system of the
Company was well established; disclosure of all information was
made on a timely and accurate basis; no violation against the laws,
regulations, or the Articles, or prejudice against the interests of the
Company was committed by the Directors and senior management
of the Company in the line of duty.

INSPECTION ON FINANCIAL STATUS OF THE
COMPANY

The Board of Supervisors reviewed the proposal on business
operation of the Company and its subsidiaries for 2020 and the
proposal on business plan of the Company for the financial year
2021.

In the opinion of the Board of Supervisors, the financial report of the
Company reflects its financial position and operation that are
complete, true and accurate. The annual operating results of the
Company have been audited by Ernst & Young LLP who has also
issued an audit report on it. The audit report is factual, fair and
objective.

INDEPENDENT OPINION OF THE BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS ON CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

The Board of Supervisors is of the view that the Group had no
connected transaction in 2020 which was subject to the reporting,
annual review, announcement and independent Shareholders’
approval requirements as set out in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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VL.

REVIEW OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS ON
THE INTERNAL CONTROL SELF-ASSESSMENT
REPORT

The Board of Supervisors has conducted a review on the internal
control report of the Company, and considered that the Company
has established an appropriate internal control system in all
important aspects and the internal control management system has
operated effectively, thus ensuring its consistent implementation
and normal business operations.

IMPLEMENTATION OF RESOLUTIONS
ADOPTED AT THE GENERAL MEETINGS

The members of the Board of Supervisors had no objection to the
contents of resolutions submitted to the general meetings of the
Company. The Board of Supervisors supervised the implementation
of resolutions passed at the general meetings of the Company, and
considered that the Board was able to implement the relevant
resolutions earnestly. The Board of Supervisors is of opinion that the
Board will carefully follow through the relevant resolutions at the
general meetings of the Company, without prejudicing the interests
of the Shareholders.

We hereby submit our report.

On behalf of Nanjing Sinolife United Company Limited*

The Board of Supervisors

Ms. Yu Min
Chairman

30 March 2021

For identification purpose only
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Corporate Governance Report
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The Board is pleased to report to the Shareholders on the corporate
governance of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining good corporate governance
standards.

The Board believes that good corporate governance standards are
essential in providing a framework for the Company to safeguard the
interests of Shareholders, enhance corporate value, formulate its business
strategies and policies, and enhance its transparency and accountability.

The Company has adopted the principles and code provisions of the CG
Code contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules as the basis of the
Company's corporate governance practices.

The Board is of the view that throughout the year ended 31 December
2020, the Company has complied with all the code provisions as set out in
the CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the
year ended 31 December 2020.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is headed by an effective Board which oversees the Group's
businesses, strategic decisions and performance and takes decisions
objectively in the best interests of the Company.

The Board should regularly review the contribution required from a
Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company, and whether
the Director is spending sufficient time performing them.
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BOARD COMPOSITION EESEK

The Board currently comprises 6 Directors, consisting of 3 executive EEXZHAHRESMEN  BEIERTEER
Directors and 3 independent non-executive Directors. 3BBIUIFITES o

During the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this HE2020FNANALFEEEARAFmRAH

annual report, the members of the Board are set out below: EEGHEHIAT
Executive Directors: BITEE:

Mr. Gui Pinghu (Chairman) EEREE(EFER)

Ms. Zhang Yuan (Chief Executive Officer) RRZ T (BEHTE)

Ms. Xu Li REBZ Lo

Ms. Zhu Feifei R Z =+

Non-executive Director: HHITEE

Ms. Li Fan @ =3l equnic!

Independent Non-executive Directors: BYIBITES :

Mr. Zhang Jitong SRAERY S A

Ms. Cai Tianchen BRERLT

Mr. Wang Wei FREESE

Notes: B sE

m Resigned as an executive Director with effect from 15 January 2020. m 202041 15 BRHEMITES -
)] Resigned as a non-executive Director with effect from 15 January 2020. ) 202041 A 15 HEHEIERITES -

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in the section BEEVBREENENAAFRFEWEBE[ES
headed "Directors, Supervisors, Senior Management and Employees” on EE . ofREEERES] —f-
pages 20 to 23 of this annual report.

None of the members of the Board is related to one another. BEAhNEEekERS —AXEG@EE -
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BOARD MEETINGS AND DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE RECORDS

Regular Board meetings should be held at least four times a year involving
active participation, either in person or through electronic means of
communication, of a majority of Directors.

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held a meeting
with independent non-executive Directors without the presence of other
Directors during the year ended 31 December 2020. Code provision A.2.7
of the CG Code has been revised to require that the chairman of the Board
should at least annually hold meetings with independent non-executive
Directors without the presence of other directors. Arrangements have
been made for compliance with the revised code provision which took
effect from 1 January 2019.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board held four meetings.
The attendance records of each of the Directors at the Board meetings of
the Company held during the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out in
the section headed “Attendance Records of Directors and Committee
Members” on page 55 of this annual report.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by Mr. Gui
Pinghu and Ms. Zhang Yuan respectively. The Chairman provides
leadership and is responsible for the effective functioning and leadership
of the Board. The Chief Executive Officer focuses on the Company’s
business development and daily management and operations generally.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least
three independent non-executive Directors representing one-third of the
Board with one of whom possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.
Ms. Cai Tianchen possesses the appropriate professional qualifications and
accounting expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received written confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors in respect of his/her independence
in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company considers all independent non-executive
Directors are independent.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

According to the Articles, Directors shall be elected by Shareholders at
general meeting of the Company and their term of office shall be three
years. Directors are eligible for re-election upon expiry of their terms of
office, while the successive terms of office of independent Directors shall
not exceed six years. Subject to the relevant laws, regulations and
regulatory rules of the place where the Company is listed, if the Board
appoints a new Director to fill up any interim vacancy or increase the
members of the Board, the term of office of such newly added Director
shall expire at the next general meeting of the Company and he/she is
eligible for re-election.

The independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a specific
term of 3 years, subject to renewal after the expiry of the then current
term.

RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES AND CONTRIBUTIONS
OF THE BOARD AND MANAGEMENT

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for directing and supervising the
Company's affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and
provides direction to management by laying down strategies and
overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group’s operational and
financial performance, and ensures that sound internal control and risk
management systems are in place.

All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient
and effective functioning.

The independent non-executive Directors are responsible for ensuring a
high standard of regulatory reporting of the Company and providing a
balance in the Board for bringing effective independent judgement on
corporate actions and operations.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the
Company and may, upon request, seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses for discharging
their duties to the Company.
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The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices held by
them.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy
matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of Directors and other
significant operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities relating
to implementing decisions of the Board, directing and co-ordinating the
daily operation and management of the Company are delegated to the
management.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes in
order to effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

Every newly appointed Director has received a formal and comprehensive
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the
Company and full awareness of director’s responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. Internally-
facilitated briefings for Directors would be arranged and reading material
on relevant topics would be provided to Directors where appropriate. All
Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the
Company's expenses.
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Directors have attended
trainings/seminars on topics such as (i) disclosure of information and
insider dealing; (ii) the corporate governance and directors’ skills; (iii)
updates on the regulations under the Listing Rules and directors’ on-going
responsibilities; (iv) connected transactions and the regulations on it; and
(v) the management of employees’ incentive scheme. The following
Directors have attended the trainings during the year ended 31 December
2020:

Name of Directors EEHE
Executive Directors BITEE
Mr. Gui Pinghu =&
Ms. Zhang Yuan SRR+
Ms. Xu Li® BT
Ms. Zhu Feifei RAAE L
Non-executive Director HFHITEE
Ms. Li Fan® BN
Independent Non-executive Directors BYHBITEE
Mr. Zhang Jitong SRS S A
Ms. Cai Tianchen BERELT
Mr. Wang Wei FEES
Notes:

(1) Resigned as an executive Director with effect from 15 January 2020.

) Resigned as a non-executive Director with effect from 15 January 2020.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, namely, the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Strategy and Development Committee, for overseeing particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company are
established with specific written terms of reference which specify clearly
with their authority and duties. The terms of reference of the Board
committees are posted on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website and are available to Shareholders upon request.

The list of the chairman and members of each Board committee is set out
under “Corporate Information” on page 2 of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Zhang Jitong, Ms. Cai Tianchen and Mr. Wang Wei.
Ms. Cai Tianchen is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are of no less exacting
terms than those set out in the CG Code. The main duties of the Audit
Committee are to assist the Board in reviewing the financial information
and reporting process, risk management and internal control systems,
effectiveness of the internal audit function, scope of audit and
appointment of external auditors, and arrangements to enable employees
of the Company to raise concerns about possible improprieties in financial
reporting, internal control or other matters of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Audit Committee held two
meetings to review, amongst other things, the annual financial results and
reports in respect of the year ended 31 December 2019 and discussed on
2020 audit plan. The Audit Committee also considered significant issues
on the internal audit, review the effectiveness of internal control systems,
appointment of external auditors and relevant scope of works and
arrangements for employees to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other matters.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditors twice during the year
ended 31 December 2020, without the presence of the executive
Directors.

The attendance of each of the members of the Audit Committee at the
Audit Committee meetings held during the year ended 31 December
2020 is set out in the table under section headed “Attendance Records of
Directors and Committee Members".
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee consists of one executive Director, namely
Ms. Zhu Feifei, and two independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms.
Cai Tianchen and Mr. Wang Wei. Mr. Wang Wei is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code. The primary functions
of the Remuneration Committee include reviewing and making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual Directors and senior management, the remuneration policy and
structure for all Directors and senior management; and establishing
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy and
structure to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates will
participate in deciding his/her own remuneration.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Remuneration Committee
met once to review and make recommendation to the Board on the
remuneration policy and structure of the Company and the remuneration
packages of the Directors and senior management.

Details of the remuneration of the senior management by band for the
year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 8 to the financial
statement of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The attendance of each of the members of the Remuneration Committee
at the Remuneration Committee meeting during the year ended 31
December 2020 is set out in the section headed “Attendance Records of
Directors and Committee Members”.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee consists of one executive Director, namely
Ms. Zhang Yuan, and two independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Zhang Jitong and Mr. Wang Wei. Mr. Zhang Jitong is the chairman of
the Nomination Committee.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code. The principal duties of
the Nomination Committee include reviewing the Board composition,
developing and formulating relevant procedures for the nomination and
appointment of Directors, making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and succession planning of Directors, and assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee would
take into account various aspects as well as factors concerning Board
diversity as set out in the Company’s Board Diversity Policy (as explained
below under the section headed “Board Diversity Policy”). The Nomination
Committee will discuss and agree on measurable objectives for
implementing the Board Diversity Policy and recommend them to the
Board for adoption.

The Nomination Committee met once in 2020 to review the structure, size
and composition of the Board and the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors. The Nomination Committee also considered the
qualifications of the retiring executive and non-executive Directors and
recommended to the Board for re-election. During the year ended 31
December 2020, Ms. Xu Li and Ms. Li Fan resigned as an executive Director
and non-executive Director respectively. The Nomination Committee
considered an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of the Board is
maintained.

The attendance of each of the members of the Nomination Committee at
the Nomination Committee meeting during the year 31 December 2020 is
set out in the section headed "Attendance Records of Directors and
Committee Members”.
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STRATEGY AND DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

The Strategy and Development Committee consists of one executive
Director, namely Mr. Gui Pinghu, and two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Zhang Jitong and Ms. Cai Tianchen. Mr. Gui Pinghu
is the chairman of the Strategy and Development Committee.

The principal duties of the Strategy and Development Committee are to
conduct researches and submit proposals concerning the long-term
development strategies and material investment decisions of the
Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Strategy and Development
Committee met once to review the development strategies for the year
2020 and the material investment decisions of the Company.

The attendance of each of the members of the Strategy and Development
Committee at the Strategy and Development Committee meeting during
the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out in the section headed
"Attendance Records of Directors and Committee Members”.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy which sets out the
approach to achieve diversity of the Board. The Board Diversity Policy is
available on the website of the Company.

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board to enhance the quality of its performance. A true diverse Board will
include and make good use of differences in the skills, regional and
industry experience, background, race, gender and other qualities of
Directors. These differences will be taken into account in determining the
optimum composition of the Board. All Board appointments will be based
on merit while taking into account the diversity (including gender
diversity). The Company aims to build and maintain a Board with a
diversity of Directors, in terms of skills, experience, knowledge, expertise,
culture, independence, age and gender.
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DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authority for selection and
appointment of Directors to the Nomination Committee of the Company.

The Company has adopted a Director Nomination Policy which sets out
the selection criteria and process and the Board succession planning
considerations in relation to nomination and appointment of Directors. It
aims to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the Company and the continuity
of the Board and appropriate leadership at Board level.

The Director Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing the
suitability and the potential contribution to the Board of a proposed
candidate, including but not limited to the following:

Character and integrity;

Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills, knowledge
and experience that are relevant to the Company’s business and
corporate strategy and diversity aspects under the Board Diversity
Policy;

Requirements of independent non-executive Directors on the Board
and independence of the proposed independent non-executive
Directors in accordance with the Listing Rules; and

Willingness, ability to devote adequate time and relevant interest to
discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or Board
committee(s) of the Company.

The Director Nomination Policy also sets out the procedures for the
selection and appointment of new Directors and re-election of Directors
at general meetings.

The Nomination Committee will review the Director Nomination Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the code
provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies and
practices, training and continuous professional development of Directors
and senior management, the Company's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the
Model Code and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this corporate governance report.

ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each Director at the Board meetings, Board
Committee meetings and the general meetings of the Company held
during the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out in the table below:
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KR

EEREEEREHERE
TREVSEENHE2020F12A31BILFE

RETHESRRAREEERRRAEURAR
AIBIRAR 2 328K -

Attendance/Number of Meetings

BELERHRRY

Audit Remuneration
Committee Committee

Name of Directors ERZ8e FMzEE
Mr. Gui Pinghu EFHEE 4/4 - -
Ms. Zhang Yuan RRZT 4/4 - -
Ms. Xu i @ %é\)?gﬁim _ _ -
Ms. Zhu Feifei RRRIL 44 - 11
Ms. Li Fan®@ ?Rﬁi(z) _ _ -
Mr. Zhang Jitong REM A 4/4 ) -
Ms. Cai Tianchen ERRLT 44 " 11
Mr. Wang Wei TBREE 4/4 22 11
Notes:

Q) Ms. Xu Li resigned as an executive Director on 15 January 2020.

) Ms. Li Fan resigned as a non-executive Director on 15 January 2020.

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held a meeting
with the independent non-executive Directors without the presence of
other Directors during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Other

Strategy and Annual General

Nomination Development General Meetings
Committee Committee Meeting (if any)
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management and
internal control systems of the Company and its subsidiaries and
reviewing their effectiveness annually. Such systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has the responsibility for establishing, maintaining and
evaluating effective risk management and internal control systems. The
Board of Supervisors is responsible for supervising the Board on the
establishment and implementation of risk management and internal
control systems. The management is responsible for coordinating and
monitoring the risk management and internal control progress. The Audit
Committee assists the Board in leading and coordinating matters
regarding internal control, overseeing the design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems.

The Audit Department of the Company is responsible for performing
independent review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems. The Audit Department of the
Company examines key issues in relation to accounting practices and all
material controls and provides its findings to the Audit Committee.

The objectives of risk management and internal control systems of the
Company are to ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations,
safeguard the Company’s assets, maintain proper accounting records and
improve operational efficiency, so as to achieve strategic development.

The Company’s risk management and internal control systems include
different functions and areas, namely organizational structure, strategic
development, human resources, asset management, sales and purchase,
finance and accounting, information technology, internal audit, contract
management and administration.
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The Company has developed and adopted various risk management
procedures and guidelines with defined authority for implementation by
key business processes. The control activities are mainly carried out
through the following:

1. Implement segregation of duties when establishing defined
business processes and work responsibilities;

2. Based on the actual needs of business processes of each business
unit, define approval and authorisation limits, approval process and
responsibilities;

3. Establish accounting procedures by strictly following accounting
standards and framework, enhance the quality and level of
accounting work and improve accounting work procedures; and

4. Set up and evaluate regularly on the procedures regarding the use
and management of assets and safeguard the Company’s assets by
defining clear business processes and work responsibilities.

The Company’s self-evaluation on internal control systems has the
following features and processes:

1. Communicate with middle and senior management to collect risk
information, conduct analysis and identify high risk areas that the
Company may face for establishing and implementing internal
control systems and defining the scope and key areas;

2. Identify key risk information, define clear risk management
responsibilities and adopt the requirements of risk management
and internal control, based on the conditions of internal control
systems of all business processes of the Company;

3 Identify design defects by verifying and evaluating the
implementation and efficiency of internal control systems through
walk-through testing;

4. Discover defects during the implementation of internal control
systems by evaluating key control activities samples which are
extracted based on the frequency of occurrence; and

5. Identify material weakness of internal control systems from business
process perspectives and improve according to the findings and
report of the Audit Department of the Company. Implement and
test on the improved internal control systems and verify its
effectiveness.
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During the self-evaluation process, the Company has adopted methods
such as interviews, walk-through testing and sampling to broadly collect
evidence in relation to the effectiveness of internal control design and
implementation, accurately analysing and identifying the defects of the
internal control systems. Self-evaluation has been conducted annually to
confirm that the control policies are properly complied with.

The management has confirmed to the Board on the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems for the year ended 31
December 2020.

The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee as well as the internal
audit findings, reviewed the risk management and internal control
systems, including the financial and non-financial controls for the year
ended 31 December 2020, and considered that such systems are effective
and no material defects were found.

Arrangements are in place to facilitate employees of the Company to raise,
in confidence, concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters of the Company.

The Company has developed disclosure policies, such as Procedures for
Information Disclosure Management, Procedures for Internal Reporting of
Material Information and Procedures on Registration of Insiders, which
provide a general guide to the Directors, officers, senior management and
relevant employees of the Company in handling confidential information,
monitoring information disclosure and responding to enquiries.

Control procedures have been implemented to ensure that unauthorized
access and use of inside information are strictly prohibited.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 111 to 117 of this annual report.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s external auditors in
respect of audit services and non-audit services for the year ended 31
December 2020 is set out below:

o BB 357 P

MEE2020F 12831 BIEFENEZIRT & IF
EZREN AT, TR AR B INEZ EREM 2 % BN
T -

Fees Paid/Payable

Service Category i %% Rl B ENEA
ARET T

Annual audit services, Ernst & Young FEEZIRGE  TREAEIEBLBET 2,380

Non-audit Services IEEZ RS

— Environmental, Social and Governance reporting advisory — 1815 « 1+ & KB QM E K 150

COMPANY SECRETARY DEME

Ms. Zhi Hui and Ms. Kam Mei Ha Wendy have been appointed as the
Company’s joint company secretaries. Ms. Zhi Hui is experienced in the
health food and nutritional supplements industry and has a thorough
understanding of the operation of the Board and the Company.

In order to uphold good corporate governance and ensure compliance
with the Listing Rules and applicable Hong Kong laws, Ms. Kam Mei Ha
Wendy of Tricor Services Limited, an Asia’s leading business expansion
specialist specialising in integrated business, corporate and investor
services, has been engaged by the Company as its joint company
secretary. Her primary contact persons at the Company are Ms. Zhi Hui,
another joint company secretary of the Company and Mr. Li Bin, the chief
financial officer of the Company.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the joint company
secretaries on corporate governance and Board practices and matters.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, both Ms. Zhi Hui and Ms. Kam Mei
Ha Wendy have undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training respectively in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolution should
be proposed for each substantially separate issue at general meetings of
the Company, including the election of individual Directors.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings of the Company will be
voted by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange after each
general meeting of the Company.

CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

Pursuant to Articles 55 and 67 of the Articles, Shareholder(s) individually or
collectively holding 10% or more of the outstanding shares of the
Company carrying voting rights may request the Board to convene an
extraordinary general meeting by sending a written requisition with an
explanation of the matters proposed to be discussed at the meeting.

PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT GENERAL MEETINGS

Shareholders who individually or collectively holding more than 3% of the
shares of the Company may submit a proposal to the Board in writing 10
days before the date of the general meeting of the Company, at the
Company’s registered office in PRC or the principle place of business in
Hong Kong. The Board shall notify other Shareholders within 2 days of
receiving the proposal and include it for consideration at the general
meeting of the Company. The matters stated in the proposal must be
within the functions and powers of the general meeting of the Company
and it shall have a clear subject and specific resolutions.

Apart from aforesaid matters, the convener shall not amend the proposals
stated in the notice of the general meeting of the Company or add new
proposals upon issuance of the announcement on the notice of the
general meeting of the Company.

PUTTING FORWARD ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, Shareholders may send
written enquiries to the Company. The Company will not normally deal
with verbal or anonymous enquiries.
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CONTACT DETAILS

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above to
the following:

Address:

30/F, Deji Building

188 Chang Jiang Road

Xuanwu District

Nanjing

Jiangsu Province

The PRC

(For the attention of the Company Secretary)

Fax: 86-25-86819167
Email:  zhihui@zs-united.com

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholder(s) must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as
the case may be) to the above address and provide their full name,
contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.

Shareholders may call the Company at 86-25-86819188 for any assistance.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with Shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding of
the Group’s business performance and strategies. The Company
endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with Shareholders and in
particular, through AGM and other general meetings of the Company. At
the AGM, Directors (or their delegates as appropriate) are available to
meet Shareholders and answer their enquiries.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company has not made
any changes to its Articles.
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POLICIES RELATING TO SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has in place a Shareholders” Communication Policy to
ensure that Shareholders’, both individual and institutional, views and
concerns are appropriately addressed. The policy is regularly reviewed to
ensure its effectiveness.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company has adopted a
Dividend Policy on declaration and payment of dividends. The Company
does not have any pre-determined dividend payout ratio. Depending on
the financial conditions of the Company and the Group and the
conditions and factors as set out in the Dividend Policy, dividends may be
proposed and/or declared by the Board during a financial year or period
and any final dividend for a financial year which will be subject to the
Shareholders’ approval.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Overview
This report is the fifth Environmental, Social and Governance (hereinafter
referred to as the "ESG") report of Nanjing Sinolife United Company
Limited (referred to as the “Company” or “Sinolife United” hereto,
collectively with its subsidiaries referred to as the “Group” or “we") (Stock
Code: 3332).

This report covers the ESG performance for the financial period from 1
January 2020 to 31 December 2020 (the “Reporting Period").

Basis of Preparation

This report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (the “Guide”) as set forth in the Appendix 27
to the Listing Rules issued and amended by the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) in December 2015, which is in

compliance with the principles of “materiality”, “quantitative”, “balance”,
and “consistency”.

The contents of this report are determined in accordance with a set of
systemic procedures. Such procedures include identifying and listing
important stakeholders and ESG-related issues, determining the scope of
the ESG reports, collecting relevant materials and data, compiling reports
based on information and verifying data in this report.

Scope and Coverage of the report

The policies, statements, and data given in this report cover the Company
and its subsidiaries.

The subsidiaries of the Company involved in the production of products
mainly include: Nanjing Zhongsheng Bio-Tech Co. Limited* (g &/ A4
¥ &l 5 B BB A 7] ) (“Zhongsheng Bio-Tech”), Living Nature Natural
Products Limited (“Living Nature”), Good Health Products Limited (“Good
Health") and Cobayer.

Data Description

Information and cases adopted in this report are mainly sourced from the
statistics report and related documents of the Group. The Group
undertakes that this report does not contain any false record or misleading
statements, and is responsible for the truthfulness, accuracy and
completeness of its contents.

Confirmation and Approval
The report was approved by the Board on 30 March 2021 after
confirmation with the management.

Contacts

30/F, Deji Building, 188 Chang Jiang Road, Xuanwu District, Nanjing
Tel: 86-25-86819188

Fax: 86-25-86819167

Website: http://www.zs-united.com

E-mail: sinolife@zs-united.com

*

For identification purpose only
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1. RESPONSIBLE AND STABLE MANAGEMENT 1. HEED  BEKE
We are committed to integrating the concept of sustainable BB ARBLENFEREEISRA
development of the Company into the Group's development NEERREKD RS ERES R
strategy, clarifying the rights and responsibilities and decision- REF TREBEERREEE IS -
making procedures at all levels. While actively building efficient BREREEARE AEENRE - B
corporate control mechanism and strictly implementing BEREFEBEALZENEEZ  THIREASEER
comprehensive risk control measures, we maintain solid and mutual FRRIEKE » UEREEAEMZ T HE -

trust relationship with investors to constantly improve the
governance of the group, thereby achieving value creation and win-
win situation among multiple parties.

1.1 ESG governance structure 1.1 {RPEARE
The Group has continuously improved its ESG management REBTEHEESCERER BN
system and established the governance structure consisting THEFZ ESCGEEZESZMESGT
of the Board, the ESG Management Committee and the ESG E/NEAERKREIERHE  FEESGHDR
Task Force, so that the ESG governance structure can be more BEBEEINEENL - BB RE
standardized and refined while performing its own function B BESR BB - BRI E R B
for each system thereunder, to achieve sustainable B’ o

development.

® Responsible for assessing and determining the ESG risks of the Group
BETARECEEERARE g RkELNER

® Ensuring the establishment of a proper and effective ESG risk management

B d and internal control system of the Group
Oar BREERTAEREROESE  HERELAAREERABELRS
%$§' ® Reviewing and approving the ESG related policies

FHIRE - e REREEEE
® Reviewing and approving the ESG report
FHIRE e RERARE

® |mplementing the ESG risk management and internal control

ESG HITERE - £ g RE R BT kAR EE
Management ° Dbir\;ctggﬁthe\ work o;tfjﬁ ESG task force
g EERE e RERTIEENTIE
Commlttee ® Reviewing th\e ESG related policies
ESG%@ HHRE e REREBEEER
%E @. ° Revie\ging th‘e ESG ri[(x\)rt,iand verifgng;ﬁhe licacﬁuracy of\\the pyerformance indicators
= FHRE L REAWME - BABMIEREIRMERE T

) 4

e Appointing personnel to collate the ESG related data and prepare reports and other work

ESG ZHH AR EESCHRMBENKENRE ARSI
TaSk Force e Assisting the management of the Group in assessing and determining whether the
Group's ESG risk management internal control system is proper and effective by
ESG submitting regular reports
I'f’ﬁlj\ﬁﬂ EHREEEREES  UBHFEREEARERRE - HE REAH

FERREE R AREERGER S BENREN
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Identification of and communication with
stakeholders

We are profoundly aware that support from various
stakeholders is essential to our sound and stable
development. The Group has always adhered to the concept
of respecting all stakeholders, to constantly strengthen our
ESG management. We always maintain close communication
and interaction with six major stakeholders, including
government regulators, shareholders, investors, suppliers,
media, employees and the public, actively respond to the
concerns of all stakeholders and strive to protect the rights
and interests of various stakeholders.

Employees
BT
Consumers
and the public
WHE B AR
edia
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While actively establishing and improving a diversified
communication mechanism with its stakeholders, and

listening to and responding to the concerns of various
stakeholders in good faith and in a timely manner, the Group
strives to maintain a long-term stable and mutually
trustworthy relationship with its stakeholders in order to
maximize the common value of the Group and its

stakeholders. The following table sets out the key concerns of
different stakeholder groups during the Reporting Period.

Stakeholders

R A

Expectations and propositions

HERER

AEBEREGEEMT S BER AR
BZITACHS] - B BE IR &
BERDABIZENRE  BhgE
HESARYIBE  MEEBORY
BE AEREENSERANKR
BESAL - TRIILBRSHATF
e AR BRI MEE -

Means of communication and responses

BEEDESRX

Governments and regulators

BITEREEHE

Shareholders and investors

BRRZEE

Suppliers
HEE

Media
HEe

Employees
8T

Consumers and the public
HEERRAR

To fully implement national policies,

laws and regulations
To promote local economic development
To drive local employment
ERCEERREEERER
R 7 B R
mE T R

To provide return

To ensure operating compliance

To ensure safety production

Yz m R

BRES

TEEE

To fulfill contractual obligations
according to law

To ensure honest operations

To manage supply chain

HOEEL

HIEEE

iyl

To ensure operating compliance
To ensure product responsibility
To participate in public activities
BREE

EmEE

NGICE)

To protect employee rights

To provide remuneration and fringe benefits
To provide career development
it 2

=R

BRER

To provide products and services
To be involved in public welfare and charity
To ensure green raw materials and

To file reports

To provide advice and recommendations

To engage in discussions and submit
special reports

it 34t

BEERE

AT EE R

To issue company announcements

To release special reports

To invite to site visits
NGIMN-S

BEER
BREEMER

To engage in business negotiations
To engage in on-site studies

To engage in exchanges

EER

B 5 S

25325 Ay 2K
A AR

To publish news release/announcements

To hold meetings

To invite to site visits

GilE YN

S

BRERSER

To hold employee representative meetings

To ensure collective negotiation

To provide democratic communication
platforms

BIKKRAE

SR

SSE - SEREE

To provide a company website

To release company announcements
To address customer feedback

productions NGIEEN
7= mn B AR 7 NCIVN S
Nt BPRE
BERMEREE
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Materiality to Stakeholders

638

Medium materiality

1.3 Determination of material issues

During the Reporting Period, in accordance with the
requirements of the Guide, the Group conducted internal and
external analysis to identify issues that reflect the Group's
impact on the economy, environment and society, and affect
the assessment and decision of stakeholders on the Group,
and conducted in-depth interviews with various stakeholders
by taking into account the Group's overall strategy, industry
policy trends, media coverage and ESG regulatory
requirements, in which case, the materiality matrix for the
Reporting Period was derived adjustments and upgrade
made to the ESG material issues matrix for last year in respect
of the impact on the sustainability of the Company and our
stakeholders. The results are as follows:

R

T R o

1.3 FORHE R

BEHRN AREREB(EINDNE
ko BBRINEB DN - BRI RE 5 [ R
AEBELE RENTLENTE
AR & e AN AN B RS FRE
MRS WHEAEEREERE 17X
BERBY - HIEEHEHESCEE RN -
EEED AR TRANGH  EQ
AAHEERNES ANFERES
| ¥ E—FEESCEREEBEERE
HEITTHBMER - KT ARSH
MBAMERERERE  ERIT

High materiality

Materiality to the Group’s sustainability ¥ EB A FEXENEEZ®
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Concerned topics

Concerned topics

10

12

13

BXERRE

Culture and business value
XL R B

Industry trends and policies
THEBZRBEK
Anti-corruption

RIB1E 5k

Operating compliance
BRRE

Supplier management
fEmEE

Intellectual property rights
AR ERE

Water resources management
IKERETR

Pollutants management
TERYE TR

Energy management
BRE R

Carbon footprint

B2

Climate change

TIREHE

Impact of business on natural environment

EBHAARETE
Product quality
EmEE

22

23

24

25

BXEE

Product innovation

E n Rl ET

Customer interests and rights

EFREHS

Customer complaint management
BEFERFERE

Customer experience

EFBER

Communication with communities and governments
HE - BAES

Community engagement

HESeR

Public charity

INGES

Employee remuneration and benefit

8 T 3B ez A

Occupational safety and health of employees
BETRXRERZS

Employee development and training

BT HREEEI

Employee equality and diversity

BT RAFHEZT

Protection of employees’ rights and interests

ETHERRE
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1.4 Operating compliance

70

Honest and compliance serve as the bottom line of business
operation, and also the cornerstone of sustainable business
development. In terms of business operations, the Group will
continue to deeply implement and improve the requirements
of fighting against corruption, monopoly and unfair
competition, strengthen its issue-oriented, risk-oriented ,
value-oriented and strategy-oriented approach, by
integrating compliance management into the whole process
of production and construction and operation management,
and strive to build all-employee, all-process and all-dimension
compliance management system, so as to safeguard the
legitimate rights of consumers, shareholders, and other
stakeholders.

Ethical rules

The Group promotes a fair and impartial competition
marketplace, and wishes to promote an orderly industrial
development and drive industrial potential by regulating its
own business conduct. In accordance with various laws and
regulations, including the Law Against Unfair Competition of
the People’s Republic of China and Certain Opinions of the
State Council on Promoting Fair Competition in the Market
and Maintaining the Normal Order of the Market, the Group
strives hard to pursue the regulated and transparent
development model in the midst of maintaining a normal
and healthy market competition landscape, and subjects itself
to public scrutiny to establish a good reputation in the
industry and even the community.

Clean and honesty

The Group is always committed to maintaining a business
environment of fairness and integrity, as well as pursuing the
moral values, by regarding corruption-related misconduct as
the “warning line” for management. We require our
employees and suppliers to comply with various laws and
regulations, including the Criminal Law of the People’s
Republic of China and the Labor Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China, as well as to pursue practices in
compliance with the business ethics and norms. We provide
in our Employee Code of Conduct and Code of Business
Conduct that our employees shall follow the business
etiquette when engaging with the customers, business
partners, and suppliers. Over the course of purchase, the
Group strictly implements the centralized procurement
standards, and stipulates the terms governing anti-corruption
and anticommercial bribery in procurement contracts,
pursuant to which, corruption and bribery risks arising from
the procurement process are brought under strict control. As
regards sales, we redouble the efforts to supervise key
department and positions, and our employees are
encouraged to actively build the good corporate image. In
addition, we will continue to improve our honest
development and management capability. In the meantime,
we will constantly improve the whistleblowing management
system and procedures in respect of bribery practice and
corruption, while keeping various complaint and
whistleblowing channels available. Furthermore, we will
continue to improve the protection mechanism and offer
appropriate rewards for our whistleblowers. During the
Reporting Period, we did not identify any case involving
corruption and litigation.
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The Whistleblowing Procedures of the Group

ACSE B SR R A

Managers in Headquarters’
whilrflltet:lrlii/lvin diftexprlh Morﬂtoring ﬁgﬂg%‘r Board
S§ D locations Department @g ) EEE
External General
whistleblowing Manager Board
SR Hug ik

2. LEAN PRODUCTION, INNOVATION, AND
SERVICE COMMITMENTS

Product quality and innovation are important factors for the stable
and sustainable development of the Company. The Group strictly
controls the quality of its products and every process of its
production line, while building a good image and reputation in the
industry by conducting active innovation and providing dedicated
services.

2.1 Quality assurance

With efforts made to build a “quality management ecosystem
for the entire industry chain”, the Group strives to create “all-
employee, all-process, and all-dimension” quality
management system. We are committed to conducting
quality control over the entire process of raw material
introduction, product production, packaging and
transportation, so as to provide customers with quality health
products and strive to “ensure our customers to enjoy our
products with assurance and ease (FEZ FIZF ML - B
)"

s g BT o 5k e

EMGERANECEBIRBERRNE
ZRR-AEERTERLEEMH  BIELE
TEREERNT —FERE  REEKAE
oRORE  EOEPBIRINER
MO o

2.1 EERE
AEBEHNBRIZEXBEEER
FREE] BHITEIZ2E - 2B
EHUINEEETERR - ZFEN
REMBSIE  EREE - BENE
BN RREERE  ARFREE
THREER BHKIEBEFE
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Quality control

The Group is committed to offering high-quality products.
We strictly comply with the Dietary Supplements Regulations
1985, the Biosecurity Act 1993, the Animal Products Act 1999,
the Food Act 2014 and the Good Manufacturing Practice
(GMP), as well as other standards on production
management, quality and sanitation of each place where we
operate our business, to ensure that various inspections meet
the product standards of the place where we sell our
products.

Zhongsheng Bio-Tech possesses HACCP food safety system
certification, our production workshops is operated by the
100,000-grade dust-free workshop standard with on-site
quality assurance personnel, can fully ensure our production
conditions fall in line with the relevant production
requirements.

Living Nature holds the production standard certificate in
compliance with the Cosmetic, Toiletry & Fragrance
Association (CTFA), the highest international standard.
Through the establishment of complete systems and
procedures, we set high production standards and conduct
continuous inspection to ensure high-quality production
from raw materials to finished products. During the Reporting
Period, Living Nature updated its disinfection and cleaning
equipment, and established risk assessment matrix for newly
added components or newly developed products to further
optimize production quality. In order to ensure the quality
control over the whole manufacturing process, Cobayer
Health Food conducted various tests and retains samples for
products by manufacturers at different stages, including raw
materials, packing materials and finished products, to achieve
product traceability.

BEEY

REBER IR AEFPRESEENE
m o BPEEETER BB -
1985) ~ CEM R 2IEZ + 1993) ()
YIE RIRZE - 1999) AR B MIAZE
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FARIBBAHACCPERZ2BEER
BBV AAESEREN0BHFLLE
MIZE - RAEELERSEEEE
RFEAB QA 2EBREERER
AEEEK-

Living Nature % & 75 & BU BR & = 12 %8
— CTFA (Cosmetic, Toiletry & Fragrance
Association + Bt trdn « BER mA
BRKBE)NEERBAE - BBE
YRENRRERF RIBFEL
ZE - TEHRERR - RELRMEE
e S EE- WEH A Lving
Nature B3 THE - BRRM - LY
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To ensure product safety during the pandemic, as at the end
of the Reporting Period, we formulated the Management
Measures for Prevention and Control of Pandemic in
Imported Goods and established a leading group for
prevention and control of pandemic in imported goods in
accordance with the Law of the People’s Republic of China

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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RERRBFHRANERRZE  REE
HIR - RARB(PEARKXMEE
FmaE) REBREIE - (REA
RAMBBESRHEREEL) REE
AR B 55 B AR RE D BN E EE -
ETCENEYRIBIIZEERIE) -

on Prevention and Treatment of Infectious Diseases and its AR ST B YR IS saE /N o
BBRBEFREYNER B 8
SHE  BAEHEENEHARIBHIZE
TE - (RAE AR IER BT ©

implementation rules, the Frontier Health and Quarantine
Law of the People’s Republic of China and its implementation
rules, as well as other relevant national regulations and
measures for pandemic prevention and control. By AR RPEEREINEERKLER
standardizing the system of unloading, storage and EMEFEELRES  2HEBRE
disinfection of inbound cargo, we implement and promote ML o

the prevention and control of COVID-19 and ensure the

effective implementation of our prevention and control

measures. At the same time, we also require overseas

manufacturers to issue a guarantee that the goods are free of

COVID-19 to fully ensure product safety.

In addition, we continue to improve the quality of our BN RPEBHELTEASEE
products by providing training to our product management B EEEE  BREBLURTER
staff on relevant laws and regulations, special requirements NS e
HEMEY  THESERESE
and new product items, to build a sense of responsibility _:E E}jg:; Tliﬁi%m ERHE
among our employees in terms of quality. VETHEREER -

Quality training
A

During the Reporting Period, Zhongsheng Bio-Tech carried out training on laws and regulations such as the Food Safety Law of
the People’s Republic of China and its implementing regulations and GB 14881-2013 General Hygiene Rules for Food Production,
and completed the annual training target of 40 hours. At the same time, Zhongsheng Bio-Tech also conducted effect evaluation
through online question and training tests to enhance our production norms and improve product quality.

BEHAN - FAERBERR T(REARKNMBERMT2E) REBEMHEIED - GB 14881-2013 RmEEBBHERE)E
EREREI - TR F 4 EERAFIIE R - B - PARMRERBBERIER - BHIIHEN T NETT T RERE
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Product recall

In strict compliance with the Food Safety Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Food Product Recall Management
Rules, and other laws and regulations, the Group formulates a
collection of policy documents, including the Incoming Food
Inspection Procedures, Food Recall System and Defective
Food Product Recall System, all of which aim to constantly
improve our product recall system.

We are committed to minimizing and preventing any unsafe
foods affecting customers’ health and securing the health
and safety of the general public. In order to ensure the quick
response in the event of product recall to eliminate or reduce
the degree and scope of the harm, Zhongsheng Bio-Tech had
recall drills during the Reporting Period to fully test the
effectiveness of its product traceability system and operability
of its product recall procedures by quickly establishing a recall
task force, determining recall scope, formulating Product
Recall Schedule and Product Recall Instructions and other
procedural documents, releasing Recall Announcement and
Product Recall Notification Form, filling out the Product Recall
Records and the Product Recall Investigation and Processing
Form and summarizing the recall. During the Reporting
Period, the Group did not identify any recall incident related
to product quality and safety.
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Innovation research

With a market-oriented approach, the Group constantly
explores new technologies in the industry and conducts
innovative product development, with a view to meeting the
changing needs of customers and empowering innovation
and research and development.

Product research and development

The Group focuses on the development of new products and
industrial upgrading. By improving incentive mechanism for
research and development, optimizing research and
development facilities and equipment and enhancing the
research and development capability of the employees, the
Group persisted in collaboration with its customers and
continue to explore the innovation of products, technologies,
to provide its customers with premier products and services.

We are committed to providing our customers with healthy
and safe products through innovation and research and
development. During the Reporting Period, Living Nature has
been awarded the Zero Plastic Inside certification of the “Beat
the Microbead"" campaign, certifying that Living Nature’s
products are 100% free of microplastics.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had introduced 35
new products, including 3 Zhongsheng series products, 7
Heijan products, 20 Good Health products, and 5 Living
Nature products. These product lines diversify the healthcare
product choices for our consumers. In addition, Zhongsheng
Bio-Tech obtained a health food approval certificate
approved by State Administration for Market Regulation.

! a campaign initiative by the Plastic Soup Foundation to raise awareness
of microplastics pollution through personal care products
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2.3

Intellectual property rights protection

In strict compliance with applicable requirements stipulated
in related intellectual property protection laws and
regulations, such as the Patent Law of the People’s Republic
of China, we formulated the Intellectual Property Rights
Management and Patent Protection System, to regular the
management of patents, trademarks and other intellectual
property rights protected by national laws and continuously
improve our intellectual property management level. During
the Reporting Period, the Group did not identify any incident
involving infringements upon intellectual property rights.

As of the end of the Reporting Period, the Group held a total
of 14 patents, 67 trademarks and 2 copyrights.

Supply chain management

The Group has formulated a comprehensive supply chain
management system, including supplier access system,
supplier assessment system and supplier control procedures.
The Group strictly controls the procurement process of the
raw materials. In this regard, we continuously update our raw
material procurement contracts with suppliers, conduct strict
review on the qualification of suppliers and contain the
telephone number of the local administration for market
regulation where the parties are located in the contract to
ensure the quality of raw material and protect the interests of
the parties. As regards to overseas cooperative suppliers, we
will continue to improve the qualification certification
process, while carrying out a collaborative management
model to safeguard production and operation stability.
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Supplier
Agcpess

138 i e A\

We review qualification of supplier and the competent
department conduct assessment for supplier to be accessed
into supplier list.

HEEHNAREESERZ - Wh T EPIEHERETAT
EREAHER R -

Cooperative
process
evaluation

H AR TR R A

We conduct regular inspections and assessment over the
cooperative suppliers in the process of performance.

For any issue identified, we will make rectification
recommendations and will follow up its implementation.
BHBET - BafrlEREHRRRE - & -
HEBERARBIRLENE R W IRHERE

) 4

Review
evaluation

%t

Our performance assessment focuses on various dimensions,
including food, service quality, food brand awareness,
punctuality of delivery, pricing, and aftersales services.
WEm REEE  Romh  HEREKL R  1#&
BRGEZEEERERZEZTEIE -
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OEM Supplier Review
OEM 4t e 7 75 %

In order to strengthen the control of suppliers and improve audit efficiency, the Company and Good Health conduct a review
and assessment on potential overseas OEM manufacturers. We conduct a comprehensive review on suppliers in strict
compliance with GMP standards and only cooperate with suppliers who have passed the assessment. The Company will report
any quality issue of suppliers arising in the course of cooperation to Good Health, who will conduct on-site check and put
forward rectification requirements.
RINAREEEEE  ReERRE - AR ARFRELRLEIEINEEOIMBRARER « 7Th - BPIBIRIERGMP
BIFRESHERETEEEZ  RELERRBNHER S AEIERR - EA(FBRETD  ZRAMENLIREE
B AREE RSN R R ER - WA AR FPIER - IREBREK -

/8

In the course of cooperation, we regularly performed audit
work over various suppliers, including paper audit and field
audit. In addition, we carried out extensive investigation into
the plant premises, production sites, and quality
management of our suppliers to ensure that their quality and
management is up to standard. As of 31 December 2020, the
Group had a total of 326 suppliers of raw materials, among
which, there were 193 overseas suppliers and 133 Chinese
suppliers.

In order to ensure the stability of the international supply
chain during the outbreak, the Group promptly adjusted its
procurement planning by adopting a procurement form of
purchasing a large quantity of products in one order and
flexibly choosing different modes of transportation such as
ocean shipping to ensure the stability of supply and sales
during the outbreak.
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2.4 Service system 2.4 JRGHEFR

The Group emphasises the establishment of close relationship
with its customers and seeks to provide customers with
satisfactory solutions and create continue value for customers
by developing a sophisticated customer communication
service system, so as to understand customer requirements
and receive feedback from customers.

Service channel

We are committed to providing customers with a
comprehensive shopping experience. To this end, we
continue to expand our marketing channels and optimize our
marketing strategies to enable our customers to experience
high-quality services in all aspects.

We actively expand our marketing channels to provide
customers with diversified shopping channels and
convenient shopping experiences through the addition of
online self-operated sales channels, cooperation with third
parties, such as airport duty-free stores and TV stations, live
activities on various platforms and participation in special TV
shopping programs. During the Reporting Period, we also
provided nutritionist customer service and WeChat group
service, to provide customers with more professional
knowledge and customized services.

In addition, we continued to improve our warehousing,
transportation, and distribution network, which were aimed
at providing a convenient and expeditious consuming
experience. During the Reporting Period, we achieved direct
distribution from shopping platforms, which means that our
warehouses can receive orders placed with the shopping
platforms for direct shipment, which makes logistics and
distribution more convenient and efficient . By the end of the
Reporting Period, we had a total of 7 shopping platforms for
direct delivery.
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As of 31 December 2020, the Group has made great effort to
develop domestic distributors, TV shopping platforms and
e-commerce platforms. We have built cooperation with a
number of platforms including yougou.com, hao24.com,
best1.com, jiajiamall, happigo.com, Global Home Shopping
and China Duty Free Group to sell general trade and cross-
border trade products, and continued to cooperate with
e-commerce platforms such as Tmall International, JD.com,
suning.com, xiaohongshu.com and Health Post. The Group's
major overseas sales platforms are comprised of the
international distributor network that covers Germany,
Netherlands, and Korea, and large chain pharmacies,
healthcare product supermarkets, and souvenir shops in New
Zealand and Australia.

HE2020F 128318 KEE KD
BRI  BREDTANE
FTREEFEE HRMEMEREY  0F
Y T5BEY  RXEY - REE
Y REKBYNGREESEZRTES
HERGIE HE—REFREBEEES
Em WIHERXHEEE - 7E - &
E G N E -« Health PostH & F
HETaARAGE - AEEZTEME
INEEF DM EEE - A - 8
B %% AR R MBI & m A s R
7 B AN SE K ) 55 7K Hb B K A S8 g %k
5 @EmBmRIREL S mEE o

International distributor network widely distributed in many countries

JE 32 G i 20 {1 18 2 1 e e 258 i A 4%

Germany 12

Netherlands fE7 58

United Arab Emirates P/

Korea §%

South Africa E9 3F

Singapore ¥ 113
Vietnam i
Thailand 2=
Malaysia 55 2K 78 52

Indonesia ENfEJE P gn
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Advertising compliance

In the course of marketing and the provision of services, the
Group strictly complies with the Advertising Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Advertising Management
Regulations of the People’s Republic of China, the Interim
Provisions of the People’s Republic of China on Publishing
Food Advertisements, the Interim Provisions of the People’s
Republic of China on Censorship of Healthy Food
Advertisements, and various laws and regulations where we
operate, including the Guidelines for Therapeutic Advertising
Pre-vetting Service and TAPS. In order to ensure the accuracy
of online and offline advertising contents without any
misleading or exaggerating content, we established the
advertising publication and approval mechanism to provide
accurate and true advertisement to the consumers.

In order to standardize the accurate labeling of its products,
Zhongsheng Bio-Tech has formulated the “Management
System for Production Batch Number, Production Date and
Shelf Life”, “Standard Operating Procedures for Information
Labeling on Product Transport Package Carton” and other
systems to unify the labeling format by clarifying the labeling
preparation methods and requirements.

During the Reporting Period, we conducted quarterly random
inspections on our online platform to ensure compliance as
well as the absence of false and exaggerated promotions. In
addition, we worked with TV channels to carry out the whole-
process control over the pre-airing, airing, and post-airing of
sales activities to ensure compliance of marketing campaigns
on TV shopping platforms.
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Brand building

The Group continues to push forward with brand building by
constantly leveraging the brand attributes to assist
consumers in recognizing the inherent values of our
products, and to continuously enhance our brand awareness
and consumer conversion rate. During the Reporting Period,
the Group organized a series of consumer activities in the PRC
and abroad, including participation in the Showdown Show
and Brand Day of SHARK SHOPPING, live broadcast activities
in cooperation with Alibaba Health and celebrities, and
participation in overseas TV, digital and radio events such as
Viralex, Turmeric and Rapid Calm, so that the Group continue
to broaden its horizon, deepen the communication with
customers, showcase its products, and develop its global
brands.

SHARK SHOPPING: Shark Showdown Show
BN« RAHUISE
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MR
AEBERFEHEEEREERTHENT
B BRAEERENEERET 3|8
BEBEERMEMNNEEE  TER
FomEORAEFTEBEEE(IE - 3}
HHEIA - REBAK T —R7EAN
HEEDRE BRRELERRRIREE
HAE BRERMBEERMER - HE
PERE -BHEEASGEREERE
&) - 20 Viralex * Turmeric * Rapid
Cam&EGINER - BHFMBEFHEES -
TEHRERE  IRBTPM - BRI
EmEX - BB

During the Reporting Period, the Group participated in the Shark Showdown Show, a featured TV shopping program of SHARK
SHOPPING. Good Health gained more recognition for their products after winning a showdown against another American
brand.

BEHA - AEE2ETHEEEBEYH A BRRRBETNERLEIRS - (fEFEMES —EEMEETIIRE
“ER  RETESHERNEE -

SHARK. shoppig
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2.5 Communication with customers 2.5 EFFE

Adhering to the principle of “customer first”, we actively
communicate with customers through online, offline and
other diversified channels to gain a deep understanding of
customer needs and continuously improve customer
satisfaction.

Protection of rights and interests

In strict compliance with the Food Safety Law of the People’s
Republic of China, Law of the People’s Republic of China on
the Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests, the Tort Law
of the People’s Republic of China, the Fair Trading Act 1986,
and laws and regulations where we operate, the Group
continues to optimize the customer complaint handling
mechanism to safeguard customers’ legitimate rights.

We constantly optimize the customer complaint procedures
and complaint handling mechanism by establishing after-
sales service centers, setting up a customer complaint hotline,
specifying the time for complaint handling, arranging
designated personnel for the follow-up visit to ensure the
timely handling of customer campaign and improve
customer satisfaction. The Group has developed the “3-7-21
Rule”, set a time node for calling back customer, and
communicate with customers by telephone or online. It also
summarizes the questions raised by customers and
formulates the corresponding improvement plans. Living
Nature will respond to customer feedback and complaints in
a timely manner, record customer complaints in the
"Customer Complaints/Feedback Form” and make regular
analysis on feedback and complaints to summarize
improvement measures.

In order to improve the ability of our customer service agents,
we provide regular training sessions for them to enhance
their understanding of the Group’s products and health-
related knowledge, and to improve their working skills, thus
resolving the issues that concern our customers the most and
continuously improving customers’' recognition and
satisfaction of our brand and services.

Privacy protection

The Group highly recognizes the importance of privacy
protection and data security for customers and has
established safeguards for customer privacy in strict
compliance with the Cybersecurity Law of the People’s
Republic of China and other laws and regulations. In the
course of operation, we have developed strict external call
regulations and imposed restrictions on our employees as to
access to private information of customers to protect
customers’ privacy by means of hidden customer numbers,
one-call outbound calls, and usage of official accounts for
online communication with customers.
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3.  GREEN OPERATION TO SUPPORT THE 3. MEEE R
ECOSYSTEM
Under the vision of “peak carbon emissions” and “carbon neutrality” FEER [ ] M [P ESET - &
in the PRC, we actively practice the green development philosophy, PEBRETHERERES  THEiRiE
and constantly improve the environmental management system EEER BEMERBEEKE - BB
and the level of environmental management. We strive to achieve BREESF AN SRR BHER
sustainable development and create a harmonious ecological AEERE T EAEBRRELASN
environment in which human beings and nature together through FIFEARE -
comprehensive utilization of resources and reducing pollution and
emissions.
3.1 Environmental management 3.1 BREEH

The Company always attaches importance to environmental
management and strictly complies with relevant laws and
regulations where it operates. In order to systematically
manage the use of resources and waste discharge in our
production, operation and office, we have developed internal
management system including the Corporate Environmental
Management System, Corporate Drainage Management
System, Corporate Solid Waste Management System, Energy
Conservation Management System and Vehicle Management
System, and supervise the implementation of the
environmental system through the establishment of the
leading environmental task force, to ensure environmental
compliance management and operation from different
aspects. Living Nature was certified by Toitu (which is formerly
known as EnviroMark and provides environmental
management solutions) after an evaluation conducted over
the environmental management of Living Nature in various
areas, including its supply chain, business, and risks.

During the Reporting Period, we issued a “Green Initiative” and
established the “5R Principle” for an environmentally friendly
office to improve raise employees’ awareness of environmental
protection and encourage them to conserve energy, so that
the Company and individual employee can play a role in the
environmental protection of the whole society.

5R Principle 5RJE HI
CONSERVE RESOURCES

IS ENVIRONMENTALLY FRIENDLY

~ A R R D

EDUCE POLLUTION AND Eﬁ

RRARIRKRERIRIBERR - BRIgEST
B EMAAREEER - RERM
WEARQRIMNEE EENMPLANE
RERMBEYHERGETER - M
ETCRREBHIE) (HKEFZE
BHIE) (BEEEEFE) (BEE
BHE) RCEWMERGE)ENEE
BHE - WilBEIRREE /DAY
BREGIENITENETER %
FEHREBRRNEHEBNET - @
BAHERE X% BRErFEHAR
RIBEEFE + Living Nature EERIS 7
[Toitul CRIEBIEAFRFTER ISR
EnviroMark) Z8& ©

HEHA - REFAEINRRER
SB B TETHTTA - BRI T4
BEZEZ]LHETRERAK R
RAI HEARMEAEEZHER
BIRERHER °

HIE > WATTR

E-EVALUATE WHETHER THE PRODUCT . .
RREETE o BRIRIENE

EUSE ITS RESIDUAL VALUE . i
AS MUCH AS POSSIBLE BHEEA - ZHRHH
ECYCLE THE WASTE AND , ,

WASTE CLASSIFICATION AR > BRI
ESCUE LIVING CREATURES . X

AND CONSERVE NATURE REAR - Bty

84 NANJING SINOLIFE UNITED COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BRI~ AL BB

3.2 Use of resources 3.2 HWHEMH
We always pursue the proper and reasonable use of resources KRR EEERIMZEE]  BR
and avoid waste of resources. Therefore, we constantly HBERKRE - Bt - HMTEM
strengthen our staff's awareness of water conservation, BB TEIK §E - SEENER B
electricity conservation, and energy-saving, and urge them to REIHEFR—Z—BIED 4
save resources in their daily work and promote the BRIt e HEEE -

sustainable development of society.

Energy management BEREE

We mainly consume gasoline, diesel, liquefied petroleum gas, BMEEFEANEREI BH -« &
and purchased electricity. We strict comply with the Law of e BR(EARE - INEENE o T4E
the People’s Republic of China on Energy Conservation in the EEBEMMPABRESD - RMIEKEST
course of production and operation and office, to reduce (PE AR EMBIGERENLE) - BRIK
energy consumption and greenhouse gas emissions. RERFAEEREREBENE -
During the production process, we are committed to EEBES B —ERIRBBR
reducing energy consumption through equipment HBEN  TENZFHAREELRE
transformation and processing improvement . In addition, o bsh BERBBSE—FHEEA
Cobayer reduced the frequency of transportation and FEMETEBEREE - BRIEEY
shortened the distance of transportation through the unified BENEANERER  UBREE TR
use of office vehicles and centralized warehouse shipping WITAMZEEY R IBEP OB - 3
locations, so as to reduce carbon emissions from employees’ HHRN - FAREBRBEFEERK
official travel and shipping logistics. During the Reporting TBeREFE ©

Period, Zhongsheng Bio-Tech also reduced energy
consumption through centralized production.

Reduce energy consumption through centralized production

E AR - KRR

Based on the production experience over the years, Zhongsheng Bio-Tech adjusted its production plan and centralized and
shortened the production months to reduce unnecessary energy consumption.

PARMSRBEFEELSS  BHELENS  SEEANETRETESR  WHDTLENEEREFE o

Energy consumption in months with high outdoor temperatures and humidity is significantly higher than in other periods.
Zhongsheng Bio-Tech has significantly reduced its energy consumption through the reasonable adjustment of production plan.
During the Reporting Period, energy consumption was reduced by 22.53% in July and 51.76% in August, indicating significant
results.

EEINEEMREERSHNAD @ sERERSAESNEMRE - PARMSBBAERELES - AREEETRER
HFE - MEHIRN - 7 A RERERI LLFR 1K 22.53% + 8 A0 REFERILLFE(E 51.76% + BXRBARE -

ERPEBERNARRR —Z-_ZTFFRH 35
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During our work, we control energy consumption in the ERNBEFR - BPIERBAERR
office through various measures such as switching off lights RIS EER R AENEERE
and time control of air conditioners. During the Reporting AR RMEENTELSE
Period, we also installed devices for controlling the charging HEFERFEEHEE  RLELES
time of employees’ electric vehicles to reduce the waste of B WBRFAE TRLNEZ BN
electricity and called on employees to travel by public 17 OB B T HITHBRBEUE A -
transportation to reduce carbon emissions generated from

their travel.

“National Low-Carbon Day”

[ BKRK H ] {5 B)

On 13 June 2020, the National Low-Carbon Day, we actively responded to the call of “Enhancing awareness of climate changes
and strengthening low-carbon actions” to launce green and low-carbon activities. We promote the concept of green office and
low-carbon life through various initiatives, including travel by public transportation, reducing standby energy consumption of
office equipment, and reducing the running time of air conditioners. In addition, through experience activities such as shutting
down elevators and lighting in public areas, employees were made aware of the importance of energy and started to
standardize their saving behavior and consciously develop good habits of health, civilization and frugality.

2020F6 A 13 AR ZEERE - HMBEEERIE [RARKECER  RICERMITHNE] KT - FRZEER
HITES - BBRLAKZBT AL RO PAREBERER RO ZRHETHESEZ  ESEREMHOMER
EENBSEAR - U BBEHAESRNHAAKEARASEREY  BETIERIRNERN - YitA
SR - REEHOTR - BBEKRE X9 - HiRORFEE -

Set forth below is our energy consumption during the WA - BMOIMEEREFEBRAT
Reporting Period:

Consumption

HFEE

Consumables category SHFEMER 2020
Gasoline JUH 62,128 67731 66,741 Litre 7+
Diesel oil L 7371 4,994 774 Litre 7+
Liquefied petroleum gas RIEFER 147 287 292 Cubic metres 37 77
Total direct energy consumption ~ EERURH#HE 7530 81.22 75.05 Tonnes of standard
Coal equivalent
[IgETEs
Purchased electricity SMEE 195282 261421  1,589.68 MWh JKEL
Total indirect energy consumption [B#EEEEHFEH B 240.00 321.29 192.01 Tonnes of standard
Coal equivalent
WEAR AR
Total energy consumption REBERHFE 31530 402.51 267.05 Tonnes of standard
Coal equivalent
pdes
Integrated energy consumption per BT 35474 BEFE 696 1248 9.01 Kilogram standard
revenue of RMB10,000 Coal equivalent
per RMB10,000
TriZE /&
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Following the footsteps of the national advocacy of low-
carbon development and adhering to our business
philosophy of green and low-carbon operation, we are always
committed to reducing the use of energy and strictly
controlling greenhouse gas emissions in our daily office and
production operations to guard the common home of
mankind. Set forth was our greenhouse gas emission during
the Reporting Period:

Greenhouse gas category

Greenhouse gas emission Scope | HE— B EREHN
Greenhouse gas emission Scope Il I — B EREHIN
Greenhouse gas emission Scope Il Z60E =8 = BEHE AL
Total greenhouse gas emissions 2 Z R B H B

Greenhouse gas emissionsper ~ BT W7 BERBHKE
revenue of RMB10,000

2 Greenhouse gas emission Scope lll includes emissions generated from
business flights of our employees.

3 Due to the impact of the pandemic, the Group has significantly
reduced non-essential travel activities to protect the health of
employees.

ARPEBERNHERARF

828

65

1,054

2326

BMEREBRRERERORN S - BiF
HFERRMEEES  EEEHAR
FEKET  BRBARNRD IR
B BARREGIREREHPER - F
BEABENHERRE - WEHAA - FK M
PRERBEERBERNT ¢

Emission
B
2020
168 154.27 Tonnes of CO, eq
MECO, B8
1,195 451.33 Tonnes of CO, eq
WECO,E&
56 0.253 Tonnes of CO, eq
MECO, 28
1419 605.85 Tonnes of CO, eq
WECO, B8
4398 20.43 Kilogram of CO, eq
Per RMB10,000
:F_ﬁ. O, i/% TT

: BEDREREBHREER TERRYE
RIS A B °
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Water_saving HEIREN R FEK L&
measures ® |nstalled water-saving devices

Bl 2K 1 it

Water resource management

As “water is the source of life”, we strictly control the use of
water resources and constantly improve the water resource
management system, so that all employees continuously
increase their awareness of water conservation and “take
water in a proper way and use it in a proper way” in their daily
life. During the Reporting Period, in addition to the
establishment of a water-saving work leading group for the
purpose of building a water-saving enterprise, Zhongsheng
Bio-Tech improved various water-saving management
systems and formulated annual water-saving plan and water-
saving assessment mechanisms to raise the awareness of
water-saving among all employees to make efforts in building
a water-saving enterprise. We mainly implemented the water-
saving practices as follows:

KERER

[KREMmZR] BRABEBIEEKE
REERBER  TEHREKERNE
BHE - EEKERAREAZBT
MERT - EKERBEIIEZ BE -
RzBE] - REHRA - RITEEHKE
B PARRKL TEKBIART
ERE/NE - WiBBTERIASKE
EHIE - BIE T FEEKE B M ERK
kS RE2EHKES  FR
BIKEL DRI THF - HAPIMEIKE
BIEf:

e Avoided processes that consumes substantial water during research

and development

{E R EhKas A

® Prevented water gushing, dripping, and water leakage

e TR

® Replace the water tank meter to calculate the water consumption

more accurately

Improvement BHKFERTTESR - HRKENFTE B NER
measures e Installed water meters in the water-consuming areas of the canteen

and counted the per capita water consumption

B it

REER/KEREIE NG EKE - ARt ABRHKE

e The rainwater and sewage separation facility was built for the office
premises for recycling rainwater, which were used for greening,

Rainwater
recycle

RN EE

irrigation, cleaning vehicles and roads

B#ER BB
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The main source for water consumed during the operation of
the Group is tap water, which is mainly used for the daily
operation and office premises within the industry park. Set
forth was water consumption during the Reporting Period:

HFENER

Consumables category

AEBELAKNEERFELEAK
KO EZHARBERABELHEA -
WEHR - HAIMAKEROT ¢

Consumption

IKER
A KERE

Water resources
Water consumption
per revenue of RMB10,000

Packaging materials management

We attach great importance to the management of
packaging materials, and constantly improve and standardize
the management system of packaging materials to improve
the utilization rate of packaging materials. We have
established the packaging committee, which shall review and
control the selection and recycle of packaging materials, and
the environmental impacts brought by such packaging
materials to streamline the management of packaging
materials and avoid excessive waste of packaging materials.
In addition, we have reduced the use of packaging materials
by continuously upgrading our logistics system.

We continue to promote the reduction of packaging to
reduce the consumption of packaging materials. During the
Reporting Period, we carried out the reduction of packaging
materials by optimizing packaging design:

Adjusted packaging design
to reduce tape usage

i B R T o PRI B B

EHE
2019
18,463.80 19,646.50 20,284.00 Tonne 8
041 042 0.68 Tonne per
RMB10,000
/&
BEMBEE

ﬁﬁ#%éﬁa PR E IR - T
EZMRBEEMHOERER - U
hm&%ﬁﬂ%ﬂ%$ HAPIRIL T
BRZES BAEHBEMHNE
B El o URBEMHONREZE

ETEEMICE  YaREMRETE
MILEE  BRETEEMBHNBER

2 o ftoh  BIVEBRBTEHFARYR
5 BRIESEMBOER -

BARRERRERE -
KREL - MEHA - RABBE
LRER:  ARTBEMHBNRE
L ITIE -

TEfHEER

Created more types of
packaging boxes and reduce the
use of filler and cartons

B e G R R
kA S 7 P A A B

Reduction of packaging

WAL

ARPAEBES

BWERAE _—_ET_TEER
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We continue to promote the use of environmentally-friendly
packaging materials and remain committed to recycling of
our packaging. All packaging materials used for products
under the brand Living Nature are 100% recyclable materials,
and cardboards used for packaging cartons are sourced from
renewable forest. During the Reporting Period, Living Nature
launched a new packaging recycling program to produce
cosmetic packaging by using more recyclable PET
(Polyethylene terephthalate) plastic. Waste PET plastics can
be collected through a garbage collection system and
recycled through a drying and granulation process. The
project has greatly improved the recyclability of product
packaging materials and promoted the reuse of packaging
materials.

Cardboards and plastics are our major packaging materials.

Set forth below was the consumption by the Group of
packaging materials during the Reporting Period:

HFENER

Consumables category

aEIH
B aREFE

Packaging materials

Consumption of packaging
materials per revenue of
RMB10,000

391.50
8.64

BMTEEERRBENER - Wik
B AR BENABE  Living
Nature B9 2 5 8 2 15 H1 1009 7] [ 4 44
BB - BB 2 AR 6 A eV R v R
2HMEREATBERN  MEBAA -
Living Nature (& & 7 #8082 Bl U 18
B @BERAE S E W APET
(Polyethylene terephthalate = Bl [ & 4@
B Bs |) 22K BB AL e B % o PET
FHEE B & A RB R IR D H O R i
TS - WER TR - ERBIE -
TEIWEEFIA - ZBB KBRS T
EmBEMBIEKYE #3876
REMEHEEFAE -

BPEZREMERNER BMEIRME
B AR BHRMEOBEMEHE
RERET :

Consumption

H¥EER
2019
54122 553.87 Tonne 63
16.78 18.68 Kilogram per
RMB10,000
T/ B
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3.3 Emissions compliance 3.3 AR

We are well aware of the environmental hazards of pollutant
emissions. In accordance with the requirements of relevant
laws, regulations and standards, such as the Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Law on
the Prevention and Control of Air Pollution of the People’s
Republic of China, the Law on the Prevention and Control of
Water Pollution of the People’s Republic of China, the Law on
the Prevention and Control of Solid Waste Pollution to the
Environment of the People’s Republic of China, the Law of
the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control of
Pollution from Environmental Noise and The Environmental
Protection Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China, we have
developed a series of measures on waste water, waste gas
and waste discharge systems and measures, strictly abide by
the red line of environmental protection, and contribute our
modest efforts to the national environmental protection
cause.

Wastewater emission

We have established strict wastewater management rules to
treat wastewater in a scientific, rational, and efficient manner
to ensure compliant discharge. The wastewater generated by
us mainly includes wastewater generated from the office, our
production and laboratories. wastewater generated from the
office are discharged directly to the municipal pipe networks,
while wastewater generated from production and
laboratories are discharged after biochemical treatment to
meet the Class-3 wastewater emission standards set forth
under the Integrated Wastewater Discharge Standard
(GB8978-1996).

In order to reduce wastewater generation and environmental
impact, we do not use coal-fired or gas boilers over the
course of production, and avoid excessive use of corrosive
acid, alkaline, chlorine or other solvents for any closed-loop
cleaning system to reduce the content of pollutants in water,
as well as avoid excessive use of water resources to reduce
consumption of water resources and wastewater discharge.

BRRABA]

BIFVRFS R IRBNEE ©
RIBCREARKMBERBREEL)
(PEARAMBARSRRE)
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HIE - ARIE . ABRS KT R 8
SAGETTRIE - MEIRA ARBERR o B
R EEK E B EIERABEK « EEREK
LEBREENK WABKEREEAT
BREHR EEREREEKEENE
Bgm 5 KES BERIZE)
(GB8978-1996) H = 4 35 7K HE HUIZ e3¢
TTHERR ©
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Set forth below was our wastewater discharged during the
reporting period:

HBER

Effluents category

Wastewater discharged* SERBEH

Total wastewater discharged STKGA N E

Chemical Oxygen Demand COD#H =
(COD) discharged

Ammonia and nitrogen discharged S AHEHE

Air emission

We attach great importance to the pollution of waste gas to
the environment and strictly control air emission from the
source. In addition to a small amount of air emission
produced by the laboratory, there is basically no external
emission of exhaust gas in our production process. In order to
ensure the compliance of air emission, the generated exhaust
gas will be absorbed by activated carbons before its emission.

Solid waste management

In addition to strict compliance with the relevant
requirements of the laws and regulations, including the Law
on the Prevention and Control of Solid Waste Pollution to the
Environment of the People’s Republic of China and
Prevention and Control of Waste Hazardous Chemical the
Law of Pollution, and the National Catalogue of Hazardous
Waste, we strictly require our overseas subsidiaries to dispose
of waste in accordance with local laws and regulations and to
manage waste generated from our production and operation
in a compliant and effective manner.

General non-hazardous waste generated from our operation
mainly comprises of packaging waste, labour protection
appliance waste, electronic waste, office waste, and food
waste, and hazardous waste produced by us includes
laboratory waste liquids and waste residue, spent activated
carbon, waste ink cartridges, waste oil, mineral oil waste and
drugs waste. All the above wastes have been properly
disposed. Specifically, the general non-hazardous wastes are
handed over to the municipal departments for disposal, and
the hazardous wastes are uniformly disposed of by the local
qualified third-party waste disposal units.

4 Data range is the emissions from Zhongsheng Bio-Tech

12,974
0.036

0.0058

HEA - RFIRSKREERBERAT

Amount discharged

356

2019

6,223 2,625 Tonne I

0.031 0.018 Tonne I

0.0049 0.003 Tonne I
BERHEK
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B ERRIRRCRE AR AR E
BEMSRIREN RE) - (BERERIE
BRSERRBHAINE R(BERER
BEEWMEH)FERERNELR - F
Bt B R 2B MR RIR R E M)A E
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In order to manage waste effectively, we strictly implement BEEEYETAENEIE  BMEE
the waste separation system and have updated the waste BT RS FEHIE - WHRREERA -
separation in more detail at our headquarters campus during EARATERE IR EETTE
the Reporting Period. In terms of hazardous waste MBILEF - EEREEMERS
management, we have set up a hazardous waste ledger for | B2 TRESRETHARL
detailed records and filed with the relevant regulatory B WiRMR B SKIE A E WG ETT
authorities as required to ensure safety compliance. In B ERTEAME o 1 B
addition, we have established the Hazardous Waste HEEREEYREY T(EEEETE
Management System for hazardous waste and formulated HIE)  WHlE T oEEREM

hazardous waste management measures:

Management by designated personnel with special locks

WAHSHER

Detailed management of the ledger

Installation of anti-seepage hazardous waste disposal liquid bucket and cushion board

¢ L B 1 s M 9 A P BT AR

Provision of gas alarm

i B R A
Installation of exhaust equipment

e B A

In the office, we improve the comprehensive utilization rate ERARE  BMBABESHHNE
of resources and create a green office by advocating resource RoEBEROBAEFN B8R
conservation and encouraging resource reuse. FEMRAE  TEZeRAT -

Green office #R AL I3

Encourage paper reuse

S AR AR B — KA A

Encourage online office and electronic signature

SRR FH 0 L 2 v 38 F B K

Encourage employees to bring their own water cups to reduce the use of paper cups

S E T H AR > FEAKATHR R B
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Set forth below is our solid waste disposal during the TREEAA - BRI E REREE Y HEIS IR
Reporting Period: NN

Amount discharged

HHE

Waste category BERER 2019
Hazardous waste BREZY 28.00 2807 15.51 Tonne M8
Hazardous waste per revenue EnhnBREEY 062 087 0.52  Kilogram per
of RMB10,000 RMB10,000
Tr/B1
Non-hazardous waste BEZEEY 441 5193 43.08 Tonne Mg
Non-hazardous waste per Enhm=EZEEY 098 161 145  Kilogram per
revenue of RMB10,000 RMB10,000
Tr/B
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4. OFFERING WARM CARE AND CREATING THE 4.

FUTURE TOGETHER

Human resource is an important resource for the sustainable
strategic development of the enterprise. Upholding the “people
oriented” philosophy, the Group is determined to creating a fair and
equitable, harmonious and healthy working environment for its
employees. We fully respect and protect the basic rights and

interests of employees, and provide a platform for employees’

growth, to realize the unity of corporate value and employee value,

and promote the steady development of the Group.

4.1 Employment overview

In strict compliance with local laws and regulations, including
the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Labour
Contract Law of the People's Republic of China, the
Employment Relations Act 2005, and the Holidays Act 2003,
the Group has formulated and continuously improved the
Employee Recruitment Procedures and Remuneration
Management System to regulate our employee
management. At the same time, the Group continues to
pioneer and innovate through the introduction of new
talents to promote the steady growth of the Group. In terms
of employment, the Group prohibits any form of
discrimination in any areas, including ethnicity, family, religion
and gender, and prohibits any employment of child labour. In
case of any use of child labour, we will address these issues
seriously. During the Reporting Period, we did not identify
any violation case involving the use of child labour or forced
labour.

BRRABA]

i I B B8 > SR AR 2k

ANBRECEAFBELBBRERNEER
BR > AEEREEBIAARK] WAX
B2 YEREINERTFTRILER - MaE
BENTIERE RAOEENRESTH
EX#s BHEINK BREXEE
HETEENSR—  AEEEERSER -

4.1 JEREREDL
REEBEETF(REARKEMES
gE)  (PFEARLEMBLE A RE)
CRLERBIEIAZE > 2005) B (R ERA
0 2003) FEETAMERER
I W BT E(E THREHIE ) R(EH
BERHE)SHE - HEBETERE -
RS EAS - TERAAIF
RESEELSER - £REFE K
SEBREHBRARK KE - =10
HRIEREMER  HBREZETL
NAEEIE - BEITEREERIE o WS 5
A BRPIREREREAE LSRR
BENRERIBIN ©
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The Group recruits talents in considering the business needs AREBRBEERE R  BREHEE -
of our Company, via various channels, including new media, ANERTS  REREMAIDHERE
human resources market, campus recruitment, and internal SREHEAS W TEEICAS R
referral, to continuously optimize its talent pool and B BEANTER HERSEHK
integrates talent resources. At the end of the Reporting AREBEBHBEET 44958 @ 5150 ¢

Period, the Group had a total of 449 employees, details of
which are set forth as follows:

Distribution of total employees by gender (persons) Distribution of total employees by age (persons)

e P 1 1 23 i 4 AR\ BB (0 HiAE B B 2 m R RN BB ()
150 o Male employees 157 e 30 years old or below
BT 30 ABRIIAT
© Female employees oo ® 31to40yearsold
ZET 31-40/B%
@ 41to50yearsold
41-50/E5%
@ above 50 years old
50/EBRIA L
299 168

Distribution of total employees by profession (persons)

72 =3 Pl YN gUN|

29 43 ® Senior management
BRERE
121

©® Administrative
TRAE

® Healthcare supplement
technicians

RBEBKMAE

© Sales

HEABR

204 52 ° %\I?‘Er
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4.2 Employee development 4.2 BT#RE

The growth of employees is the top priority of enterprise
development. To meet the needs of employees’ self-growth,
we continuously improve promotion mechanism,
remuneration performance assessment system and employee
training system. In terms of remuneration, we have
formulated a clear remuneration performance plan to
motivate employees to continuously improve their work
performance and their own abilities in order to enhance the
overall operational efficiency and economic benefits of the
Company.

In terms of training, we improve the efficiency of our
employees by providing induction training for new
employees and job skills training for existing employees, so
that they can share resources and grow together with the
Group.

The Company continues to improve the Employee Promotion
and Management System, and carries out a comprehensive
assessment over our employees in terms of their work
performance, work attitude, and development potential,
rewording every employee for their efforts and expectation.
In terms of promotion, the Group offers three promotion
paths, including sales, management, and technology paths,
where our employees may specifically improve their expertise
based on their individual features and business requirements.
If our employees are willing to realign their career
development path and demonstrate outstanding
performance, we will also permit such employees to pursue
their career change or promotion on a different business line.
In terms of performance appraisal, the Group persists in the
notion of “fairness, impartiality, openness and transparency”
to select excellent talents for each position, and also select
suitable positions for each employee.

BRRABA]

BETHREREXERNETZE
BfRBTETEE TG - HE
MERZHIEME TEIHE =187 '
KmrBETEHRENTR - £H5 M
FE - JRABIE T REN AR
& REEITEIRS TEERIA
FREN > DAMRTT AR EEEITAE

RS -

EEIE - HFPRBHHE THTT
ARG - $3RA B THETT TRiEE
Bl REBEIHNIERE - HEIE
REZ - BERREKE -

ARRFHBECTE(REIEAEES
E) 2EEREINIIEREN - TIE
RREMBEREN FE-UEINS
NAMBLNERE - EEFHHE A
RANENNERRBHENE  BE
88 KRB =58 BT Al ARE
BN H M EBF2H RS
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4.3 Care for employee

We advocate work-life balance. We understand the needs of
each employee with care, and always take into account the
well-beings of our employees within the overall goals of our
development. We encourage employees to achieve a work-
life balance to relax appropriately while working hard for the
Company. Through a variety of employee care activities, we
guide our employees to pursue a better life in a healthier way
in all aspects.

4.3

B TR

BPEETEMAETER FE - BOR
ME—BTHNHER BHHETSE
BRRELEERNABRHER -
BB BETERES  EREEF
ENHZH BERRI L BB
REEMNETRAERE 2545l
BR T AR RENFBREGFLE -

98

Team building
BEES

Sinolife United actively protects the legitimate rights and
interests of female employees, promotes a working
atmosphere that respects female employees within the
Company and pays attention to the physical and mental
health of female employees. During the Reporting Period, the
Group held a number of activities to care for female
employees, to gain an in-depth understanding of the inner
feelings of female employees and solve their difficulties, thus
creating a pleasant and relaxing working atmosphere.

Festival gifts
& B /N8

hABAEERELIER THRERE
@ YERRAMMEEEELERT
MIERE  BIXMEEINGOR
o mERN AEEZRBTHEE
AHEETWES  RATHZMEET
AL BRLIER THRE -
EET—ERR  BRNITERE -
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Book Club of Women’s Federation

S W L

On 21 May 2020, the Women’s Federation of Maqun Street in Qixia District and Sinolife United jointly held the opening
ceremony of “Maqun Mantingfang” Women’s Reading Base. With the female spirit as the core, the Base effectively connects
corporate culture, team building and the personal growth of female workers, so that each of female workers can give full play to
their talents and achieve their dreams in their respective positions and create a unique spiritual outlook of “Sinolife People”. The
Base also provides support and assistance for women in the workplace and families, helping women to relieve their emotions
and reduce stress.

200665 21 B EERTHTBFEBBSPAEBS RN [FEREY | L EEEEmERER - ZEMUA M
BRAZ  BEEXE BFERMZBTEAKKRETEREE B UABRIAESB MU FBEBAE - it
B CIMEARTTAEAIRENBHER - ZEMBRERBIS K ENMRELERHEFHFNEDE - BB IR
B4 MEET -

Employees of Living Nature have the flexibility to schedule £ Living Nature, B T A] 1R i& B = #
their work hours according to the needs of themselves and FTESFNE EEELTHE TR -
their department. In addition, Living Nature holds regular o BTEIRBIENERME
team meetings to keep employees up-to-date on business 0 1E 78 A8 N 2 7 AE 1R 89 3L - Living
activities in order to make them feel inclusive and to build a Nature E BIB1TEBE &% - #ELT
positive culture within the organization. Living Nature and BRI EE MR FTIE N © Living Nature
Good Health also organize morning teas, shared lunches, M Good Health 324 T 4 ~ L= F
birthday parties, annual Christmas events and other team B ERg FEELIHZFEHE
events to enhance employees’ cohesion. B RABITRESN -
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4.4 Employee health

100

The health and safety of employees is the foundation of the
Group's sound development and the primary condition for
the well-being of employees. In strict compliance with various
safety and health related laws and regulations, including the
Workplace Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and
Control of Occupational Diseases, the Safety Training
Management Rules, the Regulations on the Control over
Safety of Dangerous Chemicals and Health & Safety at Work

4.4 B TR

ETHRREEZEERERFERN
RA HRETIZRONEBREKE - K
SEBEEET(FEARKANBZ 2
HEE) (PEARAXMBER RN

BE) AREEEFIEEIE)

(fERitEBREZE2ERIEM) R(TE
BELZEERE 2015)EKBELE2HM
EEMAERENE  TEEEMES

REEEHS

Act 2015, the Group will continue to optimise and improve

the occupational safety management mechanisms.

To establish a safe production management team,
which comprises the general manager as the team
leader, department heads as team members, and
shift leaders as the major safety officers

PRSI ARAS IR B - BERBEEIPIB B AR
8 BNERAE - L2ABANLRLER
/A

Management Structure

B

Regular Assessment

S I

To formulate corrective measures to address
identified issues on a regular basis, the corrective
results and reviews of which will be reported to
the safety task force

FTET IR A0 R RE I E E IR B b - SRR
EEBERANEREBER2EE/VE

>

® To formulate the Safety Education and Training System,
the Administrative Rules for Special Positions, the
Administrative Rules for Employee Health and Sanitation,
the Mould Management Rules, the Management Rules for
Cleaning Tools, the Management Rules for Use of
Containers, and the Management System for the
Purchase, Use and Storage of Explosive Chemicals

HIE (REHEHRIHE) - CHRTEEESE) -
CANEBREFHEEEHNE)  (RAEEHE)  (BF
TAEEHE) (FRERERGIE) & (HHE
EERNEE - R RREFHOERSE)

System Development

il EE et %

A

A~ |

Safety Inspection
LEWE

® To organise a quarterly safety inspection
that focuses on identifying violation of rules
and potential hazards

NEREE - BREATERND  STEMAM—XE
2iRE

® To launch not less than one routine safety check at every
department each month
BHFBARRTI IR —REBELZEEE

® Toinspect the completion of production safety
accountability at each department in accordance with the
Comprehensive Safety Monitoring Form
BB (FARRERER) RESHHREEEEES
BITER IR
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Zhongsheng Bio-Tech carries out regular assessments over
employees’ practices of personal protective equipment and
workplace sanitation, to ensure that management personnel
at all levels implement production safety accountability
system and operating procedures. Zhongsheng Bio-Tech also
conducts regular safety training and drills to enhance
employees’ self-protection awareness and their ability to deal
with dangerous incidents. During the Reporting Period,
Zhongsheng Bio-Tech conducted a safety drill in accordance
with the “Emergency Rescue drill Plan for Trapped People in a
Elevator” to train its employees on how to cope with
emergency situations and how to avoid accidents caused by
panic and irrational operation, so as to ensure the safety of
people and equipment.

To ensure the health and safety of our employees, Living
Nature has established a Health and Safety Committee, which
meets bi-monthly and elects a Health and Safety
representative to regularly review and update the Hazardous
Materials and Incident Registry, with the aim of minimizing
risks to our employees. Any injuries to our employees at work
are treated immediately by professional first responders and
those with serious injuries are taken to hospital immediately.
Good Health also continued to conduct annual health and
wellbeing assessments of our employees during the outbreak
and provided hearing and lung checks.

During the Reporting Period, the Group conducted 5 safety
drills with 242 participants and invested more than
RMB180,000 in production safety. There was no work-related
fatalities due to work injury.

BRRABA]
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4.5 Pandemic responses

102

Against the backdrop of COVID-19, the Group'’s business
operations around the world actively formulated response
plans in light of the local pandemic conditions. Besides
instructing our employees to work at home as much as
possible, all of the Group's business operations provided
pandemic supplies such as masks and disinfectants to reduce
the health risk exposure to our employees, and ensured that
the business continued to operate safely.

During the pandemic, Sinolife United and Zhongsheng Bio-
Tech made joint responses to the government campaign for
post-holiday work resumption by fully cooperating with the
government. We formulated the “Sinolife COVID-19
Prevention and Control Work Plan” and organized and
established a pandemic emergency response leading group
within the Company. Furthermore, we set forth detailed
management requirements for key aspects, including
personnel protection, material preparation, workplace
disinfection, signs and slogans, quality assurance, site control
and supervision and inspection.

Living Nature, which is based in New Zealand, immediately
formulated COVID-19 Health and Safety Plan to control the
pandemic risks by following the “Find, Contain and Control”
policy. In Australia, Cobayer continues to implement its health
and safety policy, and keeps our employees at workplace
timely informed of health and safety requirements and public
health measures during the outbreak.

4.5

e 175 JE
EHTVRBEHARITHERT A
SEUNERZMWELHEESE
WRIEHE - BRI ERY TR - K
SEREEHIEREIRVREER
T URHEOE  HEEREHEY
o RBRERBHAENRERR I
HREBEBELTES -

FERIEHRE - PAEBS Eh AR
BERBEREG 2 HIEABRNAT
E - T EF 1818 T8 2 T4 o B AP
ETCPEMEUBARBSHETIES
) WA R A A BB RIS FE
=BG HABHE MEEE -
THESMBES RBEE HER
& RBEE EERESREHNG
ETRANEEER -

IR AP B A Living Nature 7E 55 — B ]
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5. SINCERE DEDICATION AND GIVING BACK TO
THE COMMUNITY

Sinolife United believes that businesses and communities are
complementary and mutually supportive, and we are always
committed to making a positive impact on local communities.

Living Nature utilizes its product sponsorship to support 41 non-
profit charity organizations and local social groups, and fulfil its
corporate social responsibility by taking practical actions. Some of
the sponsorships include:

OO RR o ol Rk

FABSRE EXRECENERENAE
B BERFER > RFERBOARSE
W RERERZE -

Living Nature iR E m B BIHI R - 241
EFEFMESHENE Ot SEE - A
ERTHRITEENEGEME - BHEB
BIE

We sponsored Hospice Mid-North with on-site prizes at various fundraising events

il Hospice Mid-North’8 Bl 22 fIfl 3 3k i B 1 B 355 4%

We sponsored Sands Northland with memory boxes for parents who lose their babies

it FiSands Northland 2 B 2 2 : BU5 iy & BEE S i st i &

We raised funds for Opua, Oromahoe, Morewa and other schools
#Opua * Oromahoe * Morewa® 8% &3k

- We provided backpacks to youth in local foster care through Foster Hope
i Foster Hopeln # 77 % iy § R H &

We offered on-site prizes as a form of sponsor at Pink Ribbon event

#Pink Ribbon i Bi$2 it 815482 Bl

We donated products to the homeless in Auckland, New Zealand through Humanity New Zealand

i Humanity New Zealand I 41t 75 B YL ve 6 114 406 5% W B 38 43 104 8

R R & H A Good Health 6] Starship 38 52
5,000 A1t 78 6 7T M 52, 2 4 % = 188 188 42 (Viralex
Kids) & fn ©

During the reporting period, Good Health donated NZD5,000 and
Viralex Kids products to Starship.

s
rSEBFS"‘IIP Sta rsthp gl}sghenilh

ship : ! ot ser days
Sy i ! ",,J'daycare
Vol ool

7 GOD HEALTH PRODUCTS LA
R e O § _
Viralex I I8 o ossrase e v
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Co-hosting the Nanjing Tech Week, Qixia Venue
o e v R BRI — R a5

The Nanjing Tech Week 2020 is an online and offline interactive innovation event in Nanjing. As a participant of the event,
Zhongsheng Bio-Tech provided conference venues and exhibition space for the Nanjing Tech Week, Qixia Venue and held the
awards ceremony of “Special Contribution Award for Fighting COVID-19" and other activities.

The Tech Week attracted more than 4,000 guests from 44 countries and regions participated online and offline. Many industry
leaders gathered and heavyweight guests from the science and technology and business sectors were invited to attend, with 9
Nobel Prize and Turing Award winners, 199 Chinese and foreign academicians, 76 heads of famous Chinese and foreign
universities and institutes, and 206 executives of internationally renowned enterprises. Nearly 100,000 people participated in the
offline activities of the Nanjing Tech Week, and over 200 million people interacted online, with a record high number of
participants, guest levels and activity participation.

The event focused on the frontiers of science and technology and released and displayed several new products and
technologies and thereby brought fruitful cooperation results.

U

2020 REFTARERITEN —HR LA TEPNEFRE - PAMKIEREHZET - SEREIHE — 28D
SHRET @RS MEERTER - XBT MR ERMER| AREAFLH -

ZAFEEHWI T HERRMHLERN40ZZRBREE T2 - ERANEE  RIER  CERBELHEST
SHEEE  ORHEBRENEERESE 192 IEL - 76 ZRINNBERAHBEEA 206 ZEBRMEDES
BE2M - B TEFTI0BAKXRZE R EB2EAREE 2 A ZEEBX  EPHREFAFS -

SRR BARERHRATS - BMRRTRSEMER M - XL SERRER -
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APPENDIX | AWARDS AND HONORS IN THE REPORT  Fit g% —  $t 45 /9 P #2048 5

Award and Honors

RERRELH

E P KRR B OAL (Precious Lipstick)
- Best Lip Product in the Health Post
fid B2 Uk B £ 5 20 & MR (Best Lip Product in the Health Post)
- Good Magazine Best of Natural Awards 2020 (N2)
2020 15 sE A B AR B2 (4B PE B8 ) (Good Magazine Best of Natural Awards 2020 (NZ))
SE N EWME £ % OAL (Electric Coral)
- Gold in The Global Makeup Awards 2020 (UK)
2020 F 2B Ak fR A 22 22 (3B (Gold in The Global Makeup Awards 2020 (UK))
- Silver in The Green Parent Natural Beauty Awards 2020 (UK)
2020 F 47 (B R 98 B S22 884R 22 (253 (Silver in The Green Parent Natural Beauty Awards 2020 (UK))
- Silver and Bronze in The Global Green Beauty Awards 2020, different categories (UK)
2000F 2B AR B ER KN 48 - §{48 (B ) (Silver and Bronze in The Global Green Beauty Awards 2020, different
categories (UK))
JEM R B E KBRS EE (Active Brightening Serum)
- Silver in the Free From Skincare Awards 2020 (UK)
2020 FF 50 & 5 K #84R 42 (M) (Silver in the Free From Skincare Awards 2020 (UK))
- Silver in the Global Makeup Awards 2020 (UK)
2020 FF 2 B AR K 828R 42 (B ) (Silver in the Global Makeup Awards 2020 (UK))
SRR B K SRR IR O AL (Summer Rain Lipstick)
- Winner in The Beauty Shortlist Awards 2020 (UK)
2020 F EA AE 2 (ZE ) (Winner in The Beauty Shortlist Awards 2020 (UK))
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APPENDIX I CONTENT INDEX FOR ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

GUIDE OF THE HONG KONG STOCK EXCHANGE

W g —

BRI RE - s RERBERIINERS

ESG aspects and general disclosure and key performance indicators (KPI)

B HERERERR-RRERBRERER KP)

Chapter
FREZE

Environment
R

Al: Emissions

Al iR

A2: Use of resources

A2 BIREER

106

General
disclosure

—RKE

General
disclosure

—RKE
A2
A22

A23

A24

A25

Information on

@  thepolicies;and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer.

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land and

generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
BRERRAREREHN - RKRLTIMEES AEREEREVNE
EER

@ HE: R

b) ETHETABEATENEEZ RPN -

The types of emissions and respective relevant emissions data

B BEEEERER

Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity

BERBEFNERTEE

Total hazardous waste produced and intensity
MELRERENBERTE

Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity
MELBRERRMBERTE

Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved

R RSB MR R AEKR

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous waste are handled, reduction
initiatives and results achieved
HLREREREERZMNG L  REELENEENLAERR
Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw
materials.

BRERER(BEER  KREMERME) BBE -

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in
total and intensity
REREDNEER /LR (NE - floh) BRERTE
Water consumption in total and intensity

BRKEBREE

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved
TR A a8 R ERR

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose,
water efficiency initiatives and results achieved
HCKEVERKR EAT A AR - UREABKEER S RAENR
Total packaging material used for finished products and, with reference to

per unit produced

HXRARAEMHNEERBLEESBUILE
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Emissions compliance

BRBEN

Emissions compliance
BB

Use of resources
BREA

Emissions compliance
EREe il

Emissions compliance
REe 3l
Emissions compliance
EREe 3l
Emissions compliance

BB

Use of resources

BRER

Use of resources

BRER

Use of resources
BREA
Use of resources
BREA
Use of resources

BRER

Use of resources

BRER
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ESG aspects and general disclosure and key performance indicators (KPI) Chapter
BiE HEREAERE-REERBREREEZKP) FREEH
A3: The General Policies on minimising the issuer's significant impact on the environment and Green operation to support
environment disclosure natural resources. the ecosystem
and natural —RR BEETAHRERARERERERZEOYE BEEE  PHER
resources A3l Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural ~ Green operation to support
A3 IREER resources and the actions taken to manage them the ecosystem
RRER HIAEBEHHRERARERNEAT ERCRNERRBAT ENT  REBEE BHER
)
Social it &
B1: Employment General Information on Employment overview
Bl : BIE disclosure (@  the policies; and EERR
—REER (b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant

impact on the issuer.
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination and other benefits and
welfare.
REAF MR mRE  MERES  THEREC BRY FTEHE - Sk
RIBAR AR Bt 558 R AR AR -

@ B R
b) ETHETABEATENEBZERZLADNEL -

B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical region ~ Employment overview
RIR - ERER  FRAENKEESIDHIES R ERER

B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region The Company is pushing
RIR - FRER RItEEDMEBRALE forward the refined

management of staff turnover
and strives to make related
disclosure in the future
AAREHEETRARM
ARALER - RERK
e
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ESG aspects and general disclosure and key performance indicators (KPI)

B HERERERE-RRERBRERER KP)

Chapter
FREEH

B2: Health and

safety
B2: BEHEZE

B3: Development
and training
B3 : E R MUEH

108

General
disclosure

—RIRE

B2.1

B22

B23

General
disclosure
— R
B3.1

B32
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Information on

@  the policies;and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from

occupational hazards.

ABARHEZ2TERERRBEEHEBELEEN

@ HE:R

b) ETHETABEATENERZEEIADNER -

Number and rate of work-related fatalities

SRR AN: YN 935S

Lost days due to work injury

EAIGELIERY

Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, how they are
implemented and monitored

TR BE R R T 21 - URBERTRER A

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at
work. Description of training activities.

AR ES BT IERE N MBI EENEBR - HlEINES -

The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category

BRI R EEENEANSIIEEEDLL

The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee
Category
RURIREERERZES  BEEETKXIN TR

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Employee health
BIRRE

Employee health

BTHR

The Company is pushing
forward the refined
management of employee
health and strives to make a
disclosure in the future
ARRIEHEHEE TRER
MER  NRERRKE
Employee health

BETRE

Employee development
BT#RE

The Company is pushing
forward the refined
management of employee
development and strives to
make a disclosure in the future
ARRIEHEETRRR
MER  NRERRBE
The Company is pushing
forward the refined
management of employee
development and strives to
make a disclosure in the future
AARFHEE TERR
MER  NRERRKE
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ESG aspects and general disclosure and key performance indicators (KPI) Chapter

B BRERERE-RERRBREEE KP) FREEH

B4: Labour General Information on Employment overview
standards disclosure (@  the policies; and EEEIR

B4 : TR —R (b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant

impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labour.

BEPAETHRS T

@ HE:R
b) BETHBETABEATENEREZERAONER -
B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and Employment overview
forced labour EEER
iR RRENMEEAREET REHST
B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered Employment overview
MR E R BN B A RIBRPTRERE S5 ERER
B5: Supply chain General Policies on managing environmental and social risks of supply chain. Supply chain management
management  disclosure ERHEERNRE R ERMEBCR HEER
Bs: HEHEE KRB
B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region Supply chain management
EiR B EEEE HEER
B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers where  Supply chain management
the practices are being implemented, how they are implemented and monitored £ EE 12
HOABREAHEENED  MARTEREMNNEEHHRE - URE
HEPINRITRERAZ
B6: Product General Information on Quality assurance
responsibility disclosure (@  thepolicies;and EERE
B6: EmEMT — BB (b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant Service system
impact on the issuer Rz
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relatingto ~ Communication with
products and services provided and methods of redress. customers
FAMRMERMBRBNERELZS  BS SERLEZEUREYR  XPER
TIEH) :
@ HE:R
b) ETHBTABEATENEREERAONEL -
B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and health  Quality assurance
reasons EERE

EERCERERBHTRR2ERFEMMARNKNED L
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Chapter

B HEREAERE-RKERERENEE KP)
B6.2

B7. Anti-corruption
B7 - RE)S

B8: Community
investment

B8 : HEIRE

110

B6.3

B64

B6.5

General
disclosure

—RRE

B7.1

B7.2

General
disclosure

—REE

B8.1

B8.2

Number of products and service related complaints received and how they are
dealt with

BREBNER LR RFEE AREHTA

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual property
rights

H R A T ARIR NGB E R I 1B

Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures

B B E B N E R RiE

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they are
implemented and monitored
HWHEESERERLEBE - AREBRITREERE

Information on

@  thepolicies;and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
BERER  HFR - BEFROERER

@ BE: &

b) ETHBETABEAZENEBZEZERADNER -

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against
the issuer or its employees during the Reporting Period and the outcomes of the
cases RERAAN G EIT A EER R T B EENB SFARMFHNEHE
SEENES

Description of preventive measures and whistleblowing procedures, how they are
implemented and monitored

fa e R RBRERT LR REE R

Policies on community engagement to understand the need of the communities
where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into the communities’
interests.
ARUHR2ERTREEMEHEFTENRREAXKEDGERLR
M EBE

Focus areas of contribution

HraREE

Resources contributed to the focused area

EZIEBMHAER
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PR B

Communication with
customers

The Company continuously
promotes refined complaint
management and strives to
make a disclosure in respect of
the number of complaints
received in the future
P&
ARRRFEHERFBAL
BB RERRBEERF
g8

Innovation research

I B

Quality assurance
HERE
Communication with
customers

BPER
Operating compliance
BREE

Operating compliance
AREE

Operating compliance
AREE

Sincere dedication and giving
back to the community

EWER - DHitE

Sincere dedication and giving
back to the community
ERER - ORitE
Sincere dedication and giving
back to the community

ERER - OHRHE



Independent Auditor’s Report
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Ernst & Young

22/F CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong

EYzx

To the shareholders of Nanjing Sinolife United Company Limited
(Established in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Nanjing Sinolife
United Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group’) set out on pages 118 to 210, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

BRRABA

ZXKE BT Tel E3%: +852 2846 9888
EHPIBREEE Fax {EE:+852 2868 4432
Rz K E2212 ey.com

BERPEBHASRAERATRE

(R ZEA REFBE K 8B R A7)

RPDEF 118 E 210 EFE P A B A R
ERAR([ERARA]) REKMBAR((EE£E]) 2
RATBERER > BIFENR2020F12A31H 24546
BN ERREEZBIEFE 2 RE B R HA
PHANSER  GEAEREHRREARERER
IARERE I TSRENE - BIEEEGTHERBE -

RMRE  HREVBERRBEEESTMAE
((BEBESNEMAT ) iz BB I5HE2ER
((BEAMBREENDEERAF R T &
EBEMN2020F 12A31BZEETBRAREZE
ZEEFEZGAVBRAREGERERE
WERBEBQAGEHIZ BBERTESHE -

R 2 M
BMBRBEEESHMASRMG 2B BETER
([BERGERDETETLIE BRANZIE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section
of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit
included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.

Key audit matter

A BT it

PR ERDBERMAZ FEHE - RRMY
AR AMBRERZBHAPREELER - %5
EERRMY AP BRABEETE LA
FRBMZERBER - ANTHRZSEERY
BEER - WA TEEERMS « RIS
DR FSHPAREZEE -

BABTAREFEHENFA G BFRE A
Iz EE BREZFFTREME - A
b BB BRETE ERYR MBS
BRRENFERRML AR < FERF - HFIFEFT
BEzER BRERAREATEEMBITZE
F o REAEHRSEMBERE 2 BB RREHR
i o

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

HARETEE

Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives

BB REHRZ 0w TREFEEL R E

As at 31 December 2020, the Group recorded goodwill and intangible
assets with indefinite lives of RMB34,491,000 and RMB 12,625,000,
respectively, which represented 7.67% and 2.81% of the total assets of
the Group, respectively.
R20205F12A31H - EXEBGHERERSGTRELEE
BRE 5 Bl A A R % 34,491,000 7T & A B2 #6 12,625,000 7T + 43 Al 48
B EEEREEMNT767%5281% -

Under Hong Kong Accounting Standard 36 “Impairment of Assets”, the
Group is required to perform impairment tests for goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite lives both annually and whenever there
is an indication that a cash-generating unit (“CGU") to which these assets
have been allocated may be impaired. Management performed
impairment tests on these assets by using future discounted cash flow
models as at 31 December 2020. This was considered as a key audit
matter because the assessment was complex, and it involved significant
judgements and assumptions such as the long-term growth rate and
discount rate.

RIEBB ST ERE 06N [EERE] EEBEASFRIRAR
SKETESEBENEHEENRCELSN EEEAHER
FHNHELREBEPEEETFENEINR((REELEM]) AT
BERSERFHNHERELEEETRERG - 120205 12
A3 EERBRARKERRSRERNHZZEEETRER
A HRFEEREM  PREORPERERFRENEZ
B R BRER - SRR AR RSt EIR -

The related disclosures are set out in notes 3, 16 and 17(b) to the
consolidated financial statements.

HEARESH NGRS M EHRERME3 16 X 17(b) °

112

RAzE T NMEERERETSE

We evaluated the processes and key controls of the
Group over the assessment on impairment of goodwill
and intangible assets with indefinite lives. We
reviewed the basis of preparation of the forecasts used
for the impairment tests for goodwill and intangible
assets with indefinite lives. We involved our internal
valuation specialist to assist us in reviewing the
methodology and certain assumptions adopted in the
assessment of impairment of goodwill and intangible
assets with indefinite lives. We also reviewed
management'’s assessment of the sensitivity of the
Group's impairment model to reasonably possible
changes and considered the adequacy of the
disclosures of impairment testing in the consolidated
financial statements.

HiPEHE ESEEUBREREASGTRERE
ERREFHHE) R R EZ ] o P25 ER
FHNMELREERERAS S TRELEEAR
EAIHPT R FROR A AR B A - RAAITRBAEREE
EXHHBRAEHERFHEHELBELEERE
FHEFTERA B A R A TR - HKFIIAEHER
BY BSSRERERINHASEAEESHNERE
EHE L Z BFE M BHRENRENARENT
B e
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter

[38 34 % it 3 0H (4)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

B zEtnmEERERETSE

Net realisable value of inventories

FEA#E % E

As at 31 December 2020, the Group recorded inventories of
RMB83,145,000. Management judgements and estimates are required in
assessing whether the carrying value is higher than the net realisable
value ("NRV") of the inventories on hand at the year end, especially of
those slow-moving inventories which may become obsolete.
M20205F 12 A31H - BEEEHRSFEARKES3,1450007T © R&F
HFRFEFENRAEESERNAI SR FE(TSRFE])
LHERABEKABRNEHTER - SREREIREHE Kb -

Significant judgements and estimates are also required in determining
the write-down of inventories to NRV, which involves management's
expectations of the forecast inventory sales and usage and the estimated
selling price of inventories based on the current market condition and
the historical experience of selling products of a similar nature. Therefore,
we considered this as a key audit matter.

BT EMORE AT R HER RREL EXAE MGG - P RE
BERBEEAMARGERUEEERNBELSRHETEZHE
BREASELHEARBGEFEEESE - Bt - HMAKRLESBEGR
EETEE -

The related disclosures are set out in notes 3 and 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.

MHEARBEHNRA M EHRRMEI K18 -

FARPAEHES

We evaluated the design and implementation of
management’s controls over the assessment of the
net realisable value of inventories. We obtained an
understanding of the Group's inventory provision
policy and checked the calculation of the inventory
provision based on the Group's policy. We evaluated
management’s assumptions used to calculate the
provision by checking the ageing of inventories,
subsequent sales and usage of inventories on a
sampling basis. We also checked the subsequent
selling prices to the sales orders and invoices on a
sampling basis.

B E R B FE I R R EE T
Rt kB - B TH BEEEFEREEHERERL
Rz EEEBRRREFERBOTE - RS
BHEHAERTFENERE FENDPRFEER
RERERTEERERNFEREIRR - &
PP ZEMENHETENRREBRER -

HBERRE —E_TEER
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors of the Company determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in

discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group'’s financial
reporting process.

114
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

BRRABA

B BRI AR S B Ik 2 BT

M2z B ERHRAMBHRREAEREL TR
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B EAET B RS RREFEZERERR
it o $RERPRAM AT BE A ERRF Sl EE AR S - WA E
BRA I AEBHEYERFPREZSRAY
BIRRAEZEERR - AREREABRBL -

ERIRBEBABMETRAZ 8D  BRAEER
EZ T AR 1T (68 38 5 B 30 A 15 SR A AR © 3P
I

5l R eFfh R AREF SR AR T B BUR & B
BHRRFEERERRAZAR - Rt Rk
MITBEAREFAREZFAR - A RER
RENMEE 2B EE FREMABRZ
Hit - HIRARFARES R BER ~ i - BR
BIR - BRI - SORBRAERESZ k-
Hib REE R EAMFMEH 2 EAHRK
Mz EBRERARERRARBRMER 2 E
KgmRRa 2 R -

THREEHEBEZAMES > URFTEE
ZEFEF - BENAFYE BEEEARN
EH2BERIEERER -

HEEEMRASTER ZBEEREL
SEtER AR EREZ AR

HBERRE —E_TEER

115



Independent Auditor’s Report
Y ST A2 B

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor's report is Lawrence KW. Lau.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 March 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and

Other Comprehensive Income

)%T\ E\ﬁn&

oAt 22 T A i

Year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 12 A31 HILFE

2020 2019
2020 F 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETTT

REVENUE W 5 296,525 322613
Cost of sales SHER A (125,821) (165,775)
Gross profit EH 170,704 156,338
Other income and gains L PN E 5 12,735 8673
Selling and distribution expenses HE NS HR X (132,898) (185, 436)
Administrative expenses THF X (77,571) (85,187)
Finance costs & B A 7 (1,275) (3 601)
Other expenses HF (15,857) (72,841)
LOSS BEFORE TAX BRELAIEE (44,162) (181,554)
Income tax expense FriS &t X 10 (5,443) (13,104)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR KEEEE (49,605) (194,658)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME H fth 2 (&518) A
Other comprehensive (loss)/income that REER AR e E DI A

may be reclassified to profit or loss in BENEMEE (BE),/

subsequent periods, after tax: A - BRELE -
Exchange differences on translation of MEGINETREE X =58

foreign operations (231) 2,153
Other comprehensive income that will REEE BRI~ EH SR

not be reclassified to profit or loss in BammEMmEERA

subsequent periods, after tax: BriZ
Gains on property revaluation M E GRS 1,049 101
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS rEERHEBRARE

FOR THE YEAR (48,787) (192,404)
Loss attributable to: LA S IEFE(E E1E -

Owners of the parent NEEB A (49,605) (194,658)
Total comprehensive loss attributable to: TN EBEEGEEBEEE

Owners of the parent UNSIEZUN (48,787) (192,404)
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO BAREBEREE AEN

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF BREE

THE PARENT RMB A R ¥ RMBAR¥E

— Basic and diluted — HEARNEE 12 (5.24) cents 3 (20.57) cents >
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Ara BRI 3R

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

2020
2020 &

RMB’000
AR®TR

2019
20194
RMB'000
ARETFIT

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BWENMRE 13 108,363 154,966
Investment properties B 14 40,608 2,630
Right-of-use assets FHREEE 15 19,514 28,880
Goodwill R 16 34,491 43413
Other intangible assets Himp & 17 24,751 30,361
Deferred tax assets EEFIAE E 26 9,830 12,763
Other non-current assets HM3Emsh&EE 29 176 5,454
Total non-current assets EMBEEMLTE 237,733 278,467
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 18 83,145 89,751
Trade receivables B 5 W GIE 19 33,040 44,400
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  TEff3XI8 « & M EMEWFIA 20 14,431 17,434
Tax recoverable EdEEE 2,995 3,462
Pledged deposits EERRe 21 1,271 1,685
Cash and cash equivalents HehIREeEFEY 21 77,116 107,521
Total current assets BB EAEE 211,998 264,253
Total assets BE®E 449,731 542,720
CURRENT LIABILITIES mENEE
Trade payables B SN HIE 22 16,185 13,495
Other payables and accruals H b e FRIB R BT E R 23 42,999 59,318
Interest-bearing bank borrowings sTEERITER 24 - 27,500
Lease liabilities HERE 15 4,777 6,256
Tax payables BT S 6,445 6,545
Total current liabilities mENB BB 70,406 113,114
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 141,592 151,139
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES A& ER GBI A& 379,325 429,606
ERPAEBARGAERAT —T_TFEEFR 119



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

AR B AR DLR

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

2020 2019
2020 F 20194

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE

Lease liabilities HERE 15 8,686 13,013

Deferred tax liabilities REFITEA R 26 7,499 4,715

Provision Bt 25 777 728
Total non-current liabilities EmB B EERE 16,962 18456
Net assets BEFE 362,363 411,150
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners BAREE ABGEER

of the parent

Share capital R& AN 27 94,630 94,630

Other reserves Hith g 28 267,733 316,520
Total equity A 362,363 411,150

Gui Pinghu Zhang Yuan
Chairman and Executive Director Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
EFRFHITEF BEANTERHNTESF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

e T G A Bl 3R

Year ended 31 December 2020 &= 2020F 12 A31 HILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

SINGE 2PN L
Exchange  Statutory Asset
Share Capital  fluctuation surplus Merger Other revaluation Accumulated Total
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve  reserve** losses equity
EX EE BEEf
BEx EAGE RBRE BEHEE ARG HitRR e RAER fgs
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR ARETn ARETR ARETR ARTn AR%Tr ARETn AR%ET:n
(note 27) (note 28) (note 28) (note 28) (note 28) (note28)  (note28)
(Wita2r)  (Mfis)  (Wikas)  (HiEE2s)  (Mistas)  (Mtas) (Hfaias)
At 1 January 2020 2020F1A1H 94,630 544,223 (1,670) 57,007 (3,871) (2,022) 101 (277,248) 411,150
Loss for the year AEEER - . - N - - - (49,605) (49,605)
Changesin fair value of investment A7 EiF AL ZE
properties at fairvalue through Wiz 2 REME AR E
other comprehensiveincome, &3 - MK FIA
net of tax - - - - - - 1,049 - 1,049
Exchange differences on translation 7 B8 G 5N E A
of foreign operations EHEE - - (231) - - - - - (231)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income A E 2
forthe year (B#8) / Nt - - (231) - - - 1,049 (49,605) (48,787)
Liquidation of subsidaries i - - - (1,105) - - - 1,105 -
At 31 December 2020 R2020%12A318 94,630 544,223* (1,901)% 55,902* (3,871)% (2,022)* 1,150* (325,748)* 362,363
o These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated other reserves of RMB267,733,000 * I ERER B REGREMBERRRANGE LM FEEA
(2019: RMB316,520,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position. R ¥ 267,733,0007T (20194 : AR¥316,5200007T) °
% The asset revaluation reserve arose from a change in use from an owner-occupied o BEEMREFEEHAR2020F R 2019FHEFEBYEE
property to an investment property carried at fair value in 2020 and 2019. ERBRBRANBEIRZREMEMELE -
HARAPEBERNBRART —T_TFFR 121



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Rr S\ L 454
AEOTERS S E K
Year ended 31 December 2020 & ZE2020F 12 A31 HILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

Exchange Statutory

Share fluctuation

capital

Capital surplus

reserve reserve

AREFT

Merger

reserve

T
RMB000.

ARETT
(note 28)

Other
reserve

LA et

RMB'000

Asset
revaluation
reserve**
BEE
E1
RMB'000
ARBFT

Accumulated
losses

Total
equity

At 1 January 2019 R2019F1 A 18 94,630 544223 (3823) 58,230 (3871) (2022) - (83813) 603,554
Loss for the year AEEEE = = = = = = = (194,658) (194,658)
Changes in fair value of investment A/t EiF AEM2E

propertiesat fairvalue thiough Mz 2 REMEAR(E

other comprehensive income, 25 NBFHE

net of tax - - - - - - 101 - 101
Exchange differences on translation 5 B &GN E KK

of foreign operations ERES = = 2153 = = = = = 2153
Total comprehensive income/(loss)  AEEZEMRA /

for the year (BB ez - - 2153 - - - 101 (194658)  (192404)
Liquidation of subsidiaries WEARRR - - - (1203) - - - 1223 -
At 31 December 2019 R 201912831 B 94630 544,223* (1,670)* 57,007* (3871)* (2022¢ 101* (277, 248) 411,150
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended 31 December 2020 &= 2020F 12 A31 HILFE

2020 2019
2020 F 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETTT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETHRIRE
Loss before tax BB AT AR (44,162) (181,554)
Adjustments for: BTN S BEL A -
Finance costs BMEKA 7 1,275 3,601
Bank interest income HITHEWA 5 (689) (2,895)
Depreciation of property, Y~ B REETE
plant and equipment 13 13,214 12,841
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHREEEINE 15 5,908 6,737
Amortisation of other intangible assets H & EE 17 2,806 3,667
Changes in fair value of investment WEYE 2 AAEEE
properties (679) =
Loss on disposal of property, LEYE - BERZEEE
plant and equipment 6 3,888 49
Write-down of inventories to net WoRfF B2 A 2 10)5E
realisable value 6 6,552 3,294
Reversal of provision of trade receivables B 5 WG IR R E R Tl 19 (1,537) (663)
Impairment loss of goodwill AEREEE 16 8,993 34,798
Impairment loss of other intangible assets Hibmp & EREsE 17 2,738 36,066
(1,693) (84,059)
Decrease in inventories FER 208 19,635
Decrease in pledged deposits, prepayments, D EF « BN FIE - 2E K&
deposits and other receivables H {th B U FROE R D N 3,413 6,851
Decrease in trade receivables B 5 W IEm 12,721 14,588
Increase /(decrease) in trade payables B 5 e REgm, Crd) 2,603 (2,/410)
Decrease in other payables E A FET IR R
and accruals FEFT & AR (1,135) (24,694)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations &SRS (FTA)IRE 16,117 (70,089)
Income tax refunded FRiS TR K 291 1,953
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating EEEBNETS(FTA)
activities RemE R 16,408 (68,136)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZHESARE
Payments to acquire property, WEEMZ « BB MR ERI R
plant and equipment (13,207) (20,922)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BE RBHETSHRIE
plant and equipment 21 510
Interest received B YA E 694 3,007
Net cash flows used in investing activities KB EHMARS RS %5 (12,492) (17,405)
MRPABARNERAR —T_TFEFRH 123



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Year ended 31 December 2020 #ZE2020F 12 831 HIEFE

2020
2020 F

Notes RMB’000
B 5E AR¥ T

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMEETHESRE

2019
20194
RMB'000
AREFIT

New bank loans FERITERK 24 - 20,000
Interest paid BFE (1,300) (3617)
Repayment of bank loans EEBITER 30 (27,500) (20,000)
Principal portion of lease payments HENFAREH S 30 (5,251) (5,723)
Net cash flows used in financing activities REEERRS R EE (34,051) (9,340)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH RERRLEEYRLD FHE

EQUIVALENTS (30,135) (94,881)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year F#J3R & MIRGEEY) 107,521 201,411
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net  [EREBH) L 2E - B 50 (270) 991
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ERAEERAEEEY

AT END OF YEAR 77,116 107,521
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERRESEEWERDN

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances B & NIRRT 21 59,900 91,521
Non-pledged time deposits with original Wi REN B E & =18 A AR

maturity of less than three months R E HfE R

when acquired 21 17,216 16,000
Cash and cash equivalents as stated HeneExkmMyRe &

in the statement of cash flows BEEEY 77,116 107,521
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Notes to the Financial Statements

S B AR B AR

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. AulREEMER
The Company is a joint stock limited liability company established AKABTIRFBEKZ RO BRAF - 5
in the PRC. The address of its registered office is 30/F, Deji Building, MRt AP T &4 E R m AR =
188 Chang Jiang Road, Xuanwu District, Nanjing, Jiangsu Province, RITEK 188 5B E NE 3048
the PRC.
The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of RNEBEEEFE  BAFNE RAFEEE
nutritional supplements and health food products in the PRC, FRENMEEEERERB AN MRAERS °

Australia and New Zealand.

Information about subsidiaries A B B 2 W) 2 &R
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2020 MR2020F 12 A3 BARREEZMB AR Z
are as follows: HIEWT
Place of incorporation Percentage of
or establishment and equity attributable
place of operation/ Fully paid to the Company
date of incorporation share capital/ AT LR
or establishment/ registered ZED Principal
type of legal entity capital Direct Indirect  activities
A B L B AR 37 it B
R GEM A S SR AL T BHERE,
B, EAER A E A HE miE IEXK
ARPEEYRIEBRAR The PRC RMB50,000,000 100% - Manufacture, processing and
17 June 2003 sale of health food products
Limited liability company
FE AR HE  MINHEERER®
2003F6 A 17H 50,000,000 7T
BRAE
ARESEEFHBERLA  ThePRC RMB1,000,000 100% - Retailing of health food
21 April 2015 products
Limited liability company
HE AR 1,000,0007T TERRRM
20154 821 H
BRAE
Australia Cobayer Health Food Australia AUD2,000 100% - Trading of food products
Co Pty Ltd. 2 March 2009
Limited liability company
JEAMEE 2,00027T EmE5
200943 A2 H
ARAE
EBENMEEERERAR The PRC RMB120,000,000 100% - Investment holding

21 October 2014
Limited liability company

R ARE REER
2014F 108218 120,000,000 7
BRAT
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Notes to the Financial Statements

S B AR B AR

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 B

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Good Health Products Limited
('GHP") ([GHP )

PERBEBRRBRAA
(‘Hejian”) ([ Rf&])

LEEREEMEERAR

Living Nature Natural Products
Limited (‘LN") ([LNJ)

TR (R ) BR AT

126

Place of incorporation
or establishment and

place of operation/ Fully paid
date of incorporation share capital/
or establishment/ registered
type of legal entity capital
1 B L B AR 7 it B

R B TEM AR SR AR I BBERE
B,/ SEAER EMEA
New Zealand NZD2,200,002
22 December 1987

Limited liability company

g | 2,200,002
198712 A 228 AT
ARAA

The PRC RMB20,000,000
30 May 2007

Limited liability company

H AR
20074F5 A 30H 20,000,000 7T
ARAA

The PRC RMB1,000,000
30 September 2011

Limited liability company

H ARE
2011F9A30H 1,000,000 7
BRAF]

New Zealand NZD14,784,444
1987

Limited liability company

i 14,784,444
1987 4 AATaRE T
BRAF]

The PRC RMB500,000
13 July 2020

Limited liability company

H ARE
20207 A 13H 500,000 7T
BRAF]

o) B SR MR (4])

A A B Ja 2 ] 2 R ()

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company
ERRIELER
PA=E

Direct Indirect

HE i

= 100%
100% =
= 100%
100% =
100% =

NANJING SINOLIFE UNITED COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Principal
activities

FTEEH

Manufacture, processing and
sale of health food products

EE MIRHERERR

Retailing of health food
products

TERRARM

Information technology
maintenance services

=B R4 AR TS

Manufacture, and sale of
cosmetics and skin care
products

HEREE R NS

Testing of health food products

AERERR



Notes to the Financial Statements

S5 i R B R

31 December 2020 2020512 A 31 H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (which include
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“‘HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for investment properties which have been measured at fair
value. These financial statements are presented in Renminbi and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2020. A
subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of
the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(©)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to
be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

BRRABA

2.1 #HmBdsLue

ZEMBBRRDREZEEAMAE (&
BEETMAE]) BAHEEMBRELER
(IFEMBHREER]) (BEMBREYE
HEL| - FEEHE(FE S L)
Kal) REELRETRAANRBEAT
RO FERERmEL - 2T H WK THIRIE
SERABOIRE  ERAAEFENRE
MERIN - ZEMBHBRERAARKEZS
ME&RIERZBIERAI MAERECDHNEER
BT TAL -

P I e
REVBREREEBEADRRENB AR (5
WMAEIAER]) REZE2020F 12318 1k
FEZUBRE -WBRARIARAREE
SEEEFHNER(BEABLER) - 2
REEFBDHEFERETMEZBRBEE
BRIk AR HEBEWIEETD
N2z ER R (BRAENE T AER
B RIfEREIRE S AR EBIRIEE ) B - B
BRI o

EANTEERAERENRRENRE
RIBURNTIRAF  BFFAREHS
HERETHRNR  AEESEEMA
HEAZEEMER - B ¢

(@ BERRETHNHEMEEREEZE
BR%H

b) WEMERTHMEHNES &
© AEENKRERRETRERE-

B A R A AR Ty iR AR R B — B
THREHABRRE - WBRAREENS
IR AR EESHZZH B A ] H4% 5
B2k WIFRAEERIBEEHEL

B o

RERDT —T_TEER 127



Notes to the Financial Statements

R E RS

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

128

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the
non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control described above. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair
value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or
deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit
or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as
would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities.

2.1 #mdBLUE (4)

1 pE ALY (4)
BEMEMEERANSERXEDFB
RASBERRANHEA A RIFFERERS
BIE R E YIRS BB AL AR - FT
BEREARREMNEERAR  #am - K
A AXEREXAKEKBRARZARSH
AR SR ENNGA IR B RASMH -

B FERBERER XA =R ZH H
EPW-HIAZHELARE (L ARESE

M GEEREEIRRET - WERKED
BB AR R EERE S ARAR
PN

i N SR R 25 S T B R I R0 FR 4 - RUAR
IHERZMBRARNONEE(RRRE) R
BIE - (VEFIHER RS RE SR ¢ R
Mg ARCERM RETE R 28 - WHER()
PR BB ASME ¢ (i) TR B IR E /Y
anfE: Ri)BaEPEAREEEENR
BB - TRERNEMEEKRARER
MARERESDEN D EERDIRE
MEBE(ER)  EEEASEEZRLEHN
EEXBBEMERNEERR -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

S B A R B AL

31 December 2020 2020512 A 31 H

2.2

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 and the following revised HKFRSs for the first time for
the current year's financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions
(early adopted)
Definition of Material

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Except for the amendment to HKFRS 16 described below, the
adoption of these revised standards did not have any material effect
on the financial performance and position of the Group.

Amendment to HKFRS 16 provides a practical expedient for lessees
to elect not to apply lease modification accounting for rent
concessions arising as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic. The practical expedient applies only to rent concessions
occurring as a direct consequence of the pandemic and only if (i)
the change in lease payments results in revised consideration for
the lease that is substantially the same as, or less than, the
consideration for the lease immediately preceding the change; (i)
any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally
due on or before 30 June 2021; and (iii) there is no substantive
change to other terms and conditions of the lease. The amendment
is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020
with earlier application permitted and shall be applied
retrospectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, certain monthly lease
payments for the leases of the Group's plant and machinery have
been reduced or waived by the lessors upon reducing the scale of
production as a result of the pandemic and there are no other
changes to the terms of the leases. The Group has early adopted the
amendment on 1 January 2020 and elected not to apply lease
modification accounting for all rent concessions granted by the
lessors as a result of the pandemic during the year ended 31
December 2020. Accordingly, a reduction in the lease payments
arising from the rent concessions of RMB210,000 has been
accounted for as a variable lease payment by derecognising part of
the lease liabilities and crediting to the corresponding right-of-use
assets for the year ended 31 December 2020.

BRRABA

2.2 G nkBCRAE B K R R

AEBRAFERBHRER B RIRN2018F
BZHBREHMCERRIATRETT TR
AT RS R o

BB TSRS AR Ev io)as
FIFBIAR

ERMBRELRF N - FIEEEAE
BRI ENFEIORK

B IRE %R

FIRBITAR

BB TSRS AR CoviD-19 1AfF A &
F165IERTA R (TR R)

BERIENZ BRES EAMTH
BHERIZHETA

B T X Pt &8 B 15 & 2E RIS 1657 1B R
A RAZSREFTENEAEE ZH
BRI|ENRL BEMEAZE -

BBV SRS ERF 165IE T AN BATEA
IREAIITHREE L AR ERRCOVID-19
BENEERREE2HeREEAMAE
BRI BFTRIE - ZNTRESEZEEAR
RENEEREREARSHE  WIEEMN
TERTEA : () BENREEREBEIERT
HERBEABERKERBEZEHR 2
HAERE : )\ HEMRZEMRIEERE
RE|HH A& 2021 %6 A 30 B el Z BIRIA L
R (i A ERARAGH I EELES) -
ZIERT AN 20204 6 A1 BEk 2 816 2 &
EHBER  AFFiREERIUKRERPE
)EH o

HZE20200F 12A31HIEFE > ARNEEBE
BEEREBERD  HBEADRLHEHBER
EEHER#EHENETEAREMNF
MAEKRRTEEMETH . AEBER
2020%F 1 A1 BIRBIRMZISE] - WEED
HEBEAREZE2020F12 A31BIEFER
ZEMREZAERASREEARAEER]
S ERE - Al AR emEEZH
B FURIE A R 210000 7T 2 3B B |- HE
REHE2020F12A31BILFEZBHAE
BERTAMESCAEEE - AKRIET
FHET -

RERDT —T_TEER 129



Notes to the Financial Statements

S B A R B AL

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.
Amendments to HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKFRS 9,

HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 17

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2"

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture*

Insurance Contracts®

Insurance Contracts*®

Gl

2.3 CLAE A H 0 R A B 2 7 v B

AEBYER I ER B RERAEBERMG
BREBRZIAT I REERT B EMBR

A -
BEABRSANEY  MAERZEN
a7

BRABRIANS R FFERYE—
BEEIREE G FoEA

BAMSREERE TS
BAM SRS ERF 45
REBHHREER
F16HETA
BAMBREEAE 105

REZERBENAZL

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current*®
Disclosure of Accounting Policies®
Definition of Accounting Estimates
Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use?
Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract?
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs ~ Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9,
2018-2020 [llustrative Examples accompanying
HKFRS 16, and HKAS 412

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong Kong Interpretation 5
Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised in October 2020
to align the corresponding wording with no change in conclusion

° As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October 2020,
HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption that permits
insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning
before 1 January 2023

wos woN -

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact
of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application. The Group
expects that the adoption of the new and revised HKFRSs will have
no significant financial effect on the Group's results of operations
and financial position.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date
fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether
to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the
acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group's
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable
net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in
profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of
the Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill
disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for the
asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the
most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair
value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by
using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best
use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 —  based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 —  based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly
or indirectly

Level 3 —  based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
deferred tax assets, financial assets and investment properties), the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit's value in
use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in
which it arises in those expense categories consistent with the
function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to
an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the
period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for
that revalued asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

(b)

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

0]

(if)

(iif)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

0]

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity);
and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. When an item of property, plant and equipment
is classified as held for sale or when it is part of a disposal group
classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated and is accounted for
in accordance with HKFRS 5. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure that the fair
value of a revalued asset does not differ materially from its carrying
amount. Changes in the values of property, plant and equipment
are dealt with as movements in the asset revaluation reserve. If the
total of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an individual
asset basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income. Any subsequent
revaluation surplus is credited to the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income to the extent of the deficit previously
charged. An annual transfer from the asset revaluation reserve to
retained profits is made for the difference between the depreciation
based on the revalued carrying amount of an asset and the
depreciation based on the asset’s original cost. On disposal of a
revalued asset, the relevant portion of the asset revaluation reserve
realised in respect of previous valuations is transferred to retained
profits as a movement in reserves.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 5%
Leasehold improvements 33%-49%
Plant and machinery 10%-20%
Furniture and fixtures 20%-33%
Motor vehicles 20%-25%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under construction,
which is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the
period of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions
at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in the year of the retirement or disposal.

If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied property
becomes an investment property, the Group accounts for such
property in accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant
and equipment and depreciation” for owned property and/or
accounts for such property in accordance with the policy stated
under “Right-of-use assets” for property held as a right-of-use asset
up to the date of change in use, and any difference at that date
between the carrying amount and the fair value of the property is
accounted for as a revaluation in accordance with the policy stated
under “Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” above.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition. The
useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or
indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life
are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash-generating
unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life of
an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to
determine whether the indefinite life assessment continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Licence and health food certificates

The licence acquired as part of a business combination is valued at
fair value based on the relief from the royalty method. The licence
with indefinite useful life is tested for impairment annually. The
health food certificates acquired as part of a business combination
are valued at fair value based on the replacement cost method and
are amortised on the straight-line basis over their estimated useful
life of 5 years. Health food certificates acquired separately are stated
at cost less any impairment losses and are amortised on the
straight-line basis over their estimated useful life of 5 years.

Customer relationships

Customer relationships acquired as part of business combinations
were valued at fair value based on the multi-period excess earnings
method. Customer relationships are assessed as having finite useful
lives and are amortised on the straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives of 10 to 14 years.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)
Trademarks

The trademarks acquired as part of business combinations are
valued at fair value based on the relief from the royalty method.
Trademarks with finite useful lives are amortised on the straight-line
basis over their estimated useful life of 10 years. Trademarks with
indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually.

Distribution network

Distribution network acquired as part of a business combination is
valued at fair value and is amortised on the straight-line basis over
its useful life of 10 years.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach
for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments
and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying
assets.

(a)  Right-of-use assets
Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost,
less any accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the
lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets as

follows:

Leasehold land 50 years
Plant and machinery 2 to 8 years
Motor vehicles 2 to 3 years
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease at the present value of lease payments to be made
over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be
paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate
the lease. The variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the period
in which the event or condition that triggers the payment
occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate)
or a change in assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option). It also applies the recognition
exemption for leases of low-value assets.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract
to each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.
Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the
lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income due to its operating nature.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as
rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the
period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are accounted for
as finance leases.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on
the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group's business model for managing them. With the exception of
trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction
price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies
set out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income,
it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (“SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the
business model.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or
both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are
held within a business model with the objective to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial
assets classified and measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income are held within a business model with the
objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and
selling. Financial assets which are not held within the
aforementioned business models are classified and measured at fair
value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains
and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income when the asset is derecognised,
modified or impaired.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably
its equity investments as equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income when they meet the
definition of equity under HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is
determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
Dividends are recognised as other income in the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income when the right of
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the
amount of the dividend can be measured reliably, except when the
Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost
of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in other
comprehensive income. Equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income are not subject to
impairment assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify
at fair value through other comprehensive income. Dividends on
equity investments classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are also recognised as other income in the statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when the right of
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the
amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability
or non-financial host, is separated from the host and accounted for
as a separate derivative if the economic characteristics and risks are
not closely related to the host; a separate instrument with the same
terms as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a
derivative; and the hybrid contract is not measured at fair value
through profit or loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income. Reassessment only
occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract that
significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be
required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value

through profit or loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a
financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The financial
asset host together with the embedded derivative is required to be
classified in its entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit

or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e, removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial

position) when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has

transferred control of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards
of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit
or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or
other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk
on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the
Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely
to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking
into account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A
financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation
of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain a
significant financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group applies the simplified approach in
calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does
not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group
has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific
to the debtors and the economic environment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
lease liabilities and interest-bearing bank borrowings.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and
a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined by the weighted average method. Cost of
finished goods comprises direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is based
on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred
to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within
three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash
management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which
are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value
amount arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs
in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and the joint venture, when the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and the joint venture,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable
entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets
on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, for which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the
customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

Sale of nutritional supplements and packaged health food
products

Revenue from the sale of nutritional supplements and packaged
health food products is recognised at the point in time when
control of the asset is transferred to the customer, generally on
delivery of the nutritional supplements and packaged health food
products.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Some contracts provide customers with rights of return and volume
rebates. The rights of return and volume rebates give rise to variable
consideration.

(a)

(b)

Rights of return

For contracts which provide a customer with a right to return
the goods within a specified period, the expected value
method is used to estimate the goods that will not be
returned because this method best predicts the amount of
variable consideration to which the Group will be entitled.
The requirements in HKFRS 15 on constraining estimates of
variable consideration are applied in order to determine the
amount of variable consideration that can be included in the
transaction price. For goods that are expected to be returned,
instead of revenue, a refund liability is recognised. A right-of-
return asset (and the corresponding adjustment to cost of
sales) is also recognised for the right to recover products from
a customer.

Volume rebates

Retrospective volume rebates may be provided to certain
customers once the quantity of products purchased during
the period exceeds a threshold specified in the contract.
Rebates are offset against amounts payable by the customer.
To estimate the variable consideration for the expected future
rebates, the most likely amount method is used for contracts
with a single-volume threshold and the expected value
method for contracts with more than one volume threshold.
The selected method that best predicts the amount of
variable consideration is primarily driven by the number of
volume thresholds contained in the contract. The
requirements on constraining estimates of variable
consideration are applied and a refund liability for the
expected future rebates is recognised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as income in the accounting period
in which they are incurred.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to the
customer).

Right-of-return assets

A right-of-return asset is recognised for the right to recover the
goods expected to be returned by customers. The asset is measured
at the former carrying amount of the goods to be returned, less any
expected costs to recover the goods and any potential decreases in
the value of the returned goods. The Group updates the
measurement of the asset for any revisions to the expected level of
returns and any additional decreases in the value of the returned
goods.

Refund liabilities

A refund liability is recognised for the obligation to refund some or
all of the consideration received (or receivable) from a customer
and is measured at the amount the Group ultimately expects it will
have to return to the customer. The Group updates its estimates of
refund liabilities (and the corresponding change in the transaction
price) at the end of each reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Other employee benefits

Pension scheme

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in the PRC
are required to participate in a central pension scheme operated by
the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute certain fixed percentages of their payroll costs to the
central pension scheme. The contributions are charged to profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme.

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for its employees of
the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in the Hong Kong SAR.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed into
the MPF Scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e, assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Renminbi, which is the
Company's functional currency. Each entity in the Group determines
its own functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in
the Group are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the
end of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value
is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on the item
whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss, respectively).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance
consideration, the date of initial transaction is the date on which the
Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple
payments or receipts in advance, the Group determines the
transaction date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and joint
ventures are currencies other than Renminbi. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into Renminbi at the exchange rates prevailing at the end
of the reporting period and their profits or losses are translated into
Renminbi at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and
any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of
the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Renminbi at
the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into Renminbi at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating units and also
to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. The net carrying amount of goodwill at 31
December 2020 was RMB34,491,000 (2019: RMB43,413,000). Further
details are given in note 16.

Impairment of intangible assets with indefinite useful lives

The Group determines whether intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives is impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires an
estimation of the recoverable amount of the intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives. Estimating the recoverable amount requires
the Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows
from intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and also to choose
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows. The net carrying amount of intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives at 31 December 2020 was RMB12,625,000
(2019: RMB14,544,000). Further details are given in note 17.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less estimated selling expenses.
These estimates are based on the current market condition and the
historical experience of selling products of a similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in market conditions.
Management reassesses these estimates at each reporting date. At
31 December 2020, the net carrying value of inventories was
approximately RMB83,145,000 (2019: RMB89,751,000). Further
details are contained in note 18 to the financial statements.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses and
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the losses and
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies. The outcome of their actual utilisation may be
different. The net carrying value of deferred tax assets relating to
recognised tax losses and deductible temporary differences at 31
December 2020 was RMB9,830,000 (2019: RMB12,763,000). Further
details are contained in note 26 to the financial statements.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(@ Reportable segments

The Group determines its operating segments based on the
reports reviewed by the chief operating decision maker that
are used to make strategic decisions. For management
purposes, the Group operates in one business unit based on
its products, and has one reportable segment which is the
manufacture and sale of nutritional supplements and the sale
of packaged health food products in the PRC, Australia and
New Zealand.

BRRABA

3.

MERRAF

B kA B ARt (A

st A i€ H & (4)
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FEMRAZRFENINEEESBRESE
HH AT EERMETHER Y - ZE Mt
BRERREM RS EEREUERABE
KERIE - M se A Th 5 Z B 3R E K
o ERERSHMESHBMEMTHABM
e 2020128318 ' FENERFE
B N R #83,145000 7T (20194 © A R ¥
89,751,0007T) °© 3 — P FEIHE A B 7% e 5% B
FF18 e

BEEMIEEE

i P B B FE SR AL A A A LA SH 32 5 1B Ik
AIMMEREZ5 AR REANRBEER
FOMH = EREEHEEE - &
1 [Z ZE R 15 7R 2R FE ER A ) A X B B R I
HURR LA KR R IR TG R B SR BE 1 H R I
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(0

(d)

160

Geographical information

Most of the group companies are domiciled in the PRC and
the majority of the non-current assets are located in the PRC,
New Zealand and Australia. The Group’s revenue from
external customers is primarily derived in the PRC, New
Zealand and Australia.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from its
major markets:

4.

s

(b)

g1 kBB (4)

b 35 R

ANEREFE T KB D 2 A P8 3 2
BEAR#SMYIFRBEETULNFTE
ALPA R RO ARITE o NS 3R A SR
BEFHOWAETRETE - A &R
AHMEEELE °

NTRAKEREEEMHNKED
1

2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREET T
PRC =8 190,808 202,653
New Zealand BPEES 92,274 107,075
Australia SR A 25 4,227 6,380
Vietnam fEz] 1,334 842
Other countries HaE=xR 7,882 5,663
296,525 322,613

Non-current assets (© FFERHEE

2020 2019
2020 F 20194

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® T ARETIT

PRC S 161,264 172,191
New Zealand i 31,742 43,582
Australia YK F| 28 230 1,064
193,236 216,837

The non-current assets information above is based on the
locations of the assets and excludes goodwill, deferred tax
assets and other non-current assets.

Information about a major customer

No revenue from transactions with a single external customer
amounted to 10% or more of the Group’s revenue for the
year (2019: Nil).

(d

AEFRBEEZENIERNEEM
RUENFGEE ETHREER
HiIERBEE

AR —BEEEFNER
REFENREEE INEEERHH
Wz (i 78 £ B U 2R A9 109% 3k A _E (2019
F )
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, after
allowances for returns and trade discounts, and the value of services
rendered during the year.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

We i ~ B AW B A
WEERAFENEEERENBRERER
ERHMENERFERMBEREOE
fB -

3k - E WA REFIOAITOT -

2020 2019
2020 F 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T AREFIT

Type of goods or services E R ER
Sale of goods HEEm 296,456 322,454
Rendering of services R HRS 69 159
Total revenue from contracts with customers  RE B A4 2 WS 4258 296,525 322,613

Timing of revenue recognition Uy 22 T R

Goods or services transferred at a pointin time ¥ #2852 &' 7 5k AR 745 B3 B B 5 24 296,525 322,613
Total revenue from contracts with customers KRB B P A 42 WS 4258 296,525 322,613

The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised in
the current reporting period that were included in the contract
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period and recognised
from performance obligations satisfied in previous periods:

Revenue recognised that was included in

RERTFAGHARE

TRIFERARE AR A RS HIEH
BEK B BEMREENXE DR EAER
BB S -

2020 2019
2020 & 20194F

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARETT

contract liabilities at the beginning of Z B R E
the reporting period:
Sale of goods HEEm 7,386 7,957
ERPAEBARGAERAT —T_TFEEFR 161



Notes to the Financial Statements

S B AR B AR

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. Wess > HAW A K BA (%)
(CONTINUED)

2020 2019
2020 &£ 20194

Note RMB’000 RMB'000
T ARMTF T ARETT

Other income and gains g PN ST 6
Government grants* BT e 6 8,302 3,333
Reversal of provision of B 5 IR R R
trade receivables 6 1,537 663
Rental income LW A 1,071 64
Bank interest income RITHEWA 6 689 2,895
Fair value gains on investment WEWFZ AR ERE
properties 6 679 -
Foreign exchange differences, net PE N =5 558 6 440 1,539
Others Hih 17 179
12,735 8,673
= Various government grants have been received for the Group's contribution to & ARAEEEH T EERROER - EREIEE
the development of the local economy. There are no unfulfilled conditions or BFfEB& - BIMA MRS HBE M RTKEE
contingencies relating to these grants. BB EIE -
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6.

LOSS BEFORE TAX 6.

The Group's loss before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

B Bt il s 18

AEBEBRBATEEDEMR,(GEA) AT
BHREEH

2020 2019
2020 & 20194

RMB’000 RMB'000
N ARETT

Cost of inventories sold EEFENRAR
Depreciation of property, plant and W - BB MEREITE
equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREESENE

Lease payments not included in the R AHEAETEN
measurement of lease liabilities FAERE

Amortisation of intangible assets* EmEEEE

Auditor's remuneration 1% £ B = B

Research and development expenses  fiff 255 2

Changes in fair value of BEME 2 AAEEE)

investment properties
Employment benefit expense (excluding B TEFFH>S (TEIEESE -

directors’, supervisors' and chief BEE RITEARERH ) :
executive's remuneration):
Wages and salaries ITEMF®
Pension scheme contributions BRREBET IR
Other benefits Eia A

Foreign exchange differences, net ME = FE 3R

Impairment loss of goodwil[** B R EBE

Impairment loss of other H & R E R
intangible assets**

Reversal of provision of B 5 e GR IR R R e
trade receivables

Write-down of inventories to net WOR T & & ] B35 )5 E
realisable value***

Bank interest income RITH EWA

Government grants W B &

Loss on disposal of items of property,  HEWE - ME K&
plant and equipment REEENEE

13
15(a)

15(c)
17

14

17

19

119,269 162,481
13,214 12,841
5,908 6,737
650 5,368
2,806 3,667
2,380 2,580
5,176 3,538
(679) =
63,029 71,672
2,128 4,282
3,481 6,432
(440) (1,539)
8,993 34,798
2,738 36,066
(1,537) (663)
6,552 3,294
(689) (2,895)
(8,302) (3,333)
3,888 49

The amortisation of intangible assets for the year is included in “Selling and
distribution expenses” and “Administrative expenses” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

o The impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets is included in “Other
expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

The write-down of inventories to net realisable value for the year is included in
“Cost of sales” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

FARPAEHES

X

FREPEERE A GaRERECEZERE
R [HE RS | R [THRFx ] -

MEREGETEEREFAGEREE R e
EH R [EmREx ] -

FR - WREFEEAERMEF AGRERERE
b ZE AR P [SHERA] o
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7.  FINANCE COSTS 7. WA
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BERADHTWOT :
2020 2019
2020 20194
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt aE ARET T ARETT
Interest on bank loans RITE AL 290 2,333
Interest on lease liabilities HEAERN S 15(b) 985 1,268
1,275 3,601
8. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF 8. I - B RATBUAREGH
EXECUTIVE’'S REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed Rz EmARA - BB R AHRBDISE 383(1)() »
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)@), (b), (c) and (f) of the 0 QOROEARABI(HEESHNEER)
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies RO 2 PR R E S RITHAAE N F AR
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is Ban R -
as follows:

2020 2019
2020 & 20194F

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TF T ARETT

Fees ws 240 240
Other emoluments: H A -

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EALREWEAR 2,435 1,838

Performance related bonuses ERURE RS 1,465 1,770

Pension scheme contributions RIS FTEIH K 33 199

3,933 3,807

4,173 4047
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8. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF 8. HF - EHRATBURBGH M (%)
EXECUTIVE’'S REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)
(@) Independent non-executive directors (@ MBWUrIFEHITESR
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during RAFERBIIIFRITESZMAE
the year were as follows: ST :

2020 2019
2020 & 20194

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT

Mr. Zhang Jitong oRAESY S A 60 60

Ms. Cai Tianchen BHRRLT 120 120

Mr. Wang Wei FEEE 60 60
240 240

There were no other emoluments payable to the RAFE  WERBYIFRTEES

independent non-executive directors during the year (2019: A E AL BN (20196 : &) o

Nil).

(b) Executive directors and supervisors b)) BITEFRES

Salaries,
allowances Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses contributions remuneration

¥ 2R & B
e RENERN BERE  HEMRR FHA
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR AR®TR AR®TR ARETR AR®T:R

2020 2020
Executive directors HTEE
Mr. Gui Ping Hu LML - 671 - 23 694
Ms. Zhang Yuan FRLL - 517 537 2 1,056
Ms. Xu Li (note i) BELL (D) - - - - -
Ms. Zhu Feifei ARREL - 353 278 2 633
- 1,541 815 27 2,383
Supervisors E=x
Ms. Yu Min St - 370 293 2 665
Ms. Wu Xuemei (note iii REN L (P eFii) - - - - -
Ms. Lu Jiachun BEFEMLT L - 176 85 2 263
Mr. Tao Xingrong (note ii) P B 5 A (Pt =) - - - - -
Ms. Chen Xiu BAELL - 176 90 1 267
Ms. Wang Ping (note iv) Fiegt (i) - 172 182 1 355
- 894 650 6 1,550
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8. DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF 8. HF - EHRATBURBGH M (%)
EXECUTIVE’'S REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)
(b) Executive directors and supervisors (Continued) (b) FATEFRESF (M)

Salaries,
allowances  Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme Total
Fees inkind bonuses  contributions  remuneration

Fe o RR B BiRE
we REWEN @ REZE  HEHR HRe
RMB000 RMB00O RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARBTE ARETT ARBTE ARETT ARETE

2019 20194

Executive directors HOIESR
Mr. Gui Ping Hu T - 703 300 59 1,062
Ms. Zhang Yuan FRZT - 243 545 2% 812
Ms. Xu Li (note i) GREBLL (i) - 123 13 15 151
Ms. Zhu Feifei KRF Azt - 202 242 20 464

- 1,271 1,100 118 2489

Supervisors Ex
Ms. Yu Min RETt = 204 249 22 475
Ms. Wu Xuemei REWLL - 123 294 20 437
Ms. Lu Jiachun BefEiat - 124 64 20 208
Mr. Tao Xingrong (note i) P B 5 A (B =Ein) - - = = -
Ms. Chen Xiu &+ - 116 63 19 198

- 567 670 81 1,318

Notes: BisE

0) Resigned as executive director on 15 January 2020. 0] 202051 A 15 BEHERITES ©

(ii) Resigned as supervisor on 15 January 2020. (ii) 202041 A 15 HBHEES -

(iii) Resigned as supervisor on 5 June 2020. (iii) 20204 6 A5 HEHEES ©

(iv)  Appointed as supervisor on 5 June 2020. (v) 202056 A5 AEZTAES -

There was no arrangement under which a director or the RAFE  BEEENITHARBR

chief executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration KAEF R AHFME LS -

during the year.
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9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. hAEmFHME T
The five highest paid employees during the year included two RAFELERRFMETIBEMEES
directors and the chief executive (2019: two directors and the chief BT AER(C019F : MBEERITHE
executive), details of whose remuneration are set out in note 8 ) BEHBEFBER AR ES - RASF
above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining B RARBIBRTMAE 0195 - MB)IFE
two (2019: two) highest paid employees who are neither directors ERTHRAHN SRS HNE THFHMES
nor chief executive of the Company are as follows: (1N

2020 2019
2020 & 20194F

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR#TF T ARETT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e 2B REYER 4,411 2,238

Performance related bonuses B RS 677 518

Pension scheme contributions BIREETEIMER 3 36
5,091 2,792

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid FMEA T HE R IEEE RIETHREH &

employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is BEFMETHARBLNT :

as follows:

Number of employees

BIHA
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
Nil to HKD1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000 87T - 1
HKD1,000,001 to HKD1,500,000 1,000,001 37T 2 1,500,000 7 7T 1 =
HKD2,500,001 to HKD3,000,000 2,500,001 7 7T 2 3,000,000 78 7T - 1
HKD4,000,001 to HKD4,500,000 4,000,001 7T & 4,500,000 75 7T 1 =
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10. INCOME TAX

(@)

168

The amounts of income tax expense in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
represent:

10. Fifdhi

(@)

RizaBHEREMEEKRERTHPT
BHAX SRS

2020 2019
2020 20196
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARETTT

Current BNER
— PRC —rh 23 998
— New Zealand — 4 7aES 55 175
Overprovision in prior years BT EBREEE - (947)
78 232
Deferred (note 26) IRFE (PR3 26) 5,365 12,872
Total tax expense for the year NEFZHIAR Y B 5,443 13,104

One of the Group's subsidiaries obtained the Certificate of
High and New Technology Enterprise in 2019 and was
approved by the tax authorities to enjoy the preferential tax
rate of 15%. Except for the aforementioned subsidiary, the
income tax of the Company and its subsidiaries established in
the PRC are subject to the statutory rate of 25% of the
assessable profits as determined in accordance with the
relevant income tax rules and regulations of the PRC. New
Zealand Income tax is calculated at 28% of the assessable
profits of the subsidiaries operating in New Zealand. Australia
Income tax is calculated at 30% of the assessable profits of
the subsidiary operating in Australia.

REBE AR —FHEB R TR 2019FE
BEIEMEEREESE  ERHEH
B EZE15%MEBRR R - it
M AESN - AR RERA B
7B B 2 B &9 P 15 B R 3R AR 15 AR B 4R
R FT 15 7 48 Bl K 45 1) 8 7E A B SR A 7
M 25% KA E TR BB - MEEATE
FRIR A AL T 5 & B T B A R FEER B
FIEH 28% 5T &  BAR TS HIE
FAVE K Fl| 25 4 38 HY Bt /8B 2 R FE ER AR T
T 30% 5T E -
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10. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

(b) A reconciliation of the tax expense/(credit) applicable to loss
before tax at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which
the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are
domiciled to the tax expense/(credit) at the effective tax rates,

and a reconciliation of the applicable rates to the effective tax

rates are as follows:

10. Prfadi (4)

BARBRENES M E A BFER
SERE R MR E TR ET BB AR BR AT
BROTEMX(EKR) RIZERR
R EORIERZ(ER) EEK
ERTEEERREOLRNT

(b)

2020 2020 F
PRC New Zealand Australia Total
A BT | AARE @5t
RMB’000 %  RMB'000 %  RMB'000 %  RMB’000
ARBTT % AR¥TR % AR¥TR % ARBTR
(Loss)/profit before tax BEA(58)/FE (35,338) (9,179) 355 (44,162)
Taxat the statutory tax rates AT Rt ERHE (8,834) 250 (2,570) 280 106 300 (11,298) 256
Lower taxrates enacted by~ Ei = E LI
local authority BIEH X 105 (03) - - - - 105 (0.2)
Derecognition of deferred tax 48| AR FEH)
assets for the previous year ~ EEFREZE 3,674 (105) - - - - 3,674 (8.3)
Additional deductible HERZBINTIIR
alowanceforresearchand %53
development expenses (220) 0.6 - - - - (220) 0.5
Expenses not deductible for tax 7R AT 1R B 697 (2.0) 3,204 (34.9) - - 3,901 (8.8)
Taxlossesand temporary ~ FiIEEE R AR
differences not recognised BB EE 11,916 (337) - - - - 11,916 (27.0)
Tax losses utiised from EBHRRERE
prior years EENHEER (2,529) 72 - - (106) (30.0) (2,635) 6.0
Taxexpense at the Group's ~ RASEERH %
effective rate st ERBBR X 4,809 (13.6) 634 (6.9) - - 5,443 (123)
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10. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED) 10. Frfg e (4f)
(b)  (Continued) b)) (&)
2019 20194
New Zealand Australia
i | BRI
RMB000 RMB000 % RMB000 RMB000
ARETTT h ARBTT % ARETRT % ARETT
(Loss)/profit before tax BEA(58)/FE (180,660) 10424 (11318) (181,554)
Taxat the statutory tax rates  JRE T Rt EHHE (45,165) 250 2919 280 (3395) 300 (45,641) 251
Lower taxrates enacted by~ EHiEEFIHEMN
local authority BIEH % 218 0.1) - - - - 218 (0.1)
Derecognition of deferred tax 4% |- ERRBA FEH)
assets for the previous year  EREFIEEE 13090 (73) - - 2443 (216) 15,533 (86)

Additional deductible TR @I i

allowanceforresearchand %558

development expenses 279 02 - - - - (279 02
Expenses not deductible for tax A 18537 9897 55) 801 77 - - 10698 (59
Taxlossesand temporary ~ FEEE R AR

differences not recognised ~ EFEE 31,608 (175) - - 3410 (30.1) 35018 (193)
Tax losses utilised from EBRREREFRER

prior years WEBE (2671) 15 - - - - 2671) 15
Others it (363) 02 591 57 - - 28 (1)

Taxexpense at the Group's RSB BRI %
effective rate STEMRERS 6,335 (35) 4311 414 2458 217) 13,104 (72)

11. DIVIDENDS 1. BB

2020 2019
2020 £ 20194

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBTT

Dividends approved and paid BHUER RS - -
The Board has resolved not to declare any final dividend for the Year EFSERATHRAFESIREMR KPR
(2019: Nil). B(2019%F : &) -
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12. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 12.

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

The calculation of the basic loss per share amount is based on the
loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
946,298,370 (2019: 946,298,370) in issue during the year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on:

Loss 8
Loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of

the parent used in the basic loss per

B 0 W] % 0 HE &5 55 AN A f5 i
&5 18

BRENGSE DR ARERESEA A
FEEAFEEERAFED BTSRRI
1 F 15 £ 946,298,370 (2019 F : 946,298,370)
BRETHE o

HE2020FK2019F12A31HIEFE - K
SETEBFESEHITEER -

BRENBERIIRIATEEAE

2020
2020

2019
20195
RMB'000
AREFIT

RMB’000
AR®T T

AR SR EANEET ENEAT
LB AR

share calculation (49,605) (194,658)
2020 2019
2020 20194F
Shares & 4
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ~ FAAGIREAREIBHE R
for the purpose of the basic loss per share B A% DN 5 R
calculation 946,298,370 946,298,370
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13. W3 ~ WG Bk i

172

Furniture
Leasehold Plantand and Motor
Buildings  improvements machinery fixtures vehicles Total
53 BE%E  RERME  BERKE AE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARMTR
31 December 2020 R2020%128318
At January 2020: RN0F1A1A:
Cost A 144,897 9,196 18,682 22,590 8,495 203,860
Accumulated depreciation 2:E (17,921) (3,366) (10,609) (11,056) (5,942) (48,894)
Net cartying amount EETE 126976 5,830 8073 11,534 2,553 154,966
At January 2020, net of accumulated RNNEIAIA
depreciation BHREHE 126,976 5,830 8,073 11,534 2,553 154,966
Additions #m 2,584 - 17 744 291 3,636
Transfer to investment properties BRESREE (1)
(note 14) (33,001) - - - - (33,001)
Depreciation provided REEIRIE (ko)
during the year (note 6) (7,696) (408) (1,177) (2,943) (990) (13,214)
Disposals RE (1) (93) (990) (2,220 (605) (3,909)
Exchange reglignment ERRE - (23) (n3) (14) (5) (115)
At31 December 2020, net of RONENA3NA
accumulated depreciation EMBREHTE 88,862 5,306 5,850 7,101 1,244 108,363
At31 December 2020 RANE12A3NA:
Cost A 112,348 8,920 16,729 17,203 6,498 161,698
Accumulated depreciation Z:E (23,486) (3614) (10,879) (10,102) (5,.254) (53,335)
Net carrying amount BETE 88,862 5,306 5,850 7,101 1,244 108,363
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

13. W3k ~ W ki (48)

BT
RMBI000
ARBTT

Leasehold
Buildings - improvements

HERE
RMBI000
ARBTT

Plant and
machinery
Rils Rz
B000

Furniture
and

fixtures
FERKE
RMB'000
AREFT

Motor
vehicles in
"E
RMB'000
AEETFT

Construction

progress

FETRE

RMB000

ARBTT

Total

o
RMB'000
AREFTL

31 December 2019 2019% 124318
At 1 January 2019 R019F1A18 -

Cost AR 55589 6,789 17,661 22,391 8918 70,809 182,157

Accumulated depreciation 2itiE (13532) (3,225) (9352) (9229 (5,994) o (41332)

Net carrying amount GEHE 4057 3564 8309 13162 2924 70,809 140825
At 1 January 2019, net of R2019F1 818 -

accumulated depreciation BB ZEHTE 42057 3,564 8309 13,162 2924 70,809 140,825
Additions #90 - 687 995 1,570 836 25,705 29,793
Transfers YN 93417 3,097 = = - (96514) -
Transfer to investment properties B & ZE 1R A4 (MizH14)

(note 14) (2529) = = = = - (2529)
Depreciation provided REEEHRIE (Ftito)

during the year (note 6) (5,969) (1,314) (1,346) (3063) (1,149) - (12,841)
Disposals RE - (226) (82) (163) (89) - (559)
Exchange realignment RS - 2 197 2 30 - 277
At31 December 2019, netof  F 201912 4318 »

accumulated depreciation BARZHNE 126,976 5830 8073 11534 2,553 - 154,966
At31 December 2019 R2019F 12318 :

Cost A 144,897 91% 18682 22590 8495 - 203,360

Accumulated depreciation 2itinE (17921) (3,366) (10,609) (11,056) (5942) - (48894)

Net carrying amount REFE 126976 5830 8073 11534 2553 - 154966
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14.

BEWE

2020 2019
2020 20194F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT
Carrying amount at 1 January M1 A1 BREREE 2,630 =
Transfer from owner-occupied property HEFTBERYEEA
(notes 13) (BftEE13) 33,001 2,529
Transfer from right-of-use assets (note 15) BEEREEESA (5 15) 2,899 =
Net gain from a fair value adjustment R E A 2 ERATER T
recognised in other comprehensive income A7 {HFEEH)F I S 1,399 101
Net gain from a fair value adjustment Bz A B Ath B 2 FER A
recognised in other expenses in profit orloss A 72 {H T EEH)F W 25 679 =
Carrying amount at 31 December K12 A3 BHREEEE 40,608 2,630

The Group's investment properties consist of one commercial
property and two industrial properties in the PRC. The directors of
the Company have determined that the investment properties
consist of two classes of asset, commercial and industrial, based on
the nature, characteristics and risks of each property.

The investment properties are leased to the third party under
operating leases, further summary details of which are included in
note 15 to the financial statements.

Fair value hierarchy
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy
of the Group’s investment properties:

AEENRENEERTEN—HEBRY
XEMBLIRNE - ARRIEFRESZA
MENEE  FHIRARETREVEE
RRAXRTIEMBEE -

ST AL

REMERELKLHERETE= "4
FFHIBHE — PR H N IRKRMES -

VAP S
TRAPAERERENEN AR EFESF
A&

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2020 using

7A2020F12 A31 BN AARENERAUTEE

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs Total

RER EAUEE EBEATTER
TIHHNRE BAYE WAHE @zt

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

(5—8) (8=FE) (B=F8)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETR AR®TRT ARET:

Recurring fair value measurement for: AR B AR BT =

Commercial property R E - - 2,630 2,630
Industrial properties TEYE - - 37,978 37,978
- - 40,608 40,608
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 14. BEW¥E ()
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements FRF-EBHEF_EZ2ETEALER
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 = REEE - JRERE A s 55 = B (20195 ¢
(2019: Nil). &) -
Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within Level PERAANBEERPE=ZENAAEFE
3 of the fair value hierarchy: R -

Commercial Industrial
property properties
kiR ES TEYE

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT

Carrying amount at 1 January 2019 20194 1 A1 BRBREE = =
Transfer from owner-occupied property BEXFEAMEEA 2,529 =
Net gain from a fair value adjustment REMEEVRAERNALE

recognised in other comprehensive income  FE A FE U =5 101 -
Carrying amount at 31 December 2019 M2019F 12 A31 A K

and 1 January 2020 202051 B 1 HWUBREE 2,630 -
Transfer from owner-occupied property BETERWEEA = 33,001
Transfer from right-of-use assets BEREEESEA - 2,899
Net gain from a fair value adjustment REMEEWAERN AL E

recognised in other comprehensive income R FU S - 1,399
Net loss from a fair value adjustment RIEmE R R E b R E

recognised in other expenses in profit or loss A 72 {H T EE H))F B 18 - 679
Carrying amount at 31 December 2020 20204 12 A 31 HWEREE 2,630 37978
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Set out below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and
the key inputs to the valuation of investment properties:

14. BEW¥ ()
REMEGEMRPBEERMREEH A
S ESIMT

Significant
Valuation techniques unobservable inputs Range or weighted average
fh{E R i ERTUHEGRABBA HEHLMEFLHIH
2020 2019
2020 F 2019
Commercial property Term and reversion Market rent
(per sg.m. and per month) RMB1.23t02.20 RMB1.23 t0 2.20
EEkES FHRIES miHHEe AR¥1.237xtE ARK1237TE
(BABFHK) AR¥220t AR¥2207T
Long term vacancy rate 15.0% 15.0%
REEEX
Discount rate 4.6% 4.6%
IR
Industrial properties Term and reversion Market rent
(per sq.m. and per month) RMB1.26 to 1.80 N/A
TITHME FHRIELR mi5HE AR¥1.26TE TE M
(BABF¥HK) AR¥180T
Long term vacancy rate 12.0% N/A
RHAZEX NEMA
Discount rate 4.5% N/A
BRI NEMA

mISHEEREENORD) BEBUKE M
MAREXREBEMORD) - REZERK

A significant increase (decrease) in the market rent would resultin a
significant increase (decrease) in the fair value of the investment

properties. A significant increase (decrease) in the long term
vacancy rate and the discount rate in isolation would result in a
significant decrease (increase) in the fair value of the investment
properties. Generally, a change in the fair value of the investment
properties is accompanied by a directionally similar change in the

BEIR K B AR RN (L) 5 BR A
EAREAERLCEI) - —MTE - &
AWML DA EH B G EMTISE S
ARG ARH AR R R E R R AR
EHBR B -

market rent and an opposite change in the long term vacancy rate
and the discount rate.
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15. LEASES 15. il

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of plant and
machinery, motor vehicles and other equipment used in its
operations. Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire the
leased land from the owners with lease periods of 50 years, and no
ongoing payments will be made under the terms of these land
leases. Leases of plant and machinery generally have lease terms
between 2 and 8 years, while motor vehicles generally have lease
terms between 2 and 3 years. Other equipment generally has lease
terms of 12 months or less and/or is individually of low value.
Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and subleasing the
leased assets outside the Group. There are lease contracts that
include extension and termination options and variable lease
payments, which are further discussed below:

(@)  Right-of-use assets:

The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and
the movements during the year are as follows:

ACSE M1 2 AR AN

AEE AN E RS E N B ME RS -
REREMRFERBFTAEHEESD - 1R
FIER — RN FUARE T KBRS T3 -
MRSS05 - MiREZE T HE AR -
18 M AE S ERI IR - S R =58
HEAER2ESTF MAENEMBESR
223F - HihRBWEMBRE R 12EA K
PAR RS AR B 3R A ) (B E K - — AR
5 AKE A AAREAIINALTEER
DHEEEE - SAERRRIDEESER
AEHENTNEESOE—TTRMT

(@) EREEE:

FRAAEBEFEREEENRDENE
N -

Leasehold
land
HELH
RMB’000
AR®T R

Plant and
machinery

TG B 2R
RMB’000

ARBT R

Motor
vehicles

e
RMB’000
ARBT R

Total

Aot
RMB’000
ARBT R

Asat 1 January 2019 R2019F1H1H 10,463 22,943 185 33,591
Additions NE - 2,077 91 2,168
Depreciation charge FERL (247) (6,363) (127) (6,737)
Exchange realignment e - (141) (1 (142)
As at 31 December 2019 R2019612A31B R

and 1 January 2020 20201 A1 H 10,216 18,516 148 28,880
Depreciation charge (note 6) HELH (fizke) (246) (5,557) (105) (5,908)
COVID-19-related rent KB HHEARCOVID-19

concessions from lessors HEEERS - (210) - (210)
Transfer to investment ERERENE

properties (note 14) (PdzE14) (2,899) - - (2,899)
Change of contracts B - (191) - (191)
Exchange realignment R - (154) (4 (158)
As at 31 December 2020 R2020%F 12 A31H 7,071 12,404 39 19,514
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15. LEASES (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
(b)  Lease liabilities:

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements
during the year are as follows:

. AL ()
A A L1 2y AR B ()
(b) FAEEME -

1

2]

FAHEREMNEREERESMT

2020 2019
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARETTT
Carrying amount as at 1 January M1 A1 BREREE 19,269 22,951
New leases e - 2,168
Accretion of interest recognised FRERERFL3L 0 (F=E7)
during the year (note 7) 985 1,268
Payments (LN (6,236) (6,991)
COVID-19-related rent concessions KB B AR COVID-19
from lessors iz ey (210) =
Change of contracts G HIE (204) =
Exchange realignment PE A% (141) (127)
Carrying amount at 31 December 7B 12 A31 HRE®E 13,463 19,269
Analysed into: DR
Current portion mehE o 4,777 6,256
Non-current portion FEmENEB D 8,686 13,013
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 34 HEA BN DT ER Y B®RE

to the financial statements.

Bt 34 ©
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15. LEASES (CONTINUED)

15. L (%)

The Group as a lessee (Continued) A AR AR 2 AR L ()
(©)  The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases (© RIERERNEEEBZENT

are as follows:

2020 2019
2020 & 20194F

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETF T ARETT

Interest on lease liabilities
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets

HEEEFE 985 1,268
FREEENES T (M:Eo6)

(note 6) 5,908 6,737
Expense relating to short-term leases and ~ £252 BAFA & K FIgRFH HA 72 2019 FF

other leases with remaining lease terms 12 A 31 B 2 Bl Em B H A

ended on or before 31 December 2019 THERBMRS GTAEER

(included in selling and distribution LA RITEFA )

expenses and administrative expenses) 650 5,368
Total amount recognised in profitor loss ~ A ERERN A SR 7,543 13,373
The Group as a lessor A5 1 2 AL
The Group leases its one commercial property and two NEBRBEKEHELHEEHE —E/HA
industrial properties (note 14) under operating lease YR MIB TEWE(MFE14) - HEKK
arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require the —RERKBAEYMRES NHEERES R
tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent BT ETERRSARE . REEFNRN
adjustments according to the then prevailing market HERAL WA AER1,071,0007T (20194 -
conditions. Rental income recognised by the Group during AR#640007T) @ FIEERMISREMNFES ©
the year was RMB1,071,000 (2019: 64,000), details of which are
included in note 5 to the financial statements.
At 31 December 2020, the undiscounted lease payments 202012 B31H » REBRKKEAER
receivable by the Group in future periods under non- EEHB PN B LT EE A
cancellable operating leases with its tenants are as follows: RARIRFEENTET -

2020 2019
2020 & 20194F

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARETIT

Within one year —FR 1,971 121
After one year but within two years —FEEMF 1,915 121
After two years but within three years MEE=F 1,859 61
After three years but within four years —FENF 1,859 -
After four years but within five years MEERF 1,721 -
After five years HELLE 7,216 -

16,541 303
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16. GOODWILL

16. R

2020 2019
2020 F 20196
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARETT
At 1 January R1A1H
Cost B AR 148,719 147,715
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE (105,306) (70,446)
Cost at 1 January, net of accumulated W1 AT BRI - 0B 2EHRE
impairment 43,413 77,269
Impairment during the year (note 6) FRRE (MizEe) (8,993) (34,798)
Exchange realignment PE 71 942
Cost at 31 December, net of accumulated 12 A31 BERKA
impairment Bk 25HRE 34,491 43,413
Cost at 31 December 12 A 31 BRIKA
Cost DE 148,820 148,719
Accumulated impairment REPRERRE (114,329) (105,306)
Net carrying amount REDFE 34,491 43,413
Impairment testing of goodwill TR B Bl A T ok

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated to

the following CGUs for impairment testing:

GHP CGU;

LN CGU.

The respective carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of the

BREBAHAMBBNRELNORETIAT
REeEEBEMUERENR :

GHPIR & EA BN ¢
INIRBEAEEN -

PETERSELEMHNHENREELD

CGUs is as follows: ™
2020 2019
2020 £ 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARET T
GHP CGU GHPIREEA BN 34,491 34,434
LN CGU INIREEEEN - 8,979
34,491 43413
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16. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

The recoverable amount of each CGU has been determined based
on a value-in-use calculation using cash flow projections based on
financial budgets covering a five-year period approved by senior
management. Cash flows beyond the forecast period are
extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated below.

For each of the CGUs with a significant amount of goodwill, the key
assumptions, long-term growth rates and discount rates used in the
value-in-use calculation for 31 December 2020 and 2019 are as

follows:

16.

v ()

590 % B A B0 A0 T M AR 4 P
B RS R 0 T BB A RIE
WAL RERNH ENERBEER - B
BRSO EL S R B IR T A 1 B 3
ITHE -

HREESHEREANSESEESEN © 2020
FER2019F12 A3 BEABEFEAFK
RMEEER  RPEERGARERNT

GHP
GHP
2020
2020 F
Sales annual growth rate (%) $HE FIER XK (%) 2%-11% 29%-9% 2%-34% 2%-25%
Gross margin (% of revenue) ERE(EREEALL) 57%-59% 57%-58% 62%-64% 68%-69%
Long-term growth rate REE R 2% 2% 2% 2%
Pre-tax discount rate BRipAL =R 19.3% 19.3% 21.2% 21.6%
The following describes each key assumption on which NTHAEEEETHEREIANRE
management has based its cash flow projections to undertake METRRRFTRES BRER
impairment testing of goodwill:
Budgeted gross margins HEBME
The basis used to determine the value assigned to the budgeted AREESE TEEENENEBEMKA
gross margins is the average gross margins achieved in the year WEERBEREFEN —FANMERD
immediately before the budget year, increased for expected FHEFE - BREHAABERIES R B
efficiency improvements, and expected market development. BT 3% 3 & A FTieFt o
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16. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

Discount rates

The discount rates used are before tax and reflect specific risks

relating to the relevant units.

Long-term growth rate

The long-term growth rates used are based on common industry

practice.

The values assigned to the key assumptions on market
development of the cash-generating units, the discount rates and
long-term growth rate are consistent with external information

sources.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recognised
an impairment loss of RMB8,993,000 in relation to the goodwill of
the LN CGU (2019: RMB34,798,000 in relation to the goodwill of the
Hejian CGU), arising from the acquisition of LN, the principal activity
of which is the manufacture and sale of LN series cosmetics and skin
care products. Because of the effect of COVID-19, the operating
performances and the growth rate of the LN CGU were below
expectations which resulted in an operating loss. Accordingly,
management provided for the impairment in the year ended 31

December 2020.

16. T (4)

W B
ARG IR R RBR IR - W IR AR A B E L
MR E R

FIARBIERRTIA-MRITRERR/EE -

ERRSELENTHDE BRERE
#9405 B AR AL F 0 L 25 5
BEIR—H -

HZE2020F 12831 HILFE - AEBRER
AWBINEEANEBINRESEESEMHE
B SRUE BT 18 A R 858,993,000 7T (20194 : A
BARBSEAEVUNEEARE
347980007L) r EXBEK AL ERIEE
IN R B an B2 & B E b o BB COVID-19
MEE  INRSEEBMNEERR NG
RERENTEHR  EAZERE - Bt - 12
EEtiRE = 2020 12 A 31 B IEFE A EIE
B -
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17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. HAGLMEH &
Licence and
Distribution  health food Customer
Trademarks network certificates relationships Total
FAER
5T AHBE RERRES EFH% gt
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TRE AR%TR AR%TR AR%TR AR%Tx
(note b) (note b) (note a)
(HzEb) (HzEb) (Ftzta)
31 December 2020 R2020F12A314
Costat 1 January 2020, net of 1202041 A1 HEIRRA -
accumulated amortisation bk 25t 8H 23,250 1,936 1,682 3,493 30,361
Amortisation provided FRstiREE (M)
during the year (note 6) (1,742) (343) (250) (471) (2,806)
Impairment during the year (note 6) & AR{E (Fi5E6) (1,412) - (518) (808) (2,738)
Exchange realignment ER AR (52) (12) 2 (4) (66)
At 31 December 2020 72020128318
net of accumulated amortisation Mk 2t & RRE
and impairment 20,044 1,581 916 2,210 24,751
At 31 December 2020: FR2020F12A318
Cost D% 62,295 3,580 2,371 13,593 81,839
Accumulated amortisation 2R E
and impairment (42,251) (1,999) (1,455) (11,383) (57,088)
Net carrying amount FEFE 20,044 1,581 916 2,210 24,751
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17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

31 December 2019

Trademarks

iR
RMB'000
ARBFT
(note b)

(M#ED)

201912 H31H

17. HAb R & & (4])

Distribution
network

AR
RMB000
ARETT

Licence and
health food
certificates
A
RERRES
RMB'000
ARETT
(note b)
(FizED)

Customer

relationships Total

BFA&
RMB(000
ARETT

(note a)

(Mita)

Hast
RMB000
ARETT

Cost at 1 January 2019, net of 20191 A1 BRRKA
accumulated amortisation bk 25t 8 55,390 2,244 1907 10,166 69,707
Amortisation provided FRFHEEE (MEo)
during the year (note 6) (1,759) (346) (250) (1312) (3,667)
Impairment during the year (note 6) & AR{E (FT5E6) (30,680) - - (5,386) (36,066)
Exchange realignment JE R AR 299 38 25 25 387
At 31 December 2019 R2019512A31R
net of accumulated amortisation M RErE i RRE
and impairment 23250 1936 1,682 3493 30,361
At 31 December 2019: 2019 12A318
Cost B 62,257 3,574 2370 13,590 81,791
Accumulated amortisation ST EERRE
and impairment (39,007) (1,638) (688) (10,097) (51,430)
Net carrying amount EEEE 23,250 1936 1682 3493 30361
Notes: FitsE -
(a)  Impairment testing of customer relationships (@) EFBAFREEINR

184

During the year ended 31 December 2020, since the supervision and
rectification measures of the Chinese health food industry were strengthened,
the Sinolife CGU and Hejian CGU suffered from operating loss. Besides, because
of the effect of COVID-19, the LN CGU suffered from operating loss.
Accordingly, impairment indicators were identified for the three CGUs' non-
current assets, including property, plant and equipment and other intangible
assets. The Group performed impairment test for the relevant CGUs, for which
impairment indicators were identified. The carrying amounts of the CGUs were
comparable to the recoverable amounts of the CGU based on fair value less
costs of disposal.

Based on the assessment, the Group recognised an impairment loss of
RMB808,000 in relation to Customer Relationships of the LN CGU during the
year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: RMB5,386,000 in relation to Customer
Relationships of the Hejian CGU).

HE2020F12A3BILEFEE  ARTRRER
TEMNEERENEBNUMSE  PAERSELSS
R AREERSEABNELELBEHE - 1IN B
RCOVD- 19 R E  INREELBUELEE
BE-RAl —EARSELENNFERBDEE
(BEWE - BEREBEAREMER EE) FE
BERR o &HAHRERRES - NEERAA
REEEBEMETRENR - REAABERLE
RARE  MERSELEMNNERERESE
A B /) A U 6 BBAR S o

BIEFTE  BE2020F 12831 BIEFEE » A&
EERENRSELABNEFBEREGHEARE
B8 AR 808000 T (20194  EEREIR S EAL
BUEFHAREBOREREARMS386,000
TT) e
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17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(b) Impairment testing of other intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives
The trademarks acquired as part of business combinations in 2016 are regarded
as having indefinite useful lives because the products with the trademarks are
expected to generate net cash flows indefinitely.

The licence acquired as part of the business combination in 2016 is regarded as

having indefinite useful lives because the licence term can be renewed
annually and is expected to generate net cash flows indefinitely.

The trademarks and licence with indefinite useful lives are allocated to the
following CGUs for impairment testing:

Hejian CGU; and
LN CGU.

The net carrying amounts of other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives

allocated to each of the cash-generating units are as follows:

17.

At S & E (4

fiEE ()

(b)  EASERERFHNETEENRERR
2016 FEREBEH — O FTEBNRIRHEEAR
AEERNERFTH  IRERRERENSE
PR EAMEE A F IR B ©
2016 FERELS A G — 880 FTRAB AT AT B 1R R
REAERNERFH  ARFAIENSFEMN
NI S SR EDFHRERN o

AERERERFPHOHERFAENDRT AT
ReEEENAMERERR :

REBSEEBMN &
INIR®E A BAL o

DETEREELFMNELMAE EREHFH
R EAERBREFELT ¢

Hejian LN Total

g LN et

2020 2020 2020

2020 F 2020 F 2020 £

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBT T ARBTR

Trademarks miz 8,720 3,294 12,014
Licence Bl - 611 611
8,720 3,905 12,625

Hejian LN Total
Rig LN #ast
2019 2019 2019
20194F 20194 20194
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBETT ARBTT ARETT
Trademarks [k 8,720 4,697 13,417
Licence A& - 1,127 1,127
8,720 5824 14,544
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17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

186

Impairment testing of other intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives (Continued)

The values of the trademarks and licence with indefinite useful lives are
assessed annually by using the relief from the royalty method calculated based
on a five-year cash flow projection approved by senior management. The fair
values of the trademarks and the licence were equal to the future royalty
savings resulting from ownership of the assets.

The key assumptions, including royalty saving rates, long term growth rates
and discount rates used in the annual impairment testing of the trademarks
and licence with indefinite useful lives in 2020 are as follows:

Sales annual growth rate (%) HEFIRRE (%)
Royalty saving rates (%) FrRTHE(E R B EIAI X (%)
Long term growth rate REIERE

Pre-tax discount rate FRE AT AL IR &

The sales annual growth rate is the average annual growth rate over the
forecast period. It is based on past performance and management’s
expectations of market development.

The royalty saving rates used are with reference to comparable intangible
assets and the related royalty rates that the buyers typically pay for the use of
such assets.

The discount rates used are before tax and reflect specific risks relating to the
relevant units.

The values assigned to key assumptions are consistent with external

information sources.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recognised an
impairment loss of RMB1,930,000 in relation to the trademarks and licence of
the LN CGU (2019: RMB30,680,000 in relation to trademarks of the Hejian CGU),
arising from the business combinations. As detailed in note 16, the operating
performances and the growth rate of the LN CGU were below expectations.
Accordingly, based on the impairment test, management provided for the
impairment in the year ended 31 December 2020.

17. HAb R & & (4])

i

(b)

(&)

ELfth 4% BR {65 R 4F S O SR 2 8 2 MO IREDRI A ()

ABFERERFHNEERTIESFRARE
Rt LR B R R EITRME » SHEERES
RERBHENTFRSRETR - BRI
BNARBEREEEEELMN B REFTEER

20206 - BARRER - RIEEEERERFENG
12 I 77 A 38 /O F 2R BRI AP BT R RO A R AR R
AEHHNE  REWRERARRMNT

Hejian LN
R LN
Trademark Trademark Licence
Gl [l FFAIRE
3%-33% 2%-34% 2%-34%
3.0% 2.5% 0.5%
3% 2% 2%
23.3% 22.3% 23.0%

HEFRREDATRANHANFHFELR
Ko HERDNENBEEMREEEE TS ER
ATEE

FTER A BV R AR (R R BB A R T 2 R A & LB AR
WEEREARERBEREEBRT NG
FTREERE -

FATER PR B9 B3R R TH FR 0 A BA ER R F 2 R B2 AR B B8
TCHOREE B ©

DETEEBRROEELIBERAFE K -

HZE2020F12A3BILFE AEBBRESE
BEHEENENRSEEENEIERTAE
BEHREE B AR 1,9300007T (20194 : #&
REE S EEBNEIEA B AR 30680000
JL) o WHtEE 165 INBBEELBMNEER
B RERRENTES - ARERENR @ B8
BEZ=2020F 12 A 31 BILFEFHERERE ©
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18. INVENTORIES

18. &

2020 2019

2020 & 20194

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TT AREEFIT

Raw materials [ER R 23,518 19,924
Work-in-progress Pt e 1,432 2,231
Finished goods RUEY T 57,557 62,643
Goods merchandise REE @ 638 4953
83,145 89,751

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES

19. ¥ % M Wosk |

2020 2019

2020 & 20194

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® T AREEFIT

Trade receivables E 5 RINGIB 35,539 48,724
Impairment NERIE] (2,499) (4,324)
33,040 44400

In general, the entities in the Group have no credit period granted
to the retail customers, and invoices would be due once they have
been issued. The credit period offered by the Group to its
distributors is generally 30 to 90 days, and the credit term granted
to TV shopping platforms is 30 days. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. In view of the aforementioned
and the fact that the Group's trade receivables relate to a large
number of diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral
or other credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances.
Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

FARPAEHES

mEmE  ARENERTIRTZERP
FEH —KEHABRENAXN A&H
RETHHEEHEER —RB0REOK
EETERBYFENEERROR &
REERET R ARses - R EXH
MRAEENE ZEREKBESZ DT
FER AEEHESXEESETAR -
AEELEREE 5 RURBLERT BT
R @ EMEEER - B 5 WHIA
RRE o

HBERRE —E_TEER
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19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 19. © 5 REW sk IH (%)
An ageing analysis of trade receivables as at the end of the reporting N EHRIREZAE R NG EERED
period, based on the invoice date and net of loss allowance, is as B S REWZIERNRE ST T ¢
follows:

2020 2019
2020 & 20194

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R AREET T

Within 1 month TE A A 20,883 17,106
Over 1 month but within 3 months EA=31EA 9,480 15,293
Over 3 months but within 1 year 3ERAEE 1,941 11,444
Over 1 year HBiEF 736 557
33,040 44 400
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade B o EWNFENBEREREEZSNT

receivables are as follows:

2020 2019
2020 & 20194

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETT

At beginning of the year =] 4,324 4,920
Impairment losses reversed [REAENCREY S| (1,537) (663)
Amount written off as uncollectible AU B 8 2 & 58 (236) (43)
Exchange realignment PE H, A% (52) 110

2,499 4,324
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19.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision
rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region,
product type, customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of
credit or other forms of credit insurance). The calculation reflects the
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and
reasonable and supportable information that is available at the
reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables are
written off if past due for more than one year and are not subject to
enforcement activity.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on
the Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2020

Current

BIHA

Expected credit loss rate TEAEEBEX 3.0%
Gross carrying amount BERH(E 21,532
Expected credit losses BEEEERE 648

As at 31 December 2019

19.

¥ 5 REWOsk I (4)

RERE B HRBBREEEETREDT
Ut ERBEEER - BBEXDERAS
BUBERANZEEF 5 4R (Bl
B EmfER - BEPER MFEARER
FFREMERRBREZANRELE) @S
AHET % tERBRBENELER &'
BREKRESEHISNERBESER
AR B R R A R A TR0 A 32 S A
FER - —RME - BHERSAENEH
Be—FRBAZRNBFATESA T
LARES o

TRV AKEEAREBEEFENE S
FEYRIAREERRK D -

7A2020F12H31H

Past due
B
Less than 1to3 Over
1 month months 3 months Total
1AW 1ZE3fA 3f@AULE e
8.0% 9.7% 51.7% 7.0%
10,309 2,117 1,581 35,539
829 205 817 2,499

7A2019F 12831 H

Past due
#8105

Less than 1to3 Over

Current 1 month months 3 months

BNEg 1@AUKR 1238 3EANULE
Expected credit loss rate TEEEEEEX 2.5% 6.9% 11.0% 63.1% 8.9%
Gross carrying amount BIRE(E 30,384 7,429 7336 3,575 48724
Expected credit losses TEHEEEE 746 515 806 2,257 4324
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20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 20. TEATRRIE ~ $54 S 3 it e e sk JH
RECEIVABLES

2020 2019
2020 &£ 20194

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMTF T ARBTT

Deposits and other receivables e & E b e RIE 5,481 6,556
Prepayments TEf IR 5,030 5,283
Value-added tax recoverable AJ U [o] 1 (B F 3,863 5,022
Right-of-return assets REEEE 57 569
Interest receivable JE U R 2 - 4
14,431 17,434
None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The L4 Al & E e BRSO R B o BT BT ILAS £2
financial assets included in the above balances relate to receivables B & BB W & I F A B8 KRR R A0 B UK
for which there was no recent history of default. FKIE °
21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 21. BHERBEFED

2020 2019
2020 & 20194

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TF T ARETT

Cash and bank balances R RIRTTAERR 61,171 93,206
Time deposits TEHRF 17,216 16,000
78,387 109,206
Less: Pledged deposits* B BIEEREE (1,271) (1,685)
Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEEY 77,116 107,521
e Pledged deposits included pledged deposits as collateral for telecom business & BEAGEAREEEASEEKERRNEERT
of RMB501,000 (2019: RMB434,000) and insurance of letters of credit of KA R B 501,0007T (20194 = A R #434,0007T )
RMB770,000 (2019: Nil). KAz AR A RS 770,000 7T (2019 4F : £&) ©
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21. Bl RBEEEY (8)

21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(CONTINUED)

2020 2019

2020 5 20194

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET ARETIT

Denominated in RMB AARKEHE 39,005 72,024
Denominated in NZD LA PR T AT E 21,527 23,053
Denominated in HKD LA ITTEHE 2,142 2,280
Denominated in AUD LURITEHE 6,050 2,298
Denominated in USD AETEHE 8,009 7,860
Denominated in EUR LARRTTEHE 383 6
Total HBEt 77,116 107,521

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for
other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods
of between one day and three months depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the
respective short term time deposit rates. The bank balances and
pledged deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no
recent history of default.

FARPAEHES

ARIAIER] B AL IEE R o AT -
IR BIRBESMNE B B IR B R AL TE - S
RNEEEMRTE  AREEEEBRER
EINEXRBHRITHEARBLBOSEME
W o

RITRSREE A RITERMNRIZZEF
R B - RHERFEFEETRAR - 8
BR—HE=EAR BURRASEM KR
EHRK - WIRAABEHERERAN KR -
RIUTEHBIAEREREERNRAAEEREA
AT RA0 R KO AT ER AV ERTT o
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22. TRADE PAYABLES
An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the

22. © 5 HEAT Bk
RBEMANE S EARBEREZEE)
HIBRES DAL -

reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

2020 2019
2020 f 20194

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBTT

Within 1 month 1MEAR 7,103 4,487
Over 1 month but within 3 months 1MERAZ31@A 6,109 4,760
Over 3 months but within 1 year SEAEE 2,223 2477
Over 1 year HBiE1E 750 1,771

16,185 13,495

BORNFEAREEREEN—RAB30E

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and the credit terms

are normally between 30 and 90 days. 90K °
23. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 23. A A5F sk JE B ST R
2020 2019
2020 & 20194
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5E ARE T ARETTT
Accrued payroll JE =t 2 B (@) 19,522 18,353
Contract liabilities BHBE (b) 11,429 10,958
Other payables HoAth fE < FRIE 8,823 19,291
Refund liabilities RYEE 2,403 9,315
Other tax payables HEEAFIE 822 1,376
Interest payable FETHIE - 25
42,999 59,318
Notes: 3T -
(a) Details of contract liabilities are as follows: (@) EHBEFBEROT -
2019
20194F
RMB000
ARETTT
Short-term advances received from customers BEISIEGoksR:EE Y 11,429 10,958
(b)  Other payables are non-interest-bearing. (b) E A PR FRIEN SR ©
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24. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 24,

nf S BRAT i Ak

Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB'000 rate (%) Maturity RMB'000
BRFIZ (%) ARBTR  ERAE® gL AREFTL
Current b
Bank loans — secured RITEHR — R - - LPR+02575 2020 20000
Current portion of long term ~~ RERRITEZRA)
bank loans — secured EEE ) — BHEA - - 570 2020 7500
27,500

2020 2019
2020 F 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE T AREFIT
Analysed into: DA
Bank loans repayable: JEEEBRITEN
Within one year or on demand —FARIRER - 27,500
- 27,500
25. PROVISION 25. f#fH
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE TR ARETTT
At 1 January ®1A1H 728 714
Increase in discounted amounts arising BERSREmE Mg Nz AR IR 58
from the passage of time 22 21
Exchange realignment M 3 3R 27 @)
At 31 December M12 H31H 777 728

REE—FHMNERRGHPIREY X E 1
BAEREE -

GHP, a subsidiary of the Group, has a restoration obligation under a
property lease agreement.

ARPEBMEROBRLAE —ZT_TFFR
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26. DEFERRED TAX 26. ¥EHEFIH
(@) Details of the deferred tax assets recognised in the @ RERN EHEEHBERARERNIE
consolidated statement of financial position and movements EREBEENARESH:FBOT :

during the year are as follows:

Unrealised

profit
arising from Impairment Financial
Right-of-use intra-group  Write-down of trade Accrued assets
assets  transactions  of inventories receivables expense atfair value

RER
RAELN g% BOLEHE
EREEE  REREA HEER BUROERE FitAx  KEREE  ERGER &t
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARRTR  ARNTR  ARBTZ  ARRTR  ARWTR  ARETR  ARRTR  ARWTR

31 December 2020 20205127318
At January 2020 R00E1A18 - 694 1,450 992 1,675 500 7,452 12,763
Deferred tax credited)(charged)  RERIERITA/

to profitor loss during (1) ERER R

the year 3439 (694) (299) (585) (1,087) (500) (3,299) (3,025)
Bichange realignment B HE 149 - 6) (24) 9 - (36) 92
(Gross deferred taxat R200%F 127318

31 December 2020 BLhELS 3,588 - 1,145 383 597 - 417 9,830

Unrealised
off
Impairment
oftrade Accrued  Financial assets Taxable
recelvables expense atfairvalue loss

31 December 2019 R2019% 128318
At January 2019 RN19E1A1H 4201 7297 1377 281 500 18665 387
Deferred tax charged to profit RENBENFETHE

orloss during the year (3507) (5882) (403) (1,165) = (11,264) (221)
Bichange realignment EH A% - 3 18 9 - 51 3
Gross deferred taxat R2019F 12831 B

31 December 2019 EERELE 694 1450 992 1675 500 7452 12,763

1 94 NANJING SINOLIFE UNITED COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2020



Notes to the Financial Statements

S B AR B AR

31 December 2020 2020412 A 31 H

26. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 26. EHEBLIE ()
(b) Details of the deferred tax liabilities recognised in the b) RFRA W ELREVEARRREZHE
consolidated statement of financial position and movements EFRIEEEREBFBFHT

during the year are as follows:

Fair value Fair value
adjustments  adjustments
arisingfrom  arising from

Lease investment acquisition
liabilities properties of subsidiaries

REME W s Y

EEN  DRELM
HERE ORESRR  ARERE gL
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR  AR®TR ARETR AR%TR

At 1 January 2020 202051 A18 - - 4,715 4,715
Deferred tax chargedy(credited) to profit RERK/(GIA) BE
orloss during the year ERHE 3,200 - (860) 2,340
Deferred tax credited to other RERE AR 2 ERED
comprehensive income during the year BT B - 556 - 556
Exchange realignment P 5 R 122 (206) (28) (112)
Gross deferred tax liabilities at 1202012 A 31 BAY
31 December 2020 BREHERERE 3,322 350 3,827 7,499
Fair value
adjustments
arising from
acquisition
of subsidiaries
W B M /2B
NRIEEN
NRERE
RMB'000
ARBTFIT
At 1 January 2019 720191 818 14,021
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss during the year R4 A&t A B 25 BB IEFR 1B (9,349)
Exchange realignment BEE 5, 3 2K 43
Gross deferred tax liabilities at 31 December 2019 720194 12 A 31 HRIRLERIA A B85 4,715
The Group has tax losses arising in the PRC of RMB183,968,000 AREBRTROBEEEE AR
(2019: RMB164,914,000) that will expire in one to five years for 183,968,000 7T (20194E : A R &
offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred tax assets of 164,914,000 7T ) ISR —E T E R FIHR -
RMB45,992,000 (2019: RMB38,939,000) have not been PAE S5 R SR PR SR B F1) o W EEFE R RS
recognised in respect of the losses as they have arisen in B AR#459920007T (201946 : AR
subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time and it #538039,0007T ) FT S RIELE T B &
is not considered probable that taxable profits will be BV EERAR —BRERASEE
available against which the tax losses can be utilised. BB AT BXWER AT E
JERRT R T AR SH B S B8 -
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27. SHARE CAPITAL

Shares

27. AR
li&/is

2020 2019
2020 F 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARB TR ARETT
Issued and fully paid: BEITRBEAR
946,298,370 (2019: 946,298,370) 946,298,370 I% (2019 £F :
ordinary shares 946,298,370 A% ) 3 A% 94,630 94,630
28. RESERVES 28. filifhi
The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein REEREAFERBIFENRESER
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated EEHRPERERF 21T 1228MGE5#
statement of changes in equity on pages 121 to 122 of the financial mEBREW

statements.

(i) Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the PRC regulations, certain companies in
the PRC are required to transfer part of their profits after tax
determined under the PRC accounting standards to the
statutory surplus reserve fund, before profit distributions are
made. The statutory surplus reserve fund is non-distributable
and may be used either to offset losses, or for capitalisation
issues by way of paid-up capital.

(i) Capital reserve

The amounts represented the balance of the credit amount
arising from the excess of the par value of the shares from the
paid-in capital contribution. These arose from (i) the share
issue in 2012 when the Company was reformed into a stock
limited company, (ii) the share issue in 2014 under the initial
public offering, (iii) the share issue in 2016 for the acquisition
of a subsidiary and (iv) the H shares issue in 2016.

196

() e BERGEE
RIBHBEUER - PEBEAETAAA
EELFBD KA - A E B RIEF
Hest ERNEENRRENBERE
EERBFEBS  AEBERFREES T
Al 3k - R R A K $H B 18 Sk DA B AR
A AL EACHETT

(i) AT

B EEHRAETBERNE
EMERSHEEH ZESERE
2012 FH IR0 81T (B R QA IERR
EREBROEIAT) (2014 FRBEEIR
NHRZEEETHRMN 2T (i) HUBEE
— B H B A B 2016 € B IR 1D 31T .
(V) 72 2016 FEHY H IR EE 1T ©
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28. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(iii) Merger reserve

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

29.

On 24 December 2012, the Group acquired the entire equity
interest in Australia Cobayer Health Food Co Pty Ltd. from Gui
Pinghu ( % F #i ) (“Mr. Gui"). This transaction has been
accounted for using the principles of merger accounting as a
result of common control transaction. The excess of
consideration paid over the carrying amounts of the net
assets acquired was directly debited to the merger reserve.

Exchange fluctuation reserve

This reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations.

Other reserve

On 2 August 2017, the Company acquired the 40% equity
interest in Shanghai Weiyi Investment Management Co, Ltd.
from the non-controlling shareholder. The excess of
consideration paid over the company amounts of the equity
interest acquired was debited to the other reserve.

Asset revaluation reserve

The asset revaluation reserve arose from a change in use from
an owner-occupied property to the investment properties
carried at fair value in 2019 and 2020.

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

28. filifhi (78)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

& BF 6l i
20125128248 - AEBMRETF
# (I 4 55 A& 1) U2 B8 Australia Cobayer
Health Food Co Pty Ltd. #9 % SF A% -
HRAZESZ G - HBERSHEIRE
HEERUALR - FIX R ER
AT S B EFEREES D BT
A& BH#E -

FEE b, i 5B ok 5
ZREBREAAREBINEBU R
RELEMENZR -

FCAth %

R2017F8A2H » AR A M IEFERK
R IR IR E EIEBRAF
400% PR o FT A RO (BB 1 P Uk i
& #E B9 A R FRIERT A AL o

& e Al il
BESEGHEEHN 20194 & 2020 F
BEFTERAVEEZETEREREAAE
PIBR 2 IR B FEMEE °

29. HoAt i Bh ¥ A

2020 2019

2020 20194F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARETT

Long-term deposits for leased properties RAREEYENRATER - 4
Prepayment for acquisition of health food WERERMFEZNTENKIE

certificates 176 5450

176 5454
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30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

(@

(b)

198

Major non-cash transactions:

During the current year, the Group had no major non-cash
transactions. The Group had non-cash additions to right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities of RMB2,168,000 and
RMB2,168,000, respectively, in respect of lease arrangements
for plant and equipment and motor vehicles during the year
ended 31 December 2019.

Changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities:
2020

30.

B Bl i R R W Rk

(@ FEIFEBERS :
RAFE  AEETEFBHRER
S MEE2019F12A3IBLEFE
MBEREERAEREZEMS -
AEEFHEEEMASERENIER
S INo Rl A AR 21680007 & A
R 2,168,000 7T °

(b) LGB

2020 &

Bank Lease
borrowings liabilities

RITHER HEAE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBTR

At 31 December 2019 2019 12 31 H 27,500 19,269
Changes from financing cash flows MEBRESREET (27,500) (5,251)
COVID-19-related rent concessions R A HAE AR COVID-1948 78

from lessors MERE - (210)
Change of contracts EHES) - (204)
Exchange realignment PE 5 A% - (141)
At 31 December 2020 7202012 A31 8 - 13,463
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30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

30. o BB U R A PR R (A

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) REWNBIAEESE - (M)
activities (Continued):
2019 20195
Bank Lease
borrowings liabilities
HRITIEK HEBE
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTT AREFT
At 31 December 2018 M 2018412 A31 H 27,500 -
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 HRNB B E2ER
E16RHTE - 22,951
At 1 January 2019 (restated) 201941 A1 8 (&) 27,500 22,951
Changes from financing cash flows MERSTE2E) - (5,723)
New leases HHE = 2,168
Exchange realignment PE X = (127)
At 31 December 2019 2019412 A31H 27,500 19,269

(c) Total cash outflow for leases

() HMBEBEHHAAH

2020 2019

2020 & 20194

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR%T T ARBTT

Within operating activities LEEBN 650 5,368
Within financing activities BB EE A 5,251 5,723
5,901 11,091

ARPEBEROHEBERARF

—E_TFFR
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31. COMMITMENTS 31.

The Group had no capital commitments at the end of the reporting
period (2019: Nil).

32. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 32.

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these financial
statements, the Group had the following transactions with related
parties during the year (2019: Nil).

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

TR

A2 B A ¥R 5 A R I 48 2 AR (2019 FF
7)o

i W55 7 b
Bz SEMGERERE M A FRNZ S
AEBRAFENEBEH T ETIUNTRS
(20194 : £E) -

AEETEEREASOFH

2020 2019

2020 20194F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARE TR ARET T

Basic salaries and bonus HAFHE RIEAT 5,415 3,266
Social insurance and housing fund ek kEEAES 93 212
5,508 3,478

200
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2020
Financial assets

33, $EHU B 43 1 S ek TR
REERARNSENSHTARAENT :

2020 4E
SREE

Financial

assets at
amortised cost Total

R 8 R AN 5T
HEREE st
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AR%T R
Trade receivables 2 5 WA 33,040 33,040

Financial assets included in prepayments, STATERNFEIE - ek

deposits and other receivables Hi W IEN e EE 5,481 5,481
Cash and cash equivalents BeMESEED 77,116 77,116
Pledged deposits EEfRe 1,271 1,271
116,908 116,908

Financial liabilities

EEEE

Financial

liabilities at
amortised cost Total

TR 68 B AN 5
HEerE s st
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR AR® TR
Trade payables B SR A 16,185 16,185
Lease liabilities HEAE 13,463 13,463

Financial liabilities included in other ST AEAMER B L EET B AR

payables and accruals Gl N=RE 8,823 8,823
38,471 38,471

ARPEBMEROBRLAE —ZT_TFFR
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 33. BB o Em TH(4)

(CONTINUED)
2019

Financial assets

2019 4¢
ERMEE

Financial
assets at
amortised cost Total
TS REE st
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETTT
Trade receivables B 5 WA 44,400 44,400
Financial assets included in prepayments, AR e R
deposits and other receivables HAib EUHRIBEN & BV E &= 6,560 6,560
Cash and cash equivalents HERESEED 107,521 107,521
Pledged deposits BEIZE 1,685 1,685
Deposits included in other non-current assets st AR IERENE ENTFER 4 4
160,170 160,170
Financial liabilities ERAE

Financial

liabilities at
amortised cost Total

B SR ANET
HNemAaE st
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREETIT ARETIT
Trade payables =Y AN/ 13,495 13,495
Interest-bearing bank borrowings sTERITER 27,500 27,500
Lease liabilities HEAE 19,269 19,269

Financial liabilities included in other ST AE A FE R FRIE K

payables and accruals FErERNEmAas 19,316 19316
79,580 79,580
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group does not have written risk management policies and

guidelines. However, the board of directors meets periodically to

analyse and formulate measures to manage the Group's exposure

to market risk, including credit risk, liquidity risk, foreign currency risk

and interest rate risk. As the directors of the Company consider that

the Group's exposure to market risk is kept at a minimum level, the

Group has not used any derivatives or other instruments for

hedging purposes. The Group's risk management objectives and

policies mainly focus on minimising the potential adverse effects of

these risks on the Group by closely monitoring the individual

exposure as follows:

(@)

(b)

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade and
other receivables. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
Group's management continuously monitors the level of
exposure to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual debt at the end of each reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The credit risk on cash and bank balances is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit rates assigned
by international credit-rating agencies.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk.
Trade receivables consist of a number of customers which
had no recent history of default.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables are set
outin note 19.

Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its current and
expected liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and long term.

BRRABA

34. <l By 4 BE

AEEYETAEERREERRNIES
AW BEESEHRTEHE - 2T RHET
HEAEEASEMEENTSEAR - B
‘REERR RBESER - INERR R
MERR - AR ARFEERASAEEM
HEN TS RAREFRREKRT  AEE
I & B RAERIOT A SR E M T A ES A
weo AEENEREEBFEIBREZM
ERNBBEETATELAR - FFEL
FREBHAEENEENNZE

@@ 5B
AEENEERREIEREEBEI R
Hite WS E - REERERFEER
B AEEEEERFEEZERBK
F o URRRBURETE BB EE
e lih AEEEZSREMRER
MBI EB AR E SR - ARRY
AR E & FEET I R SR E RS - 5L
HEmE > AAREFRB/AKENGE
EE kB KE N -

ReRBITESNEERRER R
ARXSHF REBREETRRE
BT BIEERIRTT -

AREYEEAEFORERR - G
5 R UHIE BIE L B B R 43D
BOES -

BRAASEE ZRYGARE LG
ERBRNE-— P TETERBEHNWE
19 °

(b) i Bh & < L B
AEBENRR D E REZEH MRS
MBESHFR  UREBTEELRD
B NRREF AR HER
RBE B2 REE NN AHREER
B UENREARBDESHER -
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)  34. 4 plJalbs 45 PR (%)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) WENE & EBE (%)
The following table details the Group's remaining contractual TREFVNAEESRABBER TARA
maturities for its financial liabilities. The table has been drawn BHIER - TRTDBEEHEENR
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial BIREERERE  ZE5cmEED
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can BEAEETEAMNZNZTEBES
be required to pay. The maturity dates for financial liabilities HoopBEMNIHADNERBEER
are based on the agreed repayment dates. HEIEEE ©

Total
contractual On demand
Carrying  undiscounted or within Over
amount cash flows one year one year

BMERRME  RERER
SREE REnE —FR —FH0E
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBETT  ARBTE  AREBTT ARETR

As at 31 December 2020 202012 A31H

Trade payables Z 5 e FA 16,185 16,185 16,185 -
Other payables HAt I RIE 8,823 8,823 8,823 -
Lease liabilities HERE 13,463 14,789 5,013 9,776

38,471 39,797 30,021 9,776

As at 31 December 2019 201912 831 H

Trade payables B S ENFIA 13,495 13,495 13,495 =
Other payables Hoib e za 19,316 19,316 19,316 -

Interest-bearing bank FHERITER
borrowings 27,500 27,796 27,796 -
Lease liabilities HE&E 19,269 21,678 6,699 14,979
79,580 82,285 67,306 14979
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that
reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:

(c)

34. <eih)E b AR BE (48)

<ok T2 S B oy SR A S AR

rEBepTARRERAAEBES
BREEERIN NEEERAAER
T

Carrying amounts Fair values
BRTEE RARE
2020 2019 2020 2019
2020 F 20194 2020 F 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTT AR%®TR ARETT
Financial assets EREE
Pledged deposits BRBIES 1,271 1,685 1,271 1,685
Deposits included in other 5t A E At 3E 7 B
non-current assets BEZIFHR - 4 - 4
1,271 1,689 1,271 1,689

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, financial
assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals. The differences are immaterial since the fair values
are mainly equal to their carrying amounts.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating units in
currencies other than the units’ functional currencies.
Approximately 28% (2019: 23%) of the Group's sales were
denominated in currencies other than the functional
currencies of the operating units making the sale, whilst
approximately 15% (2019: 18%) of costs were denominated in
the units’ functional currencies. The Group also has certain
bank balances denominated in NZD, USD and HKD.

FARPAEHES

(d)

EREFHRELREEEY  EH
FEWGRIE - BB EMAKIE - st AN
FIE - e M EMERGFENSRBE
E st AHRGENRBEREFERN
SRBENARE - HRAREKREK
FERERAME  HEBLTERK °

A REE J i
AEBEEZRZHERNINERE - 18
28 [\ B PR DA A % BE (A2 T RE 5 K DA SN
MEBEBEMEL ASBEHEETL
28% (20194F : 23%) A 1E I 5 & & &
BN AN EEZ S - T4
15% (2019 4F : 18%) Y X 7N LA #H 8 B8
UM EK R - REBENHEES T
LASRPERE T « EoT B TTRTERIRTT
ek o
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(d) Foreign currency risk (Continued) (d)

34. <l L b A B (4)

1 LB (480)
TRBIVERA RIS B RIET 2
BRT - RBERAR N L ATER
TR AT RABTHERAS B
B 5B 4 2 9 L AT A9 TR 2
HEE (R REERABARE
#3) -

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the
RMB exchange rates against NZD, USD, AUD and HKD, with all
other variables held constant, of the Group'’s loss before tax
and equity (due to changes in the fair values of monetary
assets and liabilities).

206

Increase/ Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) in (decrease) in
RMBrate loss before tax in equity*
ARMER RBL AR Rz,
EFH(TH) #hn, Chd) (R D) *
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETR
2020 2020 F
If NZD weakens against RMB A PR T AR (E (1%) (1 (999)
If NZD strengthens against RMB  fii 4R a8 7T 5 A R EEFHE 1% 1 999
If USD weakens against RMB HWETHARBRE (1%) (80) -
If USD strengthens against RMB #3705 A REFE 1% 80 -
If AUD weakens against RMB WRTHAAREEE (1%) (10) 15
If AUD strengthens against RMB R 7T 5 A REEFHE 1% 10 (15)
If HKD weakens against RMB BT ARBRE (1%) (21) -
If HKD strengthens against RMB  fi#/& 7T 3 A REFHE 1% 21 -
If EUR weakens against RMB BT ARBRZE (1%) (4) -
If EUR strengthens against RMB  fifBUIT 5 A REEFHE 1% 4 -
2019 20195
If NZD weakens against RMB A PR T AR (E (1%) 311 (1,863)
If NZD strengthens against RMB {4 76 8 7T 35 A R EEFHE 1% (311) 1,863
If USD weakens against RMB WETHARKRE (1%) 79 -
If USD strengthens against RMB 3= 7T 3 A REFHE 1% (79) -
If AUD weakens against RMB WRTHAREEE (1%) - (257)
If AUD strengthens against RMB  fi#38 7T 5, A REEFHE 1% - 257
If HKD weakens against RMB BT ARBRE (1%) 23 -
If HKD strengthens against RMB  fi#/& 7T 5 A REFHE 1% (23) -

Excluding retained profits

NANJING SINOLIFE UNITED COMPANY LIMITED
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(e)

)

Interest rate risk

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
relating to pledged bank deposits and bank balances carried
at prevailing market rates. However, such exposure is minimal
to the Group as these bank balances are all short-term in
nature.

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management
are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not subject to
any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 31 December 2020
and 31 December 2019.

EEGES T

34. 4 bR B A B (4)

(e)

®

MERRAF

ESIN
AEBEIEHEBRER TSR
B2 B BRRTERRIBITHEBZI
TREFERER - AT - ARZFIR
THRHADBEHEE  ZARHAE
B = R -

BAE B
AEREAER 2 EAEBARER
SECHBERLERNRERBRER
RS RHEBERTBERBREESR
K e

REBEBEERLERE  WRIELE
RBB(CRIEEEERR ML (EL T
o B ARENER  AEHE
Al e AR RREIRE  FIRERER
R EEITHRR » NEBTZ AN
MEINEE R E KR o B ZE 2020 12
A318 K2019F12A318 IFFE -
BAERMNBRE  BRIIEFSEE
@Jo

—E_TFFR
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34. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)  34. 4 plJalbs 45 PR (%)

(f) Capital management (Continued) () BEAREP ()

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net AREBFERAEEAGBL R (BAEBSE
debt divided by the adjusted capital plus net debt. The EHRUKHBRERNINER F5E) BB
Group's policy is to maintain the gearing ratio between 10% ER - REBRBREEEERELL
and 30%. Net debt includes interest-bearing bank borrowings, KRN T10%ZE30% ° E75 FEEE
lease liabilities, trade payables, other payables and accruals. ErRRITER HEAE BEHE
The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods were I8 B ENRE R ETE R -
as follows: WMEMARNEEBGBLENOT

31 December 31 December
2020 2019
2020 20194F

12A31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT T ARETT

Interest-bearing bank borrowings (note 24) =2 4R 1T R (i3 24) - 27,500
Lease liabilities (note 15) HEaE EE5) 13,463 19,269
Trade payables (note 22) B 5 eI A (fsE 22) 16,185 13,495
Other payables and accruals (note 23) E b e FRIB R EET B R
(Bt&E23) 42,999 59318
Net debt B F5E 72,647 119,582
Equity attributable to owners of the parent &A1 A A FE(L1ERS 362,363 411,150
Capital and net debt B R ERFRE 435,010 530,732
Gearing ratio BEBFBLE 17% 23%
35. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 35. ¥ B HIH
On 18 March 2021, the Group entered into a sale and purchase R2021F3 188  NEBFI LB E W -
agreement to dispose of its entire interest in Hejian, a wholly-owned NRBZE=FHEERZ2ENBRAR
subsidiary, to an independent third party for a total cash e En BHERERARE
consideration of RMB10,000,000. The gain on disposal before tax is 10,000,0007T > TEHABR AT S WE AL A
expected to be approximately RMB4,000,000. R % 4,000,0007T °
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36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE  36. A2 "B %Ik %
COMPANY

Information about the statement of the financial position of the RpEEAR - BEARNQARMERARNE
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: AR

2020 2019
2020 20194F

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETT

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENMEE 7,000 8,506
Investment properties LB 2,630 2,630
Investments in subsidiaries RHTBARIRE 187,023 209,003
Total non-current assets JEmEEELE 196,653 220,139
CURRENT ASSETS mENEE
Inventories FE 7,330 18,263
Trade receivables B 5 W GIA 2,356 7,392
Due from subsidiaries NG ] 196,620 287,087
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables B/ X8 ~ &4 & H fth fE Ug 0B 5,741 5,026
Tax recoverable EdEEE 2,542 2,656
Cash and cash equivalents BEMBEEEY 38,055 69,406
Pledged deposits BHERIES 770 =
Total current assets MBEERE 253,414 389,830
CURRENT LIABILITIES RENEE
Trade payables E 5 N RIE 1,870 147
Interest-bearing bank borrowings T ERITHER - 27,500
Due to subsidiaries FETHT B A R ZIE 112,114 103,654
Other payables and accruals HEmEMRIENEASER 17,379 17,501
Total current liabilities MBI B ERRE 131,363 148,802
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEESE 122,051 241,028
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #AEERABERS 318,704 461,167
NET ASSETS EEFE 318,704 461,167
EQUITY e
Share capital A% AR 94,630 94,630
Other reserves (note) Hib s () 224,074 366,537
Total equity SRR 318,704 461,167
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36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE  36. A wl B4R = (48)
COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Note: BT
A summary of the Company’s other reserves is as follows: AARMEMBEERENT -

Retained

Statutory Asset profits/

Capital surplus revaluation (accumulated
reserve reserve reserve losses) Total

HE BE REFNE
BAGEE BRI EftEE  (RER) et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETL AR®TI ARETT ARETT AR®TE

At 1 January 2019 201941 A1 8 544,223 47315 = 27,064 618,602

Total comprehensive loss for the year — 4F A 2 [ E5 18 4258 = = 101 (252,166) (252,065)

At 31 December 2019 7201912431 H 544,223 47315 101 (225,102) 366,537

At 1 January 2020 20201 A1 H 544,223 47,315 101 (225,102) 366,537

Total comprehensive loss for the year & A& [H 5184458 - - - (142,463) (142,463)

At 31 December 2020 R20206E12 A31 8 544,223 47,315 101 (367,565) 224,074
37. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED 37. bR MBEHRE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and A BMERBESEN2021F3A30H

authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2021. BOE AR RETIEE o
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LA BB L

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-controlling
interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
published audited financial statements and re-presented as appropriate, is

set out below.

RESULTS

M EETRRECMBRRLLES (HER)
MAKESRIAETRFERZFEMNEE  BfF
NOFER i E M T -

e 3

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31HLEE

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
2016 F 2017 4 20184 20194 2020

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000  RMB’000

AREBTT ARBTT ARBTTE ARETT AR%TrR

REVENUE Wzs 466,241 472,490 453,199 322,613 296,525
Cost of sales SHEM A (139,549) (166,393) (204,229) (165775)  (125,821)
Gross profit EF 326,692 305,597 248,970 156,838 170,704
Other income and gains HAWA Rz 13,407 7,252 9,053 8673 12,735
Selling and distribution expenses THE REHEAY (131,905) (190,761) (225,550) (185,436) (132,898)
Administrative expenses TS (85,385) (83,090) (79,768) (85,187) (77,571)
Other expenses Hibfs (3,719) (23319) (76,/465) (72,841) (15,857)
Finance costs RE R A = (1,815) (3,363) (3,601) (1,275)
Share of profits of a joint venture DME—HAEECEFE 426 224 - - -
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BB ATAE, (E18) 119516 14,088 (127,123) (181,554) (44,162)
Income tax (expense)/credit FiEs (Fx),/He (28,870) (3,245) 14,286 (13,104) (5,443)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR EFE/ (BE) 90,646 10,843 (112,837) (194,658) (49,605)

Attributable to: FEBR

Owners of the parent FREEA A 87,232 4,209 (112,837) (194,658) (49,605)
Non-controlling interests JEIE R 3414 6,634 - - -
90,646 10,843 (112,837) (194,658) (49,605)
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ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING & > AR RN A
INTERESTS

As at 31 December
M12A31H

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

2016 4F 20174 2018 4F 20194 2020 F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETT ARBTET ARETT AR®TxR

TOTAL ASSETS BEE 983,664 874,968 740,981 542,720 449,731
TOTAL LIABILITIES maf (102,855) (159,940) (137,427) (131,570) (87,368)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS IR R (57,585) - = = -
TOTAL HmEt 823,224 715,028 603,554 411,150 362,363
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